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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

ASSETS
Investments:
Fixed maturities, available-for-sale, at fair value (amortized cost 2018: $2,867,251; 2017: $2,699,297)
Fixed maturities, held-to-maturity, at amortized cost (fair value 2018: $1,019,741; 2017: $1,125,626)
Other investments, at fair value
Total investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Accrued investment income

Reinsurance balances receivable, net (includes $125,046 and $94,597 from related parties in 2018 and 2017,
respectively)

Loan to related party

Deferred commission and other acquisition expenses (includes $396,799 and $379,395 from related parties in
2018 and 2017, respectively)

Other assets
Assets held for sale
Total assets
LIABILITIES

Reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses (includes $2,749,601 and $2,337,096 from related parties in 2018
and 2017, respectively)

Unearned premiums (includes $1,223,736 and $1,170,397 from related parties in 2018 and 2017, respectively)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Senior notes - principal amount

Less: unamortized debt issuance costs
Senior notes, net
Liabilities held for sale

Total liabilities
Commitments and Contingencies

EQUITY

Preference shares

Common shares ($0.01 par value; 87,932,287 and 87,730,054 shares issued in 2018 and 2017, respectively;
82,942,737 and 82,974,895 shares outstanding in 2018 and 2017, respectively)

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income

(Accumulated deficit) retained earnings

Treasury shares, at cost (4,989,550 and 4,755,159 shares in 2018 and 2017, respectively)
Total Maiden shareholders’ equity

Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

September 30, December 31,
2018 2017
$ 2,781,553 $ 2,707,516
1,032,885 1,097,801
22,586 6,600
3,837,024 3,811,917
94,578 54,470
169,996 94,905
29,658 28,798
161,436 72,494
167,975 167,975
419,265 380,204
41,083 131,608
1,615,486 1,901,818
$ 6,536,501 $ 6,644,189
$ 2,851,685 $ 2,386,722
1,298,933 1,230,882
18,460 90,069
262,500 262,500
7,860 8,018
254,640 254,482
1,339,618 1,449,408
5,763,336 5,411,563
465,000 465,000
879 877
749,214 748,113
(116,369) 13,354
(294,656) 35,472
(31,514) (30,642)
772,554 1,232,174
611 452
773,165 1,232,626
$ 6,536,501 $ 6,644,189

See accompanying notes to the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share data)

For the Nine Months Ended September

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017

Revenues
Gross premiums written $ 484,494  $ 443,001 $ 1,629,347 % 1,650,762
Net premiums written $ 482,806 $ 432,677 $ 1,626,485 $ 1,603,414
Change in unearned premiums 37,271 24,601 (85,207) (90,977)

Net premiums earned 520,077 457,278 1,541,278 1,512,437
Other insurance revenue 1,870 2,488 7,629 7,816
Net investment income 34,419 30,950 101,548 91,597
Net realized (losses) gains on investment (225) 5,859 (282) 8,316
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses 479) — (479) —

Total revenues 555,662 496,575 1,649,694 1,620,166
Expenses
Net loss and loss adjustment expenses 600,296 370,847 1,323,503 1,090,608
Commission and other acquisition expenses 167,618 145,352 497,026 487,771
General and administrative expenses 18,936 15,439 48,343 38,161
Interest and amortization expenses 4,829 4,829 14,487 18,430
Accelerated amortization of senior note issuance cost — — — 2,809
Foreign exchange losses (gains) 552 3,550 (1,862) 12,193

Total expenses 792,231 540,017 1,881,497 1,649,972
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (236,569) (43,442) (231,803) (29,806)
Less: income tax (benefit) expense (7,437) 1,704 (930) (1,978)

Net loss from continuing operations (229,132) (45,146) (230,873) (27,828)

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax (71,100) (9,908) (44,336) (17,060)
Net loss (300,232) (55,054) (275,209) (44,888)
Add: net (income) loss from continuing operations attributable to

noncontrolling interests (62) 3 (180) 34
Net loss attributable to Maiden (300,294) (55,051) (275,389) (44,854)
Dividends on preference shares (8,545) (8,545) (25,636) (20,611)
Net loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders $ (308,839) $ (63,596) $ (301,025) $ (65,465)
Basic and diluted loss from continuing operations per share attributable

to Maiden common shareholders $ (2.86) $ 0.62) $ (3.09) $ (0.56)
Basic and diluted loss from discontinued operations per share

attributable to Maiden common shareholders $ (0.86) $ 0.12) $ 0.53) $ (0.20)
Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to Maiden common

shareholders $ 3.72) $ 0.74) $ 3.62) $ (0.76)
Dividends declared per common share $ 005 $ 015 $ 035 § 0.45
Weighted average number of common shares - basic and diluted 83,089,172 85,859,201 83,085,441 86,256,481

See accompanying notes to the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Net loss
Other comprehensive (loss) income

Net unrealized holdings (losses) gains on available-for-sale fixed
maturities arising during the period

Adjustment for reclassification of net realized losses (gains) recognized
in net income

Foreign currency translation adjustment
Other comprehensive (loss) income, before tax

Income tax benefit (expense) related to components of other
comprehensive income

Other comprehensive (loss) income, after tax
Comprehensive loss
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

Other comprehensive loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling
interests

Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

Comprehensive loss attributable to Maiden

See accompanying notes to the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

For the Nine Months Ended September

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ (300,232) $ (55,054) $ (275,209) $ (44,888)
(24,658) 25,019 (141,926) 68,798
785 (3,650) 40 1,123
4,458 (10,828) 12,123 (38,803)
(19,415) 10,541 (129,763) 31,118
2 (25) 19 5
(19,413) 10,516 (129,744) 31,123
(319,645) (44,538) (404,953) (13,765)
(62) 3 (180) 34
3 (12) 21 41)
(59) 9) (159) (7)
$ (319,704) $ (44,547) $ (405,112) $ (13,772)
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MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Unaudited)

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017
Preference shares - Series A, C and D

Beginning balance 465,000 $ 315,000
Issuance of Preference Shares — Series D — 150,000
Ending balance 465,000 465,000
Common shares

Beginning balance 877 873
Exercise of options and issuance of shares 2 4
Ending balance 879 877
Additional paid-in capital

Beginning balance 748,113 749,256
Exercise of options and issuance of common shares 13 1,072
Share-based compensation expense 1,088 2,194
Issuance costs of Preference Shares - Series D — (5,058)
Ending balance 749,214 747,464
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income

Beginning balance 13,354 14,997
Change in net unrealized (losses) gains on investment (141,867) 69,926
Foreign currency translation adjustment 12,144 (38,844)
Ending balance (116,369) 46,079
(Accumulated deficit) retained earnings

Beginning balance 35,472 285,662
Net loss attributable to Maiden (275,389) (44,854)
Dividends on preference shares (25,636) (20,611)
Dividends on common shares (29,103) (38,687)
Ending balance (294,656) 181,510
Treasury shares

Beginning balance (30,642) (4,991)
Shares repurchased (872) (14,912)
Ending balance (31,514) (19,903)
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries

Beginning balance 452 355
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests 180 (34)
Foreign currency translation adjustment (21) 41
Ending balance 611 362
Total equity 773,165 $ 1,421,389

See accompanying notes to the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss $ (275,209) $ (44,888)
Less: net loss from discontinued operations 44,336 17,060

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation, amortization and share-based compensation 4,774 8,464
Net realized losses (gains) on investment 282 (8,316)
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses 479 —
Foreign exchange (gains) losses (1,862) 12,193
Changes in assets — (increase) decrease:
Reinsurance balances receivable, net (92,904) (22,098)
Accrued investment income (1,000) 1,124
Deferred commission and other acquisition expenses (40,097) (38,773)
Other assets 91,422 (22,804)
Changes in liabilities — increase (decrease):
Reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses 481,227 325,221
Unearned premiums 72,200 94,489
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (66,401) 6,877
Net cash provided by continuing operations 217,247 328,549
Net cash (used in) provided by discontinued operations (54,624) 46,265
Net cash provided by operating activities 162,623 374,814
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of fixed-maturities — available-for-sale (517,839) (538,429)
Purchases of other investments (17,532) (986)
Proceeds from sales of fixed-maturities — available-for-sale 185,089 116,306
Proceeds from maturities, paydowns and calls of fixed maturities — available-for-sale 196,275 224,940
Proceeds from maturities and calls of fixed maturities — held to maturity 62,018 20,744
Proceeds from sale and redemption of other investments 2,160 11,119
Other, net (2,985) (1,997)
Net cash used in investing activities for continuing operations (92,814) (168,303)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities for discontinued operations 119,965 (16,710)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 27,151 (185,013)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repurchase of common shares, net of issuance (857) (13,836)
Dividends paid — Maiden common shareholders (37,400) (38,935)
Dividends paid — preference shares (25,636) (20,611)
Preference shares, net of issuance costs — 144,942
Redemption of 2012 senior notes — (100,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (63,893) (28,440)
Effect of exchange rate changes on foreign currency cash and cash equivalents (1,131) 3,379
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents 124,750 164,740
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 191,503 149,535
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of period 316,253 314,275
Less: cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations, end
of period (51,679) (88,606)
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations, end of
period $ 264,574 $ 225,669

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash and cash equivalents reported within Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets that sum to the total shown above:

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 94,578 $ 154,152
Restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of period 169,996 71,517
Total cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 264,574 $ 225,669

See accompanying notes to the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Maiden Holdings, Ltd. ("Maiden Holdings") and its
subsidiaries (the "Company" or "Maiden"). They have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("U.S.
GAAP") for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X as promulgated by the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC"). Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements.
All significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated.

These interim unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements reflect all adjustments that are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a fair
presentation of the results for the interim period and all such adjustments are of a normal recurring nature. The results of operations for the interim period are
not necessarily indicative, if annualized, of those to be expected for the full year. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

These unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, including these notes, should be read in conjunction with the Company's audited
Consolidated Financial Statements, and related notes thereto, included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017.
Certain prior year comparatives have been reclassified for 2017 to conform to the 2018 presentation including as discussed below. The effect of these
reclassifications had no impact on previously reported shareholders' equity or net income (loss).

Discontinued Operations

As part of the strategic review initiated by the Company's Board of Directors earlier in 2018, during the third quarter of 2018, the Company made the
strategic decision to divest its U.S. reinsurance treaty operations. Except as explicitly described as held for sale or as discontinued operations, and unless
otherwise noted, all discussions and amounts presented herein relate to the Company's continuing operations except for net loss, net loss attributable to
Maiden and net loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders. Please see “Note 8. Discontinued Operations" for additional information related to
discontinued operations. All prior years presented in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been reclassified to conform to this new
presentation.

Background

On August 29, 2018, the Company announced that it had entered into a Renewal Rights Agreement ("Renewal Rights"), dated as of August 29, 2018, with
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company ("TransRe"), pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell, and TransRe agreed to purchase, Maiden Reinsurance North
America, Inc.'s ("Maiden US") rights to: (i) renew Maiden US’s treaty reinsurance agreements upon their expiration or cancellation, (ii) solicit renewals of
and replacement coverages for the treaty reinsurance agreements and (iii) replicate and use the products and contract forms used in Maiden US’s business.
The sale was consummated on August 29, 2018. The payment received for the sale of the Renewal Rights was $7,500 subject to potential additional amounts
payable in the future in accordance with the agreement.

On August 31, 2018, the Company announced that its subsidiary, Maiden Holdings North America, Ltd. ("Maiden NA"), entered into a sale agreement
("Master Transaction Agreement") dated as of August 31, 2018, with Enstar Group Limited ("Enstar"), pursuant to which Maiden NA agreed to sell, and
Enstar agreed to purchase Maiden NA’s subsidiary Maiden US. Pursuant to and subject to the terms of the Master Transaction Agreement:

@) Maiden NA will sell, and Enstar will purchase, all of the share capital of Maiden US (the “Maiden US Sale”) for a price of $321,500, which is
subject to certain closing adjustments;

(ii) Cavello Bay Reinsurance Limited ("Cavello"), Enstar’s Bermuda reinsurance affiliate, and Maiden Reinsurance Ltd. ("Maiden Bermuda"), the
Company’s Bermuda reinsurance subsidiary, will enter into a novation agreement pursuant to which certain assets and liabilities associated with the
Company’s U.S. treaty reinsurance business held by Maiden Bermuda will be novated for a ceding commission payable by Maiden Bermuda of $12,250;

(iii) Cavello and Maiden Bermuda will enter into a retrocession agreement pursuant to which certain assets and liabilities associated with the Motors
Insurance business held by Maiden Bermuda will be retroceded to Cavello in exchange for a $1,750 ceding commission; and

(@iv) Maiden Bermuda will provide Enstar with adverse loss reserve development cover up to a maximum of $25,000 when losses are more than
$100,000 in excess of the net loss and loss adjustment expenses recorded as of June 30, 2018, for no additional consideration.

The transactions contemplated by the Master Transaction Agreement are expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2018 subject to regulatory approvals
and customary closing conditions. The Company’s current analysis indicates that the conditions to redeem the 2013 Senior Notes as stipulated by the
securities may exist. Should final analysis support such a conclusion, the Company expects to redeem all of the $152,500 2013 Senior Notes at that time
pursuant to the terms of the underlying securities.

The assets and liabilities related to the sale of Maiden US were classified as held for sale in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as at
September 30, 2018 and reclassified as held for sale as at December 31, 2017. The operations of the Company's U.S. reinsurance treaty business have been
reported as discontinued operations in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017
since the Company has determined that the divestiture



MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

1. Basis of Presentation (continued)

represents a strategic shift that will have a major effect on its ongoing operations and financial results and all of the held for sale criteria have been met.
Please refer to "Note 8. Discontinued Operations" for additional information regarding the effect of the reclassifications on the Company's Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Segments

As a result of the strategic decision to divest all of the Company's U.S. treaty reinsurance operations noted above, the Company has revised the
composition of its reportable segments. As described in more detail below under “Note 3. Segment Information”, the reportable segments include: (i)
Diversified Reinsurance which consists of a portfolio of property and casualty reinsurance business focusing on regional and specialty property and casualty
insurance companies located primarily in Europe; and (ii) AmTrust Reinsurance which includes all business ceded to the Company from subsidiaries of
AmTrust Financial Services Inc. ("AmTrust"). In addition to these reportable segments, the results of operations of the former National General Holdings
Corporation Quota Share ("NGHC Quota Share") segment is included in the "Other" category. All prior periods presented have been reclassified to conform
to this new presentation.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, the Company's AmTrust Reinsurance segment accounted for 93.5% and 93.2%, respectively
(2017 - 94.8% and 95.5%, respectively), of the Company's total consolidated gross premiums written.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

There have been no material changes to our significant accounting policies as described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2017 except for the following:

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards Updates
Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standard Update ("ASU") 2014-09 guidance that supersedes most
existing revenue recognition guidance. The standard excludes from its scope the accounting for insurance contracts, leases, financial instruments, and certain
other agreements that are governed under other GAAP guidance, but could affect the revenue recognition for certain of our other insurance revenue activities.
This guidance is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period. The
Company has adopted the guidance in ASU 2014-09 on January 1, 2018. Our analysis of revenues for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018
indicates that substantially all of our revenues are from sources not within the scope of the standard. The Company generates an insignificant amount of fee
income which is reported under other insurance revenue in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income and is within the scope of ASU 2014-09. The
Company’s current accounting policy for this revenue is to recognize fee income as earned when the related services are performed which is consistent with
the guidance in this ASU. Other insurance revenue is currently less than 1% of total revenues so the expanded disclosure requirements mandated by this ASU
are not required or deemed relevant due to materiality. As substantially all of our revenue sources are not within the scope of the standard, the adoption of the
standard did not have a material effect on our reported condensed consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Scope of Modification Accounting

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09 to amend the guidance about which changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award
require an entity to apply modification accounting in Topic 718. The Company currently has a number of share based payment awards as disclosed in the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. The adoption of this guidance on January 1, 2018 did not have an impact on the
Company's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as no modifications were made in any of its current share based payment awards.

Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01 that will change how entities measure certain equity investments and present changes in the fair value of
financial liabilities measured under the fair value option that are attributable to their own credit. Under the new guidance, entities will have to measure many
equity investments at fair value and recognize any changes in fair value in net income unless the investments qualify for the new practicability exception. This
includes investments in partnerships, unincorporated joint ventures and limited liability companies that do not result in consolidation and are not accounted
for under the equity method. Entities will no longer be able to recognize unrealized holding gains and losses on equity securities they classify today as
available-for-sale ("AFS") in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income ("AOCI"). The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December
15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The adoption of this guidance on January 1, 2018 resulted in the recognition of $465 of net
unrealized losses and $358 of net unrealized gains on our investments in limited partnerships within net income during the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018, respectively. Our investments in limited partnerships do not have a readily determinable fair value and therefore, the new guidance was
adopted prospectively. Please refer to "Note 4. Investments (d) - Realized Gains on Investment" for additional information.

Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15 guidance to clarify how entities should classify certain cash receipts and cash payments on the statement
of cash flows. The new guidance amends Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 230 Statement of Cash Flows, a principles based requiring judgment to
determine the appropriate classification of cash flow as operating, investing or financing activities which created diversity in how certain cash receipts and
cash payments were classified. The new guidance



MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

clarifies that if a receipt or payment has aspects of more than one class of cash flows and cannot be separated, the classification will depend on the
predominant source or use. While the new guidance attempts to clarify how the predominance principle should be applied, judgment will still be required.
The guidance is effective for public business entities for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods therein. Entities will have to
apply the guidance retrospectively, but if it is impracticable to do so for an issue, the amendments related to that issue would be applied prospectively. The
adoption of this guidance did not have any impact on the Company's results of operations, financial position or liquidity.

Presentation of Restricted Cash in the Statement of Cash Flows

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18 guidance that require entities to show the changes in the total cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash
and restricted cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows. As a result, entities will no longer present transfers between cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows. When cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents are presented
in more than one line item on the balance sheet, the new guidance requires a reconciliation of the totals in the statement of cash flows to the related captions
in the balance sheet. This reconciliation can be presented either on the face of the statement of cash flows or in the notes to the financial statements. The
guidance is effective for public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The
Company adopted this guidance on January 1, 2018. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial
condition, results of operations and disclosures, other than the presentation of restricted cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows. The
financial impact in the consolidated statements of cash flows has eliminated the presentation of changes in restricted cash and cash equivalents from cash
flows from investing activities. Therefore, changes that result from transfers between cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash and cash equivalents are no
longer presented as cash flow activities in the statement of cash flows. Additionally, a reconciliation between the statement of financial position and the
statement of cash flows has been disclosed to show the movement in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents from the prior period.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted
Improvements to Non-employee Share-Based Payment Accounting

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-07 guidance that simplifies the accounting for share-based payments granted to non-employees for goods and
services. Under the guidance, most of the guidance on such payments to non-employees would be aligned with the requirements for share-based payments
granted to employees as the board viewed the awards to both employees and non-employees to be economically similar and that two different accounting
models are not justified. Under the new guidance, i) non-employee share-based payment awards should be measured at the grant date fair value rather than
the fair value of the consideration received or the fair value of the equity instruments issued, whichever can be more reliably measured, ii) the measurement
date for equity classified non-employee share-based payment awards is at the grant date and not the earlier of the date at which a commitment for
performance by the counterparty is reached and the date at which the counterparty's performance is complete, and iii) entities should consider the probability
of satisfying the performance conditions when awards contain such conditions. The amendments in this guidance are effective for public business entities for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within that fiscal year. Early adoption is permitted, but not earlier than an entity's
adoption date of Topic 606. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on the Company's results of operations and financial position;
however, it is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Codification Improvements

In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-09 which includes clarifications to existing codifications or corrections of unintended application of guidance
that is not expected to have a significant effect on current accounting practice or create a significant administrative cost to most entities. The amendments in
this update include items raised for board consideration through the codification's feedback system that met the scope of this project, making due process
necessary. The amendments affect a wide variety of topics in the codification. The amendments apply to all reporting entities within the scope of the affected
accounting guidance. None of the topics deemed applicable have a material impact in the Company's interim consolidated financial statements. However, the
Company is currently evaluating the impact of applicable sections on its results of operations and financial position once those sections are adopted beginning
after December 15, 2018.

Codification Improvements to Topic 842, Leases

In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-11 for targeted improvements related to Update 2016-02 which provides entities with an additional transition
method to apply the new standard. Under the new optional transition method, an entity initially applies ASC 842 at the adoption date and recognizes a
cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the period of adoption. The Updates related to Topic 842 become effective for the
Company during the first quarter of 2019 and will be applied using a modified retrospective approach. The Company intends to elect the new transition
method permitted by ASU No. 2018-11.

The Company's future minimum lease payments, which represent minimum annual rental commitments excluding taxes, insurance and other operating
costs for non-cancellable operating leases, and which will be subject to this new guidance, will be recorded on the Company's consolidated balance sheets as a
lease liability with a corresponding right-of-use asset. However, under this guidance, the Company shall continue to recognize the related leasing expense
within net income. Therefore, adoption of this standard will impact the Company’s consolidated balance sheets but is not expected to have a material impact
on the Company’s results of operations or cash flows.
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MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13 for changes to the disclosure framework related to Topic 820 which amends the disclosure requirements
for fair value measurement. The following disclosure requirements were removed from Topic 820: (i) amount of and reasons for transfers between Level 1
and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, (ii) policy for timing of transfers between levels, and (iii) valuation processes for Level 3 fair value measurements.
The amendments clarify that the measurement uncertainty disclosure is to communicate information about the uncertainty in measurement as of the reporting
date. The following disclosure requirements were added to Topic 820: (i) changes in unrealized gains and losses for the period included in other
comprehensive income for recurring Level 3 fair value measurements held at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) range and weighted average of
significant unobservable inputs used to develop Level 3 fair value measurements. For certain unobservable inputs, an entity may disclose other quantitative
information (such as the median or arithmetic average) in lieu of the weighted average if the entity determines that other quantitative information would be a
more reasonable and rational method to reflect the distribution of unobservable inputs used to develop Level 3 fair value measurements.

The amendments in this Update are effective for all entities for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15,
2019. The amendments on changes in unrealized gains and losses, the range and weighted average of significant unobservable inputs used to develop Level 3
fair value measurements, and the narrative description of measurement uncertainty should be applied prospectively for only the most recent interim or annual
period presented in the initial fiscal year of adoption. All other amendments should be applied retrospectively to all periods presented upon their effective
date. Early adoption is permitted upon issuance of this Update. An entity is permitted to early adopt any removed or modified disclosures upon issuance of
this Update and delay adoption of the additional disclosures until their effective date. These amendments only impact disclosures made in "Note 5. Fair Value
Measurements" therefore, the adoption of this standard will not impact the Company’s consolidated balance sheets, results of operations or cash flows.

3. Segment Information

The Company currently has two reportable segments: Diversified Reinsurance and AmTrust Reinsurance. Our Diversified Reinsurance segment consists
of a portfolio of predominantly property and casualty reinsurance business focusing on regional and specialty property and casualty insurance companies
located primarily in Europe. Our AmTrust Reinsurance segment includes all business ceded to our wholly owned subsidiary, Maiden Bermuda, from
AmTrust, primarily the AmTrust Quota Share and the European Hospital Liability Quota Share. In addition to our reportable segments, the results of
operations of the former NGHC Quota Share segment have been included in the "Other" category. Please refer to "Note 10. Related Party Transactions" for
additional information.

As a result of the strategic decision to divest all of the Company's U.S. treaty reinsurance operations as discussed in "Note 1. Basis of Presentation" and
"Note 8. Discontinued Operations", the Company has revised the composition of its reportable segments. Previously, the underwriting results associated with
the discontinued operations of the Company's U.S. treaty reinsurance business were included within the Diversified Reinsurance segment and the operating
results associated with the remnants of the U.S. excess and surplus business were included within the Other category. These are now excluded and all prior
periods presented have been reclassified to conform to this new presentation.

The Company evaluates segment performance based on segment profit separately from the results of our investment portfolio. General and administrative
expenses are allocated to the segments on an actual basis except salaries and benefits where management’s judgment is applied. The Company does not
allocate general corporate expenses to the segments. In determining total assets by reportable segment, the Company identifies those assets that are
attributable to a particular segment such as reinsurance balances receivable, deferred commission and other acquisition expenses, loans, restricted cash and
cash equivalents and investments and reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses, unearned reinsurance premiums ceded and funds withheld
receivable (presented as part of other assets in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet). All remaining assets are allocated to Corporate.

The following tables summarize our reporting segment's underwriting results and the reconciliation of our reportable segments and Other category's
underwriting results to our consolidated net loss from continuing operations:
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MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

3. Segment Information (continued)

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 Diversified Reinsurance =~ AmTrust Reinsurance Other Total
Gross premiums written $ 31,699 $ 452,795 $ — % 484,494
Net premiums written $ 31,291 $ 451,515 $ — 3 482,806
Net premiums earned $ 28,784 $ 491,293 $ — % 520,077
Other insurance revenue 1,870 — — 1,870
Net loss and loss adjustment expenses ("loss and LAE") (19,764) (579,163) (1,369) (600,296)
Commission and other acquisition expenses (8,961) (158,657) — (167,618)
General and administrative expenses (4,256) (952) — (5,208)
Underwriting loss $ 2,327)  $ (247,479)  $ (1,369) (251,175)
Reconciliation to net loss from continuing operations
Net investment income and realized losses on investment 34,194
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses (479)
Interest and amortization expenses (4,829)
Foreign exchange losses (552)
Other general and administrative expenses (13,728)
Income tax benefit 7,437
Net loss from continuing operations $ (229,132)
Net loss and LAE ratio()) 64.5% 117.9% 115.0%
Commission and other acquisition expense ratio(® 29.2% 32.3% 32.1%
General and administrative expense ratio® 13.9% 0.2% 3.6%
Expense ratio®) 43.1% 32.5% 35.7%
Combined ratio® 107.6% 150.4% 150.7%
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MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

3. Segment Information (continued)

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2017 Diversified Reinsurance ~ AmTrust Reinsurance Other Total
Gross premiums written $ 22,982 $ 420,019 $ — % 443,001
Net premiums written $ 22,484 $ 410,193 $ — % 432,677
Net premiums earned $ 20,925 $ 436,353 $ — 3 457,278
Other insurance revenue 2,488 — — 2,488
Net loss and LAE (13,979) (355,030) (1,838) (370,847)
Commission and other acquisition expenses (6,702) (138,650) — (145,352)
General and administrative expenses (4,158) (771) — (4,929)
Underwriting loss $ (1,426) $ (58,098) $ (1,838) (61,362)
Reconciliation to net loss from continuing operations
Net investment income and realized gains on investment 36,809
Interest and amortization expenses (4,829)
Foreign exchange losses (3,550)
Other general and administrative expenses (10,510)
Income tax expense (1,704)
Net loss from continuing operations $ (45,146)
Net loss and LAE ratio®) 59.7% 81.4% 80.6%
Commission and other acquisition expense ratio® 28.6% 31.7% 31.6%
General and administrative expense ratio® 17.8% 0.2% 3.4%
Expense ratio® 46.4% 31.9% 35.0%
Combined ratio® 106.1% 113.3% 115.6%
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3. Segment Information (continued)

MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 Diversified Reinsurance ~ AmTrust Reinsurance Other Total
Gross premiums written $ 111,139 $ 1,518,208 — % 1,629,347
Net premiums written $ 109,279 $ 1,517,206 — % 1,626,485
Net premiums earned $ 82,838 $ 1,458,440 — 3 1,541,278
Other insurance revenue 7,629 — — 7,629
Net loss and LAE (51,828) (1,270,306) (1,369) (1,323,503)
Commission and other acquisition expenses (28,261) (468,765) — (497,026)
General and administrative expenses (13,330) (2,954) — (16,284)
Underwriting loss $ (2,952) $ (283,585) (1,369) (287,906)
Reconciliation to net loss from continuing operations
Net investment income and realized losses on investment 101,266
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses 479)
Interest and amortization expenses (14,487)
Foreign exchange gains 1,862
Other general and administrative expenses (32,059)
Income tax benefit 930
Net loss from continuing operations $ (230,873)
Net loss and LAE ratio(") 57.3% 87.1% 85.5%
Commission and other acquisition expense ratio(® 31.3% 32.1% 32.1%
General and administrative expense ratio® 14.7% 0.2% 3.1%
Expense ratio® 46.0% 32.3% 35.2%
Combined ratio® 103.3% 119.4% 120.7%
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3. Segment Information (continued)

MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2017 Diversified Reinsurance ~ AmTrust Reinsurance Other Total
Gross premiums written $ 75,085 $ 1,575,677 — 1,650,762
Net premiums written $ 73,434 $ 1,529,980 — 1,603,414
Net premiums earned $ 61,626 $ 1,450,811 — 1,512,437
Other insurance revenue 7,816 — — 7,816
Net loss and LAE (41,548) (1,047,222) (1,838) (1,090,608)
Commission and other acquisition expenses (21,982) (465,789) — (487,771)
General and administrative expenses (11,831) (2,240) — (14,071)
Underwriting loss $ (5,919) $ (64,440) $ (1,838) (72,197)
Reconciliation to net loss from continuing operations
Net investment income and realized gains on investment 99,913
Interest and amortization expenses (18,430)
Accelerated amortization of senior note issuance cost (2,809)
Foreign exchange losses (12,193)
Other general and administrative expenses (24,090)
Income tax benefit 1,978
Net loss from continuing operations (27,828)
Net loss and LAE ratio() 59.8% 72.2% 71.7%
Commission and other acquisition expense ratio® 31.7% 32.1% 32.1%
General and administrative expense ratio® 17.0% 0.1% 2.5%
Expense ratio®) 48.7% 32.2% 34.6%
Combined ratio® 108.5% 104.4% 106.3%

(1) Calculated by dividing net loss and LAE by the sum of net premiums earned and other insurance revenue.

(2) Calculated by dividing commission and other acquisition ex

enses by the sum of net premiums earned and other insurance revenue.

(3) Calculated by dividing general and administrative expenses Ey the sum of net premiums earned and other insurance revenue.
(4) Calculated by adding together the commission and other acquisition expense ratio and general and administrative expense ratio.
(5) Calculated by adding together net loss and LAE ratio and the expense ratio.

The following tables summarize the financial position of our reportable segments including the reconciliation to our consolidated assets at September 30,

2018 and December 31, 2017:

Diversified
September 30, 2018 Reinsurance AmTrust Reinsurance Total
Total assets - reportable segments $ 180,676 $ 4,297,992 4,478,668
Corporate assets — — 442,347
Assets held for sale — — 1,615,486
Total Assets $ 180,676 $ 4,297,992 6,536,501
Diversified
December 31, 2017 Reinsurance AmTrust Reinsurance Total
Total assets - reportable segments $ 167,638 $ 4,258,607 4,426,245
Corporate assets — — 316,126
Assets held for sale — — 1,901,818
Total Assets $ 167,638 $ 4,258,607 6,644,189
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MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

3. Segment Information (continued)

The following tables set forth financial information relating to net premiums written by major line of business and reportable segment for the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017

Net premiums written Total % of Total Total % of Total

Diversified Reinsurance

International $ 31,291 6.5% $ 22,503 52 %

Casualty — —% (19) —%
Total Diversified Reinsurance 31,291 6.5% 22,484 52%

AmTrust Reinsurance

Small Commercial Business 232,163 48.1% 295,499 68.3 %

Specialty Program 94,077 19.5% 63,816 14.7 %

Specialty Risk and Extended Warranty 125,275 25.9% 50,878 11.8 %
Total AmTrust Reinsurance 451,515 93.5% 410,193 94.8 %

Total Net Premiums Written $ 482,806 100.0% $ 432,677 100.0 %

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017

Net premiums written Total % of Total Total % of Total

Diversified Reinsurance

International $ 109,238 6.7% $ 73,475 4.6 %
Casualty 41 —% (41) —%
Total Diversified Reinsurance 109,279 6.7% 73,434 4.6 %
AmTrust Reinsurance
Small Commercial Business 879,403 54.1% 1,028,905 64.2 %
Specialty Program 286,404 17.6% 255,767 15.9 %
Specialty Risk and Extended Warranty 351,399 21.6% 245,308 15.3 %
Total AmTrust Reinsurance 1,517,206 93.3% 1,529,980 95.4 %
Total Net Premiums Written $ 1,626,485 100.0% $ 1,603,414 100.0 %

The following tables set forth financial information relating to net premiums earned by major line of business and reportable segment for the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017

Net premiums earned Total % of Total Total % of Total

Diversified Reinsurance

International $ 28,784 55% $ 20,943 4.6 %

Casualty — —% (18) —%
Total Diversified Reinsurance 28,784 5.5% 20,925 4.6 %

AmTrust Reinsurance

Small Commercial Business 273,456 52.6% 314,773 68.8 %

Specialty Program 98,359 18.9% 59,143 12.9 %

Specialty Risk and Extended Warranty 119,478 23.0% 62,437 13.7%
Total AmTrust Reinsurance 491,293 94.5% 436,353 95.4 %

Total Net Premiums Earned $ 520,077 100.0% $ 457,278 100.0 %

16



MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

3. Segment Information (continued)

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017

Net premiums earned Total % of Total Total % of Total

Diversified Reinsurance

International $ 82,797 54% $ 61,667 4.1 %

Casualty 41 —% (41) — %
Total Diversified Reinsurance 82,838 5.4% 61,626 41 %

AmTrust Reinsurance

Small Commercial Business 882,679 57.3% 946,782 62.6 %

Specialty Program 283,592 18.4% 251,153 16.6 %

Specialty Risk and Extended Warranty 292,169 18.9% 252,876 16.7 %
Total AmTrust Reinsurance 1,458,440 94.6% 1,450,811 95.9 %

Total Net Premiums Earned $ 1,541,278 100.0% $ 1,512,437 100.0 %
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MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

4. Investments
a) Fixed Maturities

The original or amortized cost, estimated fair value and gross unrealized gains and losses of fixed maturities at September 30, 2018 and December 31,
2017 are as follows:

Original or amortized Gross unrealized Gross unrealized
September 30, 2018 cost gains losses Fair value
AFS fixed maturities:
U.S. treasury bonds $ 125 % — 3 @ $ 124
U.S. agency bonds — mortgage-backed 1,484,434 830 (58,068) 1,427,196
U.S. agency bonds — other 24,870 — (1,180) 23,690
Non-U.S. government and supranational bonds 22,550 122 (1,827) 20,845
Asset-backed securities 226,652 552 (2,000) 225,204
Corporate bonds 1,108,620 8,834 (32,960) 1,084,494
Total AFS fixed maturities 2,867,251 10,338 (96,036) 2,781,553
Held-to-maturity ("HTM") fixed maturities:
Corporate bonds 974,947 6,103 (18,190) 962,860
Municipal bonds 57,938 — (1,057) 56,881
Total HTM fixed maturities 1,032,885 6,103 (19,247) 1,019,741
Total fixed maturity investments $ 3,900,136 $ 16,441  $ (115,283) $ 3,801,294
Original or amortized Gross unrealized Gross unrealized
December 31, 2017 cost gains losses Fair value
AFS fixed maturities:
U.S. treasury bonds $ 35,093 $ 4 % — 3 35,097
U.S. agency bonds — mortgage-backed 1,475,682 6,181 (13,723) 1,468,140
U.S. agency bonds — other 19,868 — (149) 19,719
Non-U.S. government and supranational bonds 32,380 231 (1,713) 30,898
Asset-backed securities 225,015 3,457 (79) 228,393
Corporate bonds 911,259 28,423 (14,413) 925,269
Total AFS fixed maturities 2,699,297 38,296 (30,077) 2,707,516
HTM fixed maturities:
Corporate bonds 1,037,464 28,694 (913) 1,065,245
Municipal bonds 60,337 128 (84) 60,381
Total HTM fixed maturities 1,097,801 28,822 (997) 1,125,626
Total fixed maturity investments $ 3,797,098 $ 67,118 $ (31,074) $ 3,833,142

During the nine months ended September 30, 2018, we did not designate any additional fixed maturities as HTM. During 2017, we designated additional
fixed maturities with a fair value of $391,934 as HTM reflecting our intent to hold these securities to maturity. The net unrealized holding gain of $4,313 as at
the designation date continues to be reported in the carrying value of the HTM securities and is amortized through other comprehensive income over the
remaining life of the securities using the effective yield method in a manner consistent with the amortization of any premium or discount.
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MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

4. Investments (continued)

The contractual maturities of our fixed maturities are shown below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have
the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

AFS fixed maturities HTM fixed maturities

September 30, 2018 Amortized cost Fair value Amortized cost Fair value
Maturity
Due in one year or less $ 3,873 % 3,522 % 9,297 $ 9,289
Due after one year through five years 596,895 583,069 371,750 372,294
Due after five years through ten years 555,397 542,562 651,838 638,158

1,156,165 1,129,153 1,032,885 1,019,741
U.S. agency bonds — mortgage-backed 1,484,434 1,427,196 — —
Asset-backed securities 226,652 225,204 — —
Total fixed maturities $ 2,867,251 $ 2,781,553 $ 1,032,885 $ 1,019,741

The following tables summarize fixed maturities in an unrealized loss position and the aggregate fair value and gross unrealized loss by length of time the
security has continuously been in an unrealized loss position:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

September 30, 2018 value losses value losses value losses
Fixed maturities

U.S. treasury bonds $ 124  $ (OO — S —  $ 124  $ 1)
U.S. agency bonds — mortgage-backed 831,457 (25,160) 595,740 (32,908) 1,427,197 (58,068)
U.S. agency bonds — other 23,689 (1,180) — — 23,689 (1,180)
Non-U.S. government and supranational bonds 6,637 (148) 14,209 (1,679) 20,846 (1,827)
Asset-backed securities 221,300 (1,896) 3,904 (104) 225,204 (2,000)
Corporate bonds 1,793,528 (31,031) 253,825 (20,119) 2,047,353 (51,150)
Municipal bonds 56,882 (1,057) — — 56,882 (1,057)
Total temporarily impaired fixed maturities $ 2933617 $ (60,473) $ 867,678 $ (54,810) $ 3,801,295 $ (115,283)

At September 30, 2018, there were approximately 406 securities in an unrealized loss position with a fair value of $3,801,295 and unrealized losses of
$115,283. Of these securities, there were 99 securities that have been in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or greater with a fair value of $867,678 and
unrealized losses of $54,810.

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

December 31, 2017 value losses value losses value losses
Fixed maturities

U.S. agency bonds — mortgage-backed $ 632,142 $ (5,299) $ 327,339 % (8,424) $ 959,481 $ (13,723)
U.S. agency bonds — other 19,718 (149) — — 19,718 (149)
Non-U.S. government and supranational bonds 1,909 ()] 25,192 (1,711) 27,101 (1,713)
Asset-backed securities 12,408 (30) 3,017 (49) 15,425 (79)
Corporate bonds 161,661 (1,557) 290,592 (13,769) 452,253 (15,326)
Municipal bonds 39,492 (84) — — 39,492 84)
Total temporarily impaired fixed maturities $ 867,330 $ (7,121) $ 646,140 $ (23,953) $ 1,513,470 $ (31,074)
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MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

4. Investments (continued)

At December 31, 2017, there were approximately 156 securities in an unrealized loss position with a fair value of $1,513,470 and unrealized losses of
$31,074. Of these securities, there were 89 securities that have been in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or greater with a fair value of $646,140 and
unrealized losses of $23,953.

Other-than-temporarily impaired ("OTTI")

The Company performs quarterly reviews of its fixed maturities in order to determine whether declines in fair value below the amortized cost basis were
considered other-than-temporary in accordance with applicable guidance. At September 30, 2018, we have determined that the unrealized losses on fixed
maturities were primarily due to interest rates rising as well as the impact of foreign exchange rate changes on certain foreign currency denominated AFS
fixed maturities since their date of purchase. All fixed maturity securities in the investment portfolio continue to pay the expected coupon payments under the
contractual terms of the securities. Any credit-related impairment related to fixed maturity securities that the Company does not plan to sell and for which the
Company is not more likely than not to be required to sell is recognized in net earnings, with the non-credit related impairment recognized in comprehensive
earnings. Based on our analysis, our fixed maturity portfolio is of high credit quality and we believe we will recover the amortized cost basis of our fixed
maturity securities. We continually monitor the credit quality of our fixed maturity investments to assess if it is probable that we will receive our contractual
or estimated cash flows in the form of principal and interest. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, we recognized $479 in OTTI charges
in earnings on one fixed maturity security. Comparatively, there were no OTTI losses recognized in earnings on the fixed maturity portfolio in the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2017.

The following summarizes the credit ratings of our fixed maturities:

% of Total

Ratings® at September 30, 2018 Amortized cost Fair value fair value
U.S. treasury bonds $ 125  $ 124 —%
U.S. agency bonds 1,509,304 1,450,886 38.2%
AAA 166,512 163,099 4.3%
AA+, AA, AA- 174,111 169,207 4.4%
A+, A, A- 1,136,634 1,113,761 29.3%
BBB+, BBB, BBB- 851,348 839,940 22.1%
BB+ or lower 62,102 64,277 1.7%
Total fixed maturities $ 3,900,136 $ 3,801,294 100.0%
% of Total
Ratings® at December 31, 2017 Amortized cost Fair value fair value
U.S. treasury bonds $ 35,093 $ 35,097 0.9%
U.S. agency bonds 1,495,550 1,487,859 38.8%
AAA 156,631 159,682 4.2%
AA+, AA, AA- 146,264 147,054 3.8%
A+, A, A- 1,089,230 1,106,430 28.9%
BBB+, BBB, BBB- 824,351 845,244 22.1%
BB+ or lower 49,979 51,776 1.3%
Total fixed maturities $ 3,797,098 $ 3,833,142 100.0%

(1) Based on Standard & Poor’s ("S&P"), or equivalent, ratings
b) Other Investments

The table below shows our portfolio of other investments:

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
% of Total % of Total
Fair value fair value Fair value fair value
Investment in limited partnerships $ 3,554 15.7% $ 5,100 77.3%
Other 19,032 84.3% 1,500 22.7%
Total other investments $ 22,586 100.0% $ 6,600 100.0%

The Company has a remaining unfunded commitment on its investment in limited partnerships of approximately $414 at September 30, 2018
(December 31, 2017 - $306).
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

4. Investments (continued)

The Company also has a remaining unfunded commitment on its other investments of approximately $7,468 at September 30, 2018. There were no such
commitments outstanding at December 31, 2017.

c) Net Investment Income

Net investment income was derived from the following sources:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, For the Nine Months Ended September 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017

Fixed maturities $ 32,443  $ 30,496 $ 97,485 $ 91,954
Cash and cash equivalents 905 899 1,596 1,328
Loan to related party 1,658 913 4,651 2,441
Other 471 569 1,061 1,460

35,477 32,877 104,793 97,183
Investment expenses (1,058) (1,927) (3,245) (5,586)
Net investment income $ 34,419 $ 30,950 $ 101,548 $ 91,597

d) Readlized Gains (Losses) on Investment

Realized gains or losses on the sale of investments are determined on the basis of the first in first out cost method. The following provides an analysis of
net realized gains on investment included in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 Gross gains Gross losses Net

AFS fixed maturities $ 40 $ (558) $ (518)
Other investments 293 — 293
Net realized gains (losses) on investment $ 333 $ (558) $ (225)
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2017 Gross gains Gross losses Net

AFS fixed maturities $ 1,366  $ 997) $ 369
Other investments 5,490 — 5,490
Net realized gains (losses) on investment $ 6,856 $ 997) $ 5,859
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 Gross gains Gross losses Net

AFS fixed maturities $ 2979 $ (5,256) $ (2,277)
Other investments 1,995 — 1,995
Net realized gains (losses) on investment $ 4974 $ (5,256) $ (282)
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2017 Gross gains Gross losses Net

AFS fixed maturities $ 3,854 $ (1,253) $ 2,601
Other investments 5,715 — 5,715
Net realized gains (losses) on investment $ 9,569 $ (1,253) $ 8,316

Proceeds from sales of AFS fixed maturities were $20,198 and $185,089 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, respectively (2017 -
$30,440 and $116,306, respectively).
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4. Investments (continued)

Net unrealized (losses) gains on investments, including those allocated to discontinued operations and classified as held for sale, were as follows:

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
Fixed maturities $ (119,919) $ 20,586
Other investments — 1,381
Total net unrealized (losses) gains (119,919) 21,967
Deferred income tax (59) (78)
Net unrealized (losses) gains, net of deferred income tax $ (119,978) $ 21,889
Change, net of deferred income tax $ (141,867) $ 42,605

The portion of unrealized gains recognized in net income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 that are related to other
investments still held at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017

Net gains recognized in net income on other investments during the period $ 293 $ 5,490

Net realized gains recognized on other investments divested during the period (758) (5,490)
Net unrealized losses recognized on other investments still held at end of period $ (465) $ =

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017

Net gains recognized in net income on other investments during the period $ 1,995 $ 5,715

Net realized gains recognized on other investments divested during the period (1,637) (5,715)
Net unrealized gains recognized on other investments still held at end of period $ 358 $ =

e) Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

We are required to maintain assets on deposit to support our reinsurance operations and to serve as collateral for our reinsurance liabilities under various
reinsurance agreements. We also utilize trust accounts to collateralize business with our reinsurance counterparties. These trust accounts generally take the
place of letter of credit requirements. The assets in trust as collateral are primarily cash and highly rated fixed maturities. The fair value of our restricted
assets was as follows:

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017

Restricted cash — third party agreements $ 20,884 $ 21,889
Restricted cash — related party agreements 149,112 73,016
Total restricted cash 169,996 94,905
Restricted investments — in trust for third party agreements at fair value (amortized cost: 2018 — $75,279;

2017 - $212,507) 75,233 211,331
Restricted investments AFS — in trust for related party agreements at fair value (amortized cost: 2018 —

$2,515,190; 2017 — $2,281,668) 2,447,970 2,294,367
Restricted investments HTM — in trust for related party agreements at fair value (amortized cost: 2018 —

$1,032,885; 2017 — $1,097,801) 1,019,741 1,125,626
Total restricted investments 3,542,944 3,631,324
Total restricted cash and investments $ 3,712,940 $ 3,726,229

5. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
(a) Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair Value Measurements — ASC Topic 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures" ("ASC 820") defines fair value as the price that would be
received upon the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between open market participants at the measurement date.
Additionally, ASC 820 establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of
unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the
reliability of inputs as follows:

. Level 1 — Valuations based on unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities that we have the ability to access. Since valuations
are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available in an active market, valuation
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5. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)

of these products does not entail a significant degree of judgment. Examples of assets and liabilities utilizing Level 1 inputs include: U.S. Treasury
bonds;

. Level 2 — Valuations based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in
inactive markets, or valuations based on models where the significant inputs are observable (e.g. interest rates, yield curves, prepayment speeds,
default rates, loss severities, etc.) or can be corroborated by observable market data. Examples of assets and liabilities utilizing Level 2 inputs
include: U.S. government-sponsored agency securities; non-U.S. government and supranational obligations; commercial mortgage-backed securities
("CMBS"); collateralized loan obligations ("CLO"); corporate and municipal bonds; and

. Level 3 — Valuations based on models where significant inputs are not observable. The unobservable inputs reflect our own assumptions about
assumptions that market participants would use. Examples of assets and liabilities utilizing Level 3 inputs include: an investment in preference
shares of a start-up insurance producer.

The availability of observable inputs can vary and is affected by a wide variety of factors, including, for example, the type of financial instrument, whether
the financial instrument is new and not yet established in the marketplace, and other characteristics particular to the transaction. To the extent that valuation is
based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires significantly more judgment.
Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised by management in determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3. We use prices and
inputs that are current at the measurement date. In periods of market dislocation, the observability of prices and inputs may be reduced for many instruments.
This condition could cause an instrument to be reclassified between levels.

For investments that have quoted market prices in active markets, the Company uses the quoted market prices as fair value and includes these prices in the
amounts disclosed in the Level 1 hierarchy. The Company receives the quoted market prices from a third party nationally recognized provider, the Pricing
Service. When quoted market prices are unavailable, the Company utilizes the Pricing Service to determine an estimate of fair value. The fair value estimates
are included in the Level 2 hierarchy. The Company will challenge any prices for its investments which are considered not to be representation of fair value.
If quoted market prices and an estimate from the Pricing Service are unavailable, the Company produces an estimate of fair value based on dealer quotations
for recent activity in positions with the same or similar characteristics to that being valued or through consensus pricing of a pricing service. The Company
determines whether the fair value estimate is in the Level 2 or Level 3 hierarchy depending on the level of observable inputs available when estimating the
fair value. The Company bases its estimates of fair values for assets on the bid price as it represents what a third party market participant would be willing to
pay in an orderly transaction.

ASC 825, "Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instruments", requires all entities to disclose the fair value of their financial instruments, both assets
and liabilities recognized and not recognized in the balance sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate fair value. The following describes the valuation
techniques used by the Company to determine the fair value of financial instruments held at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

U.S. government and U.S. agency — Bonds issued by the U.S. Treasury, the Federal Home Loan Bank, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation,
Government National Mortgage Association, Federal National Mortgage Association and the Federal Farm Credit Banks Funding Corporation. The fair
values of U.S. treasury bonds are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and are included in the Level 1 fair value hierarchy. We believe the market
for U.S. treasury bonds is an actively traded market given the high level of daily trading volume. The fair values of U.S. agency bonds are determined using
the spread above the risk-free yield curve. As the yields for the risk-free yield curve and the spreads for these securities are observable market inputs, the fair
values of U.S. agency bonds are included in the Level 2 fair value hierarchy.

Non-U.S. government and supranational bonds — These securities are generally priced by independent pricing services. The Pricing Service may use
current market trades for securities with similar quality, maturity and coupon. If no such trades are available, the Pricing Service typically uses analytical
models which may incorporate spreads, interest rate data and market/sector news. As the significant inputs used to price non-U.S. government and
supranational bonds are observable market inputs, the fair values of non-U.S. government and supranational bonds are included in the Level 2 fair value
hierarchy.

Asset-backed securities — These securities comprise CMBS and CLO originated by a variety of financial institutions that on acquisition are rated
BBB-/Baa3 or higher. These securities are priced by independent pricing services and brokers. The pricing provider applies dealer quotes and other available
trade information, prepayment speeds, yield curves and credit spreads to the valuation. As the significant inputs used to price the CMBS and CLO are
observable market inputs, the fair value of the CMBS and CLO securities are included in the Level 2 fair value hierarchy.

Corporate bonds — Bonds issued by corporations that on acquisition are rated BBB-/Baa3 or higher. These securities are generally priced by independent
pricing services. The spreads are sourced from broker/dealers, trade prices and the new issue market. Where pricing is unavailable from pricing services, we
obtain non-binding quotes from broker-dealers. As the significant inputs used to price corporate bonds are observable market inputs, the fair values of
corporate bonds are included in the Level 2 fair value hierarchy.

Municipal bonds — Bonds issued by U.S. state and municipality entities or agencies. The fair values of municipal bonds are generally priced by
independent pricing services. The pricing services typically use spreads obtained from broker-dealers, trade prices and the new issue market. As the
significant inputs used to price the municipal bonds are observable market inputs, municipal bonds are included in the Level 2 fair value hierarchy.
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5. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)

Other investments — Includes unquoted investments comprised of investments in limited partnerships and other investments which includes investments
in lending vehicles as well as investments in start-up insurance entities. The fair values of the limited partnerships are determined by the fund manager based
on recent filings, operating results, balance sheet stability, growth and other business and market sector fundamentals. The fair value of these investments are
measured using the NAV practical expedient and therefore have not been categorized within the fair value hierarchy. If there is a reporting lag between the
current period end and reporting date of the latest available fund valuation, we estimate fair values by starting with the most recently available valuation and
adjusting for return estimates as well as any subscriptions and distributions that took place during the current period. The fair value of the other investments,
including those investments in lending vehicles and start-up insurance entities, was determined using recent private market transactions and as such, the fair
value is included in the Level 3 fair value hierarchy.

Cash and cash equivalents (including restricted amounts), accrued investment income, reinsurance balances receivable, and certain other assets and
liabilities — The carrying values reported in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets for these financial instruments approximate their fair value due to
their short term nature and are classified as Level 2.

Loan to related party — The carrying value reported in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets for this financial instrument approximates its fair
value and it is included in the Level 2 hierarchy.

Senior notes — The amount reported in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets for these financial instruments represents the carrying value of the
notes. The fair values are based on indicative market pricing obtained from a third-party service provider and as such, are included in the Level 2 hierarchy.

(b) Eair Value Hierarchy

The Company’s estimates of fair value for financial assets and financial liabilities are based on the framework established in ASC 820. The framework is
based on the inputs used in valuation and gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets and requires that observable inputs be used in the
valuations when available. The disclosure of fair value estimates in the ASC 820 hierarchy is based on whether the significant inputs into the valuation are
observable. In determining the level of the hierarchy in which the estimate is disclosed, the highest priority is given to unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs that reflect the Company’s significant market assumptions.

At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we classified our financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the following
valuation hierarchy:

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other Significant Fair Value Based on

Identical Assets (Level Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs NAV Practical
September 30, 2018 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Expedient Total Fair Value
AFS fixed maturities
U.S. treasury bonds $ 124 $ — — 3 — 124
U.S. agency bonds — mortgage-backed — 1,427,196 — — 1,427,196
U.S. agency bonds — other — 23,690 — — 23,690
Non-U.S. government and supranational
bonds — 20,845 — — 20,845
Asset-backed securities — 225,204 — — 225,204
Corporate bonds — 1,084,494 — — 1,084,494
Other investments — — 19,032 3,554 22,586
Total $ 124 $ 2,781,429 $ 19,032 $ 3,554 $ 2,804,139
As a percentage of total assets —% 42.6% 0.3% 0.1% 43.0%
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5. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other Significant Fair Value Based on

Identical Assets (Level Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs NAV Practical
December 31, 2017 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Expedient Total Fair Value
AFS fixed maturities
U.S. treasury bonds $ 35097 $ — — 3 — 3 35,097
U.S. agency bonds — mortgage-backed — 1,468,140 — — 1,468,140
U.S. agency bonds — other — 19,719 — — 19,719
Non-U.S. government and supranational
bonds — 30,898 — — 30,898
Asset-backed securities — 228,393 — — 228,393
Corporate bonds — 925,269 — — 925,269
Other investments — — 1,500 5,100 6,600
Total $ 35,097 $ 2,672,419 $ 1,500 $ 5,100 $ 2,714,116
As a percentage of total assets 0.5% 40.2% —% 0.1% 40.8%

The Company utilizes a Pricing Service to assist in determining the fair value of our investments; however, management is ultimately responsible for all
fair values presented in the Company’s financial statements. This includes responsibility for monitoring the fair value process, ensuring objective and reliable
valuation practices and pricing of assets and liabilities and pricing sources. The Company analyzes and reviews the information and prices received from the
Pricing Service to ensure that the prices represent a reasonable estimate of the fair value.

The Pricing Service was utilized to estimate fair value measurements for 100.0% and 99.8% of our fixed maturities at September 30, 2018 and December
31, 2017, respectively. The Pricing Service utilizes market quotations for fixed maturity securities that have quoted market prices in active markets. Since
fixed maturities other than U.S. treasury bonds generally do not trade actively on a daily basis, the Pricing Service prepares estimates of fair value
measurements using relevant market data, benchmark curves, sector groupings and matrix pricing and these have been classified as Level 2.

At December 31, 2017, 0.2% of the fixed maturities are valued using the market approach. Three securities or approximately $9,489 of Level 2 fixed
maturities, were priced using a quotation from a broker and/or custodian as opposed to the Pricing Service due to lack of information available. At
September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we have not adjusted any pricing provided to us based on the review performed by our investment managers.
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 and there were no transfers to or from Level 3 during the periods represented by these Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(c) Level 3 Financial Instruments

At September 30, 2018, the Company has other investments of $19,032 (December 31, 2017 - $1,500) including investments in lending vehicles as well as
investments in start-up insurance entities, the fair value of each was determined using recent private market transactions. Due to the significant unobservable
inputs in these valuations, the Company includes the estimate of the fair value of these unquoted investments as Level 3. During the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, there have been no transfers into or out of Level 3.

(d) Financial Instruments not measured at Fair Value

The following table presents the fair value and carrying value or principal amount of the financial instruments not measured at fair value:

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
Financial Assets Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
HTM - corporate bonds $ 974,947 $ 962,860 $ 1,037,464 $ 1,065,245
HTM — municipal bonds 57,938 56,881 60,337 60,381
Total financial assets $ 1,032,885 $ 1,019,741 $ 1,097,801 $ 1,125,626
Financial Liabilities
Senior Notes - MHLA - 6.625% $ 110,000 $ 75,812 $ 110,000 $ 101,200
Senior Notes - MHNC - 7.75% 152,500 124,135 152,500 149,029
Total financial liabilities $ 262,500 $ 199,947 $ 262,500 $ 250,229
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6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The goodwill and intangible assets are assigned to our Diversified Reinsurance segment. The following table shows the change in the carrying value of
goodwill and intangible assets held:

Goodwill Intangible Assets Total
December 31, 2016 $ 57,192 $ 20,523 $ 77,715
Amortization — (2,132) (2,132)
December 31, 2017 $ 57,192 $ 18,391 $ 75,583
Amortization — (1,387) (1,387)
Impairment losses (57,192) (17,004) (74,196)
September 30, 2018 $ — 3 —  $ —

The goodwill and intangible assets are subject to annual impairment testing on October 1 or when “triggering events” occur or circumstances change that
could potentially reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. Goodwill is considered impaired if the carrying amount of the reporting
unit exceeds the fair value.

The announced sale of our U.S. treaty reinsurance operations resulted in a triggering event and consequently during the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018, the Company has written off the remaining balance of goodwill and intangible assets. The goodwill and intangible assets were deemed
to be permanently impaired due to the sale of the U.S. treaty reinsurance renewal rights and the anticipated sale of the U.S. Diversified Reinsurance business.
Please refer to "Note 8. Discontinued Operations" for further details of this disposal. The Company recognized an impairment loss of $74,196 as a result of
these dispositions, which is presented in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income as part of the loss from discontinued operations for the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2018. No impairment was recorded during the same periods in 2017.

The following tables show the analysis of goodwill and intangible assets classified as held for sale at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 (please
refer to "Note 8. Discontinued Operations" for further details):

Accumulated Accumulated

September 30, 2018 Gross Amortization Impairment Net Useful Life
Goodwill $ 58,992 $ — 3 (58,992) $ —  Indefinite
State licenses 4,527 — (4,527) —  Indefinite
Customer relationships 51,400 (38,923) (12,477) — 15 years double declining
Net balance $ 114919 $ (38,923) $ (75,996) $ —

Accumulated Accumulated
December 31, 2017 Gross Amortization Impairment Net Useful Life
Goodwill $ 58,992 $ — (1,800) $ 57,192 Indefinite
State licenses 4,527 — — 4,527  Indefinite
Customer relationships 51,400 (37,536) — 13,864 15 years double declining
Net balance $ 114919 $ (37,536) $ (1,800) $ 75,583

7. Long-Term Debt
Senior Notes

At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, Maiden Holdings and its wholly owned subsidiary, Maiden NA, both have an outstanding public debt
offering of senior notes, (the "Senior Notes"). The 2013 Senior Notes issued by the subsidiary are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Maiden Holdings.
The Senior Notes are unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Company. As discussed in "Note 1. Basis of Presentation", the transactions
contemplated by the Master Transaction Agreement are expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2018 subject to regulatory approvals and customary closing
conditions. The Company’s current analysis indicates that the conditions to redeem the 2013 Senior Notes as stipulated by the securities may exist. Should
final analysis support such a conclusion, the Company expects to redeem all of the $152,500 2013 Senior Notes at that time pursuant to the terms of the
underlying securities.
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7. Long-Term Debt (continued)

The following table details the Company's Senior Notes issuances as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

September 30, 2018 2016 Senior Notes 2013 Senior Notes Total

Principal amount $ 110,000 $ 152,500 $ 262,500
Less: unamortized issuance costs 3,622 4,238 7,860
Carrying value $ 106,378  $ 148,262  $ 254,640
December 31, 2017 2016 Senior Notes 2013 Senior Notes Total

Principal amount $ 110,000 $ 152,500 $ 262,500
Less: unamortized issuance costs 3,654 4,364 8,018
Carrying value $ 106,346  $ 148,136  $ 254,482

Other details:

Original debt issuance costs $ 3,715 $ 5,054
Maturity date June 14, 2046 Dec 1, 2043
Earliest redeemable date (for cash) June 14, 2021 Dec 1, 2018
Coupon rate 6.625% 7.75%
Effective interest rate 7.07% 8.04%

The interest expense incurred on the Senior Notes for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 was $4,776 and $14,329, respectively (2017 -
$4,776 and $18,218, respectively) of which $1,342 was accrued at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. The issuance costs related to the
Senior Notes were capitalized and are being amortized over the life of the Senior Notes. The amount of amortization expense for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2018 was $53 and $158, respectively (2017 - $53 and $212, respectively).

On June 27, 2017, we fully redeemed all of the 2012 Senior Notes using a portion of the proceeds from the Preference Shares - Series D issuance as
previously disclosed in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. The 2012 Senior Notes were redeemed at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of $100,000 plus accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount being redeemed up to, but not including, the
redemption date. As a result, the Company accelerated the amortization of the remaining 2012 Senior Note issuance cost of $2,809 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2017.

8. Discontinued Operations

Sale of U.S. Treaty Reinsurance operations

As described in "Note 1. Basis of Presentation", on August 29, 2018, the Company entered into a Renewal Rights transaction with TransRe. The Company
continues to earn premiums and remain liable for losses occurring subsequent to August 29, 2018 for any policies in force prior to and as of August 29, 2018,
until those policies expire. Subsequently, on August 31, 2018, the Company entered into a Master Transaction Agreement with Enstar.

The Company estimated the fair value of the net assets held for sale to be based on the estimated selling price less costs to sell and was classified as Level
2 within the fair value hierarchy as of September 30, 2018. The classes of assets and liabilities to be sold and classified as held for sale as of September 30,
2018 and December 31, 2017 consist of the following:
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ASSETS

Fixed maturities, available-for-sale, at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Accrued investment income

Reinsurance balances receivable, net
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses
Deferred commission and other acquisition expenses
Goodwill and intangible assets, net

Other assets

Total assets held for sale

LIABILITIES

Reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses
Unearned premiums

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities held for sale

MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

September 30, 2018  December 31, 2017
(Unaudited)

$ 1,153,793 1,336,854

16,723 13,449

34,956 28,679

6,575 6,195

227,454 272,549

75,197 92,728

50,532 59,393

— 75,583

50,256 16,388

$ 1,615,486 1,901,818

$ 1,098,119 1,160,526

224,794 246,156

16,705 42,726

$ 1,339,618 1,449,408

The following table summarizes the major classes of line items constituting the total loss from discontinued operations for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, in which the results of operations of the discontinued operations are presented in the Condensed

Consolidated Statements of Income:

Gross premiums written

Net premiums written

Net premiums earned

Net investment income

Net loss and loss adjustment expenses
Commission and other acquisition expenses
General and administrative expenses
Amortization of intangible assets

For the Three Months Ended September 30,

For the Nine Months Ended September 30,

(Loss) income from discontinued operations before income taxes

Loss on disposal of discontinued operations
Income tax benefit (expense)

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax

2018 2017 2018 2017
$ $ 187,971 $ 492,222 608,835
$ $ 184,653 $ 479,640 598,536
196,588 502,156 562,038
9,873 29,729 31,895
(165,121) (371,085) (454,549)
(48,110) (122,109) (137,759)
(4,053) (21,046) (14,091)
(533) (1,387) (1,599)
(11,356) 16,258 (14,065)
— (66,697) —
1,448 6,103 (2,995)
$ $ (9,908) $ (44,336) $ (17,060)

The loss on disposal from discontinued operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 includes the impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets of $74,196 that was recognized due to the sale of Maiden US partly offset by the proceeds of the sale of the Renewal Rights of $7,500.
Please refer to "Note 6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets" for additional information regarding the Company's impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

that was recognized during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018.
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9. Reserve for Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The Company uses both historical experience and industry-wide loss development factors to provide a reasonable basis for estimating future losses. In the
future, certain events may be beyond the control of management, such as changes in law, judicial interpretations of law, and inflation, which may favorably or
unfavorably impact the ultimate settlement of the Company’s loss and LAE reserves.

The anticipated effect of inflation is implicitly considered when estimating liabilities for loss and LAE. While anticipated changes in claim costs due to
inflation are considered in estimating the ultimate claim costs, changes in average severity of claims are caused by a number of factors that vary with the
individual type of policy written. Ultimate losses are projected based on historical trends adjusted for implemented changes in underwriting standards, policy
provisions, and general economic trends. Those anticipated trends are monitored based on actual development and are modified if necessary.

The reserving process begins with the collection and analysis of paid losses and incurred claims data for each of our contracts. While reserves are
reviewed on a contract by contract basis, paid losses and incurred claims data is also aggregated into reserving segments. The segmental data is disaggregated
by reserving class and further disaggregated by either accident year (i.e. the year in which the loss event occurred) or by underwriting year (i.e. the year in
which the contract generating the premium and losses incepted). The Company uses underwriting year information to analyze our Diversified Reinsurance
segment and subsequently allocate reserves to the respective accident years. Our reserve for loss and LAE comprises:

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
Reserve for reported loss and LAE $ 1,577,494 $ 1,393,560
Reserve for losses incurred but not reported ("IBNR") 1,274,191 993,162
Reserve for loss and LAE $ 2,851,685 $ 2,386,722

The following table represents a reconciliation of our beginning and ending gross and net loss and LAE reserves:

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017
Gross loss and LAE reserves, January 1 $ 2,386,722 $ 1,845,407
Less: reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses, January 1 24,883 35,948
Net loss and LAE reserves, January 1 2,361,839 1,809,459
Net incurred losses related to:
Current year 1,073,052 979,416
Prior years 250,451 111,192
1,323,503 1,090,608
Net paid losses related to:
Current year (283,477) (273,050)
Prior years (555,718) (501,799)
(839,195) (774,849)
Commuted recoverables 19,929 —
Effect of foreign exchange movements (16,202) 48,622
Net loss and LAE reserves, September 30 2,849,874 2,173,840
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses, September 30 1,811 45,643
Gross loss and LAE reserves, September 30 $ 2,851,685 $ 2,219,483

Effective July 1, 2018, Maiden Bermuda commuted its retrocessional quota share agreements with a highly rated global insurer which incepted on January
1, 2015.

Prior period development arises from changes to loss estimates recognized in the current year that relate to loss reserves in previous calendar years. The
development reflects changes in management's best estimate of the ultimate losses under the relevant reinsurance policies after review of changes in actuarial
assessments. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, the Company recognized approximately $212,473 and $250,451, respectively
(2017 - $64,044 and $111,192, respectively) of net adverse development in both the Diversified Reinsurance and AmTrust Reinsurance segments as well as in
its run-off business.

In the Diversified Reinsurance segment, the adverse prior year loss development was $671 and $1,756, respectively for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018 (2017 - $1,079 and $8,482, respectively) primarily due to adverse prior year loss development in facultative reinsurance run-off partially
offset by favorable development in International Auto.
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9. Reserve for Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses (continued)

In the AmTrust Reinsurance segment, the adverse prior year loss development was $210,433 and $247,326 for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018, respectively (2017 - $61,127 and $100,872, respectively). The 2018 development was largely from Workers Compensation which
represented nearly half of the adverse development and was primarily driven by accident years 2014 to 2017, and to a lesser extent, development in European
hospital liability and Commercial Auto and General Liability lines of business. The development in 2017 was primarily due to Worker's Compensation,
General liability as well as Commercial Auto liability lines of business for both Specialty Programs and Small Commercial Business where elevated loss
activity had been observed.

Our Other category also incurred adverse prior year loss development of $1,369 for both the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 (2017 -
$1,838 and $1,838, respectively) due to increased reserves in the run-off of the NGHC Quota Share Reinsurance Agreement.

10. Related Party Transactions

The Founding Shareholders of the Company are Michael Karfunkel, George Karfunkel and Barry Zyskind. Michael Karfunkel passed away on April 27,
2016. Based on each individual's most recent public filing, Leah Karfunkel (wife of Michael Karfunkel) owns or controls approximately 8.2% of the
outstanding shares of the Company and Barry Zyskind (the Company's non-executive chairman) owns or controls approximately 7.7% of the outstanding
shares of the Company. George Karfunkel owns or controls less than 5.0% of the outstanding shares of the Company. Leah Karfunkel and George Karfunkel
are directors of AmTrust, and Barry Zyskind is the president, chief executive officer and chairman of AmTrust. Leah Karfunkel, George Karfunkel and Barry
Zyskind own or control approximately 44.0% of the outstanding shares of AmTrust. AmTrust owns 1.6% of the issued and outstanding shares of National
General Holdings Corporation ("NGHC"), and Leah Karfunkel and the Michael Karfunkel 2005 Family Trust (which is controlled by Leah Karfunkel) owns
41.7% of the outstanding common shares of NGHC.

AmTrust
The following describes transactions between the Company and AmTrust:
AmTrust Quota Share Reinsurance Agreement

Effective July 1, 2007, the Company and AmTrust entered into a master agreement, as amended (the "Master Agreement"), by which they caused Maiden
Bermuda, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and AmTrust's Bermuda reinsurance subsidiary, AmTrust International Insurance, Ltd. ("AII"), to enter
into a quota share reinsurance agreement (the "Reinsurance Agreement") by which AII retrocedes to Maiden Bermuda an amount equal to 40% of the
premium written by subsidiaries of AmTrust, net of the cost of unaffiliated inuring reinsurance and 40% of losses. The Master Agreement further provided
that ATl receives a ceding commission of 31% of ceded written premiums. On June 11, 2008, Maiden Bermuda and AII amended the Reinsurance Agreement
to add Retail Commercial Package Business to the Covered Business. All receives a ceding commission of 34.375% on Retail Commercial Package Business.

On July 1, 2016, the agreement was renewed through June 30, 2019. The agreement automatically renews for successive three-year periods thereafter
unless AIl or Maiden Bermuda elects to so terminate the Reinsurance Agreement by giving written notice to the other party not less than five months prior to
July 1, 2019 or not less than nine months prior to the expiration of any successive three-year period. Either party is entitled to terminate on thirty days' notice
or less upon the occurrence of certain early termination events, which include a default in payment, insolvency, change in control of AIl or Maiden Bermuda,
run-off, or a reduction of 50% or more of the shareholders' equity of Maiden Bermuda or the combined shareholders' equity of AIl and the AmTrust
subsidiaries. On August 8, 2018, the Company’s and AmTrust’s Board of Directors agreed to extend the renewal provision for the Quota Share Reinsurance
Agreement between Maiden Bermuda and AII. The new written notice date for renewal of the agreement has been extended from September 30, 2018 to
January 31, 2019.

Effective July 1, 2018, the amount AEL cedes to the Company was reduced to 20%.

Additionally, for the Specialty Program portion of Covered Business only, AII will be responsible for ultimate net loss otherwise recoverable from Maiden
Bermuda to the extent that the loss ratio to Maiden Bermuda, which shall be determined on an inception to date basis from July 1, 2007 through the date of
calculation, is between 81.5% and 95%. Above and below the defined corridor, Maiden Bermuda will continue to reinsure losses at its proportional 40% share
per the Reinsurance Agreement.

AmTrust European Hospital Liability Quota Share Agreement (" European Hospital Liability Quota Share")

Effective April 1, 2011, Maiden Bermuda, entered into a quota share reinsurance contract with AEL and AmTrust International Underwriters Limited
("AIUL"), both wholly owned subsidiaries of AmTrust. Pursuant to the terms of the contract, Maiden Bermuda assumed 40% of the premiums and losses
related to policies classified as European Hospital Liability, including associated liability coverages and policies covering physician defense costs, written or
renewed on or after April 1, 2011. The contract also covers policies written or renewed on or before March 31, 2011, but only with respect to losses that
occur, accrue or arise on or after April 1, 2011. The maximum limit of liability attaching shall be €5,000 (€10,000 effective January 1, 2012) or currency
equivalent (on a 100% basis) per original claim for any one original policy. Maiden Bermuda will pay a ceding commission of 5%. The agreement is renewed
through March 31, 2019 and can be terminated at any April 1 by either party on four months notice.

Effective July 1, 2016, the contract was amended such that Maiden Bermuda assumes from AEL 32.5% of the premiums and losses of all policies written
or renewed on or after July 1, 2016 until June 30, 2017 and 20% of all policies written or renewed on or after July 1, 2017.
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10. Related Party Transactions (continued)

The table below shows the effect of both of these quota share arrangements with AmTrust on the Company's results of operations for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, For the Nine Months Ended September 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Gross and net premiums written $ 452,795 $ 420,019 $ 1,518,208 $ 1,575,677
Net premiums earned 491,613 451,372 1,472,614 1,492,948
Net loss and LAE (579,240) (364,574) (1,275,723) (1,080,480)
Commission expenses (152,511) (138,171) (456,861) (460,667)

Collateral provided to AmTrust
a) AmTrust Quota Share Reinsurance Agreement

In order to provide AmTrust's U.S. insurance subsidiaries with credit for reinsurance on their statutory financial statements, All, as the direct reinsurer of
the AmTrust's insurance subsidiaries, has established trust accounts ("Trust Accounts") for their benefit. Maiden Bermuda has agreed to provide appropriate
collateral to secure its proportional share under the Reinsurance Agreement of AIl's obligations to the AmTrust subsidiaries to whom AII is required to
provide collateral. This collateral may be in the form of (a) assets loaned by Maiden Bermuda to AII for deposit into the Trust Accounts, pursuant to a loan
agreement between those parties, (b) assets transferred by Maiden Bermuda for deposit into the Trust Accounts, (c) a letter of credit obtained by Maiden
Bermuda and delivered to an AmTrust subsidiary on AlIl's behalf, or (d) premiums withheld by an AmTrust subsidiary at Maiden Bermuda's request in lieu of
remitting such premiums to AIl. Maiden Bermuda may provide any or a combination of these forms of collateral, provided that the aggregate value thereof
equals Maiden Bermuda's proportionate share of its obligations under the Reinsurance Agreement with AIl. Maiden Bermuda satisfied its collateral
requirements under the Reinsurance Agreement with AII as follows:

. by lending funds in the amount of $167,975 at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 pursuant to a loan agreement entered into between those
parties. Advances under the loan, are secured by promissory notes. Effective December 18, 2017, the maturity date with respect to each advance shall be the
earliest of (i) June 30, 2019, (ii) such time as there are no remaining obligations due to AmTrust under the Reinsurance Agreement in respect of which such
advance was originally made or (iii) such time as AII is no longer required to secure its proportionate share of such obligations. This loan was assigned by AII
to AmTrust effective December 31, 2014 and is carried at cost. Effective December 18, 2017, interest is payable at a rate equivalent to the Federal Funds
Effective Rate ("Fed Funds") plus 200 basis points per annum. Prior to that date, the interest was payable at a rate equivalent to the one-month LIBOR plus 90
basis points per annum; and

. effective December 1, 2008, the Company entered into a Reinsurer Trust Assets Collateral agreement to provide to AII sufficient collateral to secure
its proportional share of AIl's obligations to the U.S. AmTrust subsidiaries. The amount of the collateral at September 30, 2018 was approximately
$3,351,365 (December 31, 2017 - $3,328,757) and the accrued interest was $22,391 (December 31, 2017 - $20,830). Please refer to "Note 4. (e) Investments"
for additional information.

b) European Hospital Liability Quota Share

AEL requested that Maiden Bermuda provide collateral to secure its proportional share under the European Hospital Liability Quota Share agreement.
Please refer to "Note 4. (e) Investments" for additional information.

Brokerage Agreement

Effective July 1, 2007, the Company entered into a reinsurance brokerage agreement with AIl Reinsurance Broker Ltd. ("AIIB"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of AmTrust. Pursuant to the brokerage agreement, AIIB provides brokerage services relating to the Reinsurance Agreement and the European
Hospital Liability Quota Share agreement for a fee equal to 1.25% of the premium assumed. AIIB is not the Company's exclusive broker. The agreement may
be terminated upon 30 days written notice by either party. Maiden Bermuda recorded approximately $6,145 and $18,408 of reinsurance brokerage expense for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, respectively (2017 - $5,642 and $18,662, respectively) and deferred reinsurance brokerage of $15,297
at September 30, 2018 (December 31, 2017 - $14,741) as a result of this agreement.

Asset Management Agreement

Effective July 1, 2007, the Company entered into an asset management agreement with AIl Insurance Management Limited ("AIIM"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of AmTrust, pursuant to which AIIM has agreed to provide investment management services to the Company. Effective January 1, 2018, AIIM
provides investment management services for a quarterly fee of 0.02125% of the average value of the account. Prior to that date, the fee was payable at a rate
of 0.0375%. The agreement may be terminated upon 30 days written notice by either party. The Company recorded approximately $1,055 and $3,137 of
investment management fees for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, respectively (2017 - $1,927 and $5,586, respectively) as a result of
this agreement.
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10. Related Party Transactions (continued)
Other

The Company entered into time sharing agreements for the lease of aircraft owned by AmTrust Underwriters, Inc. ("AUI"), a wholly owned subsidiary of
AmTrust, and by AmTrust on March 1, 2011 and November 5, 2014, respectively. The agreements automatically renew for successive one-year terms unless
terminated in accordance with the provisions of the agreements. Pursuant to the agreements, the Company will reimburse AUI and AmTrust for actual
expenses incurred as allowed by Federal Aviation Regulations. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, the Company recorded an expense
of $21 and $54, respectively (2017 - $0 and $39, respectively) for the use of the aircraft.

NGHC Quota Share

Maiden Bermuda, effective March 1, 2010, had a 50% participation in the NGHC Quota Share, by which it received 25% of net premiums of the personal
lines automobile business and assumed 25% of the related net losses. On August 1, 2013, the Company received notice from NGHC of the termination of the
NGHC Quota Share effective on that date. The Company and NGHC mutually agreed that the termination is on a run-off basis.

11. Commitments and Contingencies
a) Concentrations of Credit Risk

At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company’s assets where significant concentrations of credit risk may exist include investments, cash
and cash equivalents, loan to related party, reinsurance balances receivable and reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses (presented as part of other assets in
the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet).

The Company's reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses balance at September 30, 2018 was $1,811 (December 31, 2017 - $24,883). At September 30,
2018, 94.6% (December 31, 2017 - 99.5%) of the reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses was due from reinsurers and retrocessionaires with credit ratings
from A.M Best of A+ or better. At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company had no valuation allowance against reinsurance recoverable on
unpaid losses.

The Company manages concentration of credit risk in the investment portfolio through issuer and sector exposure limitations. The Company believes it
bears minimal credit risk in its cash on deposit. The Company also monitors the credit risk related to the loan to related party and its reinsurance balances
receivable. To mitigate credit risk, we generally have a contractual right of offset thereby allowing us to settle claims net of any premiums or loan receivable.
The Company believes these balances as at September 30, 2018 will be fully collectible.

b) Concentrations of Revenue

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, our gross premiums written from AmTrust accounted for $452,795 or 93.5% and
$1,518,208 or 93.2%, respectively, of our total gross premiums written (2017 — $420,019 or 94.8% and $1,575,677 or 95.5%, respectively).

c¢) Dividends Declared
On August 8, 2018, the Company's Board of Directors authorized the following quarterly dividend:

Dividend per Share Payable on: Record date:
Common shares $0.05 October 15, 2018 October 1, 2018

d) Redemption of 2013 Senior Notes

As discussed in "Note 1. Basis of Presentation”, the transactions contemplated by the Master Transaction Agreement are expected to close in the fourth
quarter of 2018 subject to regulatory approvals and customary closing conditions. The Company's current analysis indicates that the conditions to redeem the
2013 Senior Notes as stipulated by the securities may exist. Should final analysis support such a conclusion, the Company expects to redeem all of the
$152,500 2013 Senior Notes at that time pursuant to the terms of the underlying securities.

e) Legal Proceedings

Except as noted below, the Company is not a party to any material legal proceedings. From time to time, the Company is subject to routine legal
proceedings, including arbitrations, arising in the ordinary course of business. These legal proceedings generally relate to claims asserted by or against the
Company in the ordinary course of insurance or reinsurance operations. Based on the Company's opinion, the eventual outcome of these legal proceedings is
not expected to have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or results of operations.

In April 2009, the Company learned that Bentzion S. Turin, the former Chief Operating Officer, General Counsel and Secretary of Maiden Holdings and
Maiden Bermuda, sent a letter to the U.S. Department of Labor claiming that his employment with the Company was terminated in retaliation for corporate
whistleblowing in violation of the whistleblower protection provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Mr. Turin alleged that he was terminated for
raising concerns regarding corporate governance with respect to the negotiation of the terms of the Trust Preferred Securities Offering. He seeks reinstatement
as Chief Operating Officer, General Counsel and Secretary of Maiden Holdings and Maiden Bermuda, back pay and legal fees incurred. On December 31,
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11. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

2009, the U.S. Secretary of Labor found no reasonable cause for Mr. Turin’s claim and dismissed the complaint in its entirety. Mr. Turin objected to the
Secretary's findings and requested a hearing before an administrative law judge in the U.S. Department of Labor. The Company moved to dismiss Mr. Turin's
complaint, and its motion was granted by the Administrative Law Judge on June 30, 2011.

On July 13, 2011, Mr. Turin filed a petition for review of the Administrative Law Judge's decision with the Administrative Review Board in the U.S.
Department of Labor. On March 29, 2013, the Administrative Review Board reversed the dismissal of the complaint on procedural grounds, and remanded
the case to the administrative law judge. The administrative hearing began in September 2014, and we expect the hearings to conclude in 2018. The Company
believes that it had good and sufficient reasons for terminating Mr. Turin's employment and that the claim is without merit. The Company will continue to
vigorously defend itself against this claim.

12. Earnings per Common Share

The following is a summary of the elements used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per common share:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017

Numerator:

Net loss from continuing operations $ (229,132) $ (45,146)

Add: net (income) loss from continuing operations attributable to noncontrolling interests (62) 3

Net loss attributable to Maiden from continuing operations (229,194) (45,143)

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax expense (71,100) (9,908)

Net loss attributable to Maiden (300,294) (55,051)

Dividends on preference shares — Series A, C and D (8,545) (8,545)

Amount allocated to participating common shareholders(®) ) (6)

Net loss allocated to Maiden common shareholders $ (308,847) $ (63,602)

Denominator:

Weighted average number of common shares — basic and diluted 83,089,172 85,859,201
Basic and diluted loss from continuing operations per share attributable to Maiden common shareholders $ (2.86) $ (0.62)
Basic and diluted loss from discontinued operations per share attributable to Maiden common shareholders (0.86) (0.12)

Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to Maiden common shareholders: $ 3.72) $ (0.74)

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017

Numerator:

Net loss from continuing operations $ (230,873) $ (27,828)

Add: net (income) loss from continuing operations attributable to noncontrolling interests (180) 34

Net loss attributable to Maiden from continuing operations (231,053) (27,794)

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax expense (44,336) (17,060)

Net loss attributable to Maiden (275,389) (44,854)

Dividends on preference shares — Series A, C and D (25,636) (20,611)

Amount allocated to participating common shareholders™® 17) 17)

Net loss allocated to Maiden common shareholders $ (301,042) $ (65,482)

Denominator:

Weighted average number of common shares — basic and diluted 83,085,441 86,256,481
Basic and diluted loss from continuing operations per share attributable to Maiden common shareholders $ (3.09) $ (0.56)
Basic and diluted loss from discontinued operations per share attributable to Maiden common shareholders (0.53) (0.20)

Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to Maiden common shareholders: $ (3.62) $ (0.76)

(1) This represents earnings allocated to the holders of non-vested restricted shares issued to the Company's employees under the 2007 Share Incentive Plan.
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13. Shareholders' Equity
a) Common Shares

At September 30, 2018, the aggregate authorized share capital of the Company is 150,000,000 shares from which the Company has issued 87,932,287
common shares, of which 82,942,737 common shares are outstanding, and 18,600,000 preference shares, all of which are outstanding. The remaining
43,467,713 are undesignated at September 30, 2018. For further discussion on the components of Shareholders' Equity, please refer to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017.

b) Treasury Shares

During the nine months ended September 30, 2018, the Company repurchased a total of 29,391 (2017 - 38,122) shares at an average price per share of
$6.57 (2017 - $15.06) from employees, which represent withholdings in respect of tax obligations on the vesting of restricted shares and performance based
shares.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, 205,000 shares (2017 - 2,015,700) were repurchased on the open market at an average price
per share of $3.31 (2017- $7.11) under the Company's share repurchase plan which has a remaining authorization of $74,245 at September 30, 2018
(December 31, 2017 - $74,924).

c¢) Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income

The following tables set forth financial information regarding the changes in the balances of each component of AOCI:

Change in net Foreign currency
unrealized gains on translation
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 investment adjustments Total
Beginning balance $ (96,107) $ 918) $ (97,025)
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassifications (24,656) 4,458 (20,198)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI to net income, net of tax 785 — 785
Net current period other comprehensive (loss) income (23,871) 4,458 (19,413)
Ending balance (119,978) 3,540 (116,438)
Less: AOCI attributable to noncontrolling interest — (69) (69)
Ending balance, Maiden shareholders $ (119,978) $ 3,609 $ (116,369)
Change in net Foreign currency
unrealized gains on translation

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2017 investment adjustments Total
Beginning balance $ 27,866 $ 7629 $ 35,495
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications 24,994 (10,828) 14,166
Amounts reclassified from AOCI to net income, net of tax (3,650) — (3,650)
Net current period other comprehensive income (loss) 21,344 (10,828) 10,516
Ending balance 49,210 (3,199) 46,011
Less: AOCI attributable to noncontrolling interest — (68) (68)
Ending balance, Maiden shareholders $ 49,210 $ (3,131) $ 46,079
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Change in net

Foreign currency

unrealized gains on translation
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 investment adjustments Total
Beginning balance $ 21,889 $ (8,583) 13,306
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassifications (141,907) 12,123 (129,784)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI to net income, net of tax 40 — 40
Net current period other comprehensive (loss) income (141,867) 12,123 (129,744)
Ending balance (119,978) 3,540 (116,438)
Less: AOCI attributable to noncontrolling interest — (69) (69)
Ending balance, Maiden shareholders $ (119,978) $ 3,609 (116,369)

Change in net Foreign currency

unrealized gains on translation
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2017 investment adjustments Total
Beginning balance $ (20,716) $ 35,604 14,888
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications 68,803 (38,803) 30,000
Amounts reclassified from AOCI to net income, net of tax 1,123 — 1,123
Net current period other comprehensive income (loss) 69,926 (38,803) 31,123
Ending balance 49,210 (3,199) 46,011
Less: AOCI attributable to noncontrolling interest — (68) (68)
Ending balance, Maiden shareholders $ 49,210 $ (3,131) 46,079

14. Subsequent Events

On November 9, 2018, the Company signed an agreement ("Enstar Master Agreement") with Enstar, pursuant to which, an Enstar subsidiary would enter
into a retrocession agreement to effect a loss portfolio transfer in which the Enstar subsidiary would assume all of the liabilities for loss reserves as of
June 30, 2018 associated with the quota share reinsurance agreements that Maiden Bermuda has with AmTrust or its subsidiaries. Enstar will assume
$2,675,000 of net loss and loss adjustment expense reserves upon closing, subject to adjustment for paid losses since June 30, 2018. The transaction is subject

to regulatory approvals and other closing conditions.

Both of the Company’s current quota share reinsurance contracts with AmTrust remain in-force. As previously disclosed in "Note 10. Related Party
Transactions", the Company and AmTrust have mutually agreed to extend the notice period of non-renewal for the current Master Agreement until January

31, 2019.
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (this "Form 10-Q" or this "Report").
References in this Form 10-Q to the terms "we", "us", "our", "the Company" or other similar terms mean the consolidated operations of Maiden Holdings,
Ltd. and its subsidiaries, unless the context requires otherwise. References in this Form 10-Q to the term "Maiden Holdings" means Maiden Holdings, Ltd.
only. Certain reclassifications have been made for 2017 to conform to the 2018 presentation and have no impact on consolidated net income and total equity

previously reported.
Note on Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes projections concerning financial information and statements concerning future economic performance and
events, plans and objectives relating to management, operations, products and services, and assumptions underlying these projections and statements. These
projections and statements are forward-looking statements within the meaning of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and are not historical
facts but instead represent only our belief regarding future events, many of which, by their nature, are inherently uncertain and outside our control. These
projections and statements may address, among other things, our strategy for growth, product development, financial results and reserves. Our actual results
and financial condition may differ, possibly materially, from these projections and statements and therefore you should not place undue reliance on
them. Factors that could cause our actual results and financial condition to differ, possibly materially, from those in the specific projections and statements are
discussed throughout this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and in "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of Part I
of our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") on March 1, 2018, however these factors should not be
construed as exhaustive. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made and we undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-
looking statement that may be made from time to time, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise, except as required by law.
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Overview

We are a Bermuda-based holding company, primarily focused on serving the needs of regional and specialty insurers in the United States ("U.S."), Europe
and select other global markets by providing innovative reinsurance solutions designed to support their capital needs. We specialize in reinsurance solutions
that optimize financing and risk management by providing coverage within the more predictable and actuarially credible lower layers of coverage and/or
reinsuring risks that are believed to be lower hazard, more predictable and generally not susceptible to catastrophe claims. Our tailored solutions include a
variety of value added services focused on helping our clients grow and prosper.

Our Board of Directors initiated a review of strategic alternatives earlier this year to evaluate ways to increase shareholder value as a result of continuing
higher than targeted combined ratios and lower returns on equity than planned.

On August 29, 2018, we entered into a Renewal Rights Agreement (“Renewal Rights”), with Transatlantic Reinsurance Company ("TransRe"), pursuant to
which we agreed to sell, and TransRe agreed to purchase, Maiden Reinsurance North America, Inc.'s ("Maiden US") rights to: (i) renew its treaty reinsurance
agreements upon their expiration or cancellation, (ii) solicit renewals of and replacement coverages for the treaty reinsurance agreements and (iii) replicate
and use the products and contract forms used in Maiden US’s business. The sale was consummated on August 29, 2018. We continue to earn premiums and
remain liable for losses occurring subsequent to August 29, 2018 for any policies in force prior to and as of August 29, 2018, until those policies expire. The
payment received for sale of the Renewal Rights was $7.5 million, subject to further increases in accordance with the agreement.

On August 31, 2018, we entered into a sale agreement (the “Master Transaction Agreement”), with Enstar Group Limited ("Enstar"), pursuant to which
Maiden Holdings North America, Ltd. ("Maiden NA") will sell, and Enstar will purchase, all of the capital stock of our subsidiary Maiden US, the entity that
conducts our U.S. reinsurance business. Maiden Reinsurance Ltd. ("Maiden Bermuda") will enter into a novation agreement and a retrocession agreement
pursuant to which certain assets and liabilities associated with the U.S. treaty reinsurance business held by Maiden Bermuda will be novated or retroceded to
Cavello Bay Reinsurance Limited (“Cavello”), Enstar’s Bermuda reinsurance affiliate in exchange for a ceding commission of $14.0 million, and (iii) Maiden
Bermuda will provide Enstar with a reinsurance cover for adverse reinsurance cover for loss reserve development up to a maximum of $25,000 when losses
are more than $100,000 in excess of the net loss and loss adjustment expenses recorded as of June 30, 2018. The purchase price for the Maiden US Sale is
$321.5 million payable in cash, which amount is gross of the ceding commission referred to above and subject to certain closing adjustments. The
transactions contemplated by the Master Transaction Agreement are expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2018 subject to regulatory approvals and
customary closing conditions. The Company’s current analysis indicates that the conditions to redeem the 2013 Senior Notes as stipulated by the securities
may exist. Should final analysis support such a conclusion, the Company expects to redeem all of the $152.5 million 2013 Senior Notes at that time pursuant
to the terms of the underlying securities.

As a result of the above decision to divest all of our U.S. reinsurance treaty operations, these operations are now classified as discontinued operations, and
except as explicitly described as held for sale or as discontinued operations, and unless otherwise noted, all discussions and amounts presented herein relate to
the Company's continuing operations, except for net loss, net loss attributable to Maiden and net loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders.

While the transactions contemplated by the Master Transaction Agreement have significantly reduced revenues in our Diversified Reinsurance segment,
we expect to continue to pursue our international reinsurance solutions written through Maiden Bermuda and in our AmTrust Reinsurance segment, also
through Maiden Bermuda. The current AmTrust Financial Services, Inc. ("AmTrust") reinsurance agreements expire on March 31, 2019 and June 30, 2019,
respectively, and are subject to renewal negotiations between AmTrust and us.

We continue to provide reinsurance in Europe through our wholly owned subsidiary, Maiden Bermuda. Internationally, we continue to provide insurance
sales and distribution services through Maiden Global Holdings, Ltd. ("Maiden Global") and its subsidiaries. Maiden Global primarily focuses on providing
branded auto and credit life insurance products through insurer partners to retail clients in the European Union ("EU") and other global markets. These
products also produce reinsurance programs which are underwritten by Maiden Bermuda. Certain international credit life business is written on a primary
basis by Maiden Life Forsdkrings AB ("Maiden LE").

Our principal operating subsidiaries, Maiden Bermuda and Maiden US, each currently has a financial strength rating of "A-" (Excellent, the fourth highest
out of sixteen rating levels) with a negative outlook by A.M. Best Company ("A.M. Best"). Our common shares trade on the NASDAQ Global Select Market
("NASDAQ") under the symbol "MHLD".

Our business consists of two reportable segments: Diversified Reinsurance and AmTrust Reinsurance. As a result of the strategic decision to divest all of
the Company's U.S. treaty reinsurance operations as discussed above, the Company has revised the composition of its reportable segments. Our Diversified
Reinsurance segment now only consists of a portfolio of predominantly property and casualty reinsurance business focusing on regional and specialty
property and casualty insurance companies located primarily in Europe. Our AmTrust Reinsurance segment includes all business ceded by AmTrust to
Maiden Bermuda, primarily the AmTrust Quota Share and the European Hospital Liability Quota Share.

On November 9, 2018, the Company signed an agreement ("Enstar Master Agreement") with Enstar, pursuant to which, an Enstar subsidiary would enter
into a retrocession agreement to effect a loss portfolio transfer in which the Enstar subsidiary would assume all of the liabilities for loss reserves as of
June 30, 2018 associated with the quota share reinsurance agreements that Maiden Bermuda has with AmTrust or its subsidiaries. Enstar will assume $2.675
billion of net loss and loss adjustment expense reserves upon closing, subject to adjustment for paid losses since June 30, 2018. The transaction is subject to
regulatory approvals and other closing conditions.
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Both of the Company’s current quota share reinsurance contracts with AmTrust remain in-force. As previously disclosed, the Company and AmTrust have
mutually agreed to extend the notice period of non-renewal for the current Master Agreement until January 31, 2019.

The reinsurance industry is mature and highly competitive. Reinsurance companies compete on the basis of many factors, including premium rates,
company and underwriter relationships, general reputation and perceived financial strength, the terms and conditions of the products offered, ratings assigned
by independent rating agencies, speed of claims payments, reputation and experience in risks underwritten, capacity and coverages offered and various other
factors. These factors operate at the individual market participant level and generally in the aggregate across the reinsurance industry. In addition, underlying
economic conditions and variations in the reinsurance buying practices of ceding companies, by participant and in the aggregate, contribute to cyclical
movements in rates, terms and conditions and may impact industry aggregate results and subsequently the level of competition in the reinsurance industry.

As market conditions continue to develop, we continue to maintain our adherence to disciplined underwriting by declining business when pricing terms
and conditions do not meet our underwriting standards.

Please refer to "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" section included under Item 7 of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 for further information.

Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 Financial Highlights

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change
Summary Consolidated Statement of Income Data: ($ in thousands except per share data)

Net loss $ (300,232) % (55,054) $ (245,178)
Net loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders (308,839) (63,596) (245,243)
Non-GAAP operating loss() (235,114) (54,159) (180,955)
Basic and diluted loss per common share(®):

Net loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders® (3.72) (0.74) (2.98)
Non-GAAP operating loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders() (2.83) (0.63) (2.20)
Dividends per common share 0.05 0.15 (0.10)
Gross premiums written 484,494 443,001 41,493
Net premiums earned 520,077 457,278 62,799
Underwriting loss()(®) (251,175) (61,362) (189,813)
Net investment income 34,419 30,950 3,469
Combined ratio® 150.7 % 115.6 % 35.1
Annualized non-GAAP operating return on average common shareholders' equity™® (196.7)% (21.6)% (175.1)
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change
Summary Consolidated Statement of Income Data: ($ in thousands except per share data)

Net loss $ (275,209) % (44,888) $ (230,321)
Net loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders (301,025) (65,465) (235,560)
Non-GAAP operating loss() (256,421) (39,881) (216,540)
Basic and diluted loss per common share®):

Net loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders® (3.62) (0.76) (2.86)
Non-GAAP operating loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders(?) (3.09) (0.46) (2.63)
Dividends per common share 0.35 0.45 (0.10)
Gross premiums written 1,629,347 1,650,762 (21,415)
Net premiums earned 1,541,278 1,512,437 28,841
Underwriting loss()() (287,906) (72,197) (215,709)
Net investment income 101,548 91,597 9,951
Combined ratio® 120.7 % 106.3 % 14.4
Annualized non-GAAP operating return on average common shareholders' equity™® (63.8)% (5.3)% (58.5)
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September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017 Change

Consolidated Financial Condition ($ in thousands except per share data)

Total investments and cash and cash equivalents®® $ 4,101,598 $ 3,961,292 $ 140,306

Total assets 6,536,501 6,644,189 (107,688)
Reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses ("loss and LAE") 2,851,685 2,386,722 464,963

Senior notes - principal amount 262,500 262,500 —

Maiden common shareholders' equity 307,554 767,174 (459,620)
Maiden shareholders' equity 772,554 1,232,174 (459,620)
Total capital resources(® 1,035,054 1,494,674 (459,620)
Ratio of debt to total capital resources 25.4% 17.6% 7.8

Book Value

Book value per common share(”) $ 371 $ 925 $ (5.54)
Accumulated dividends per common share 4.27 3.92 0.35

Book value per common share plus accumulated dividends $ 7.98 $ 13.17 $ (5.19)
Diluted book value per common share®) $ 3.70 % 918 % (5.48)

(1) Non-GAAP operating loss, non-GAAP operating loss per common share, non-GAAP operating return on average common equity and underwriting loss income are non-GAAP financial
measures. See "Key Financial Measures" for additional information and a reconciliation to the nearest U.S. GAAP financial measure net income.

(2) Please refer to "Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited) Note 12. Earnings per Common Share" for the calculation of basic and diluted loss per common share.

(3) Underwriting loss is a non-GAAP measure and is calculated as net premiums earned plus other insurance revenue less net loss and LAE, commission and other acquisition expenses and
general and administrative expenses directly related to underwriting activities.

(4) Calculated by adding together the net loss and LAE ratio and the expense ratio.

(5) Total investments and cash and cash equivalents includes both restricted and unrestricted.

(6) Total capital resources is the sum of the Company's principal amount of debt and Maiden shareholders' equity. See "Key Financial Measures" for additional information.

(7) Book value per common share is calculated using Maiden common shareholders’ equity (shareholders' equity excluding the aggregate liquidation value of our preference shares) divided by the
number of common shares outstanding.

(8) Diluted book value per common share is calculated by dividing Maiden common shareholders' equity, adjusted for assumed proceeds from the exercise of dilutive options, by the number of
outstanding common shares plus dilutive options and restricted share units (assuming exercise of all dilutive share based awards).
During a period of loss, the basic weighted average common shares outstanding is used in the denominator of the diluted loss per common share computation

as the effect of including potential dilutive shares would be anti-dilutive.

Key Financial Measures

In addition to the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income, management
uses certain key financial measures, some of which are non-GAAP measures, to evaluate its financial performance and the overall growth in value generated
for the Company’s common shareholders. Management believes that these measures, which may be defined differently by other companies, explain the
Company’s results in a manner that allows for a more complete understanding of the underlying trends in the Company’s business. The non-GA AP measures
should not be viewed as a substitute for those determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP. These key financial measures are:

Non-GAAP operating loss and non-GAAP diluted operating loss per common share: Management believes that the use of non-GAAP operating loss and
non-GAAP diluted operating loss per share enables investors and other users of the Company’s financial information to analyze its performance in a manner
similar to how management analyzes performance. Management also believes that these measures generally follow industry practice and, therefore, allow the
users of financial information to compare the Company’s performance with its industry peer group, and that the equity analysts and certain rating agencies
which follow the Company, and the insurance industry as a whole, generally exclude these items from their analyses for the same reasons. Non-GAAP
operating loss should not be viewed as a substitute for U.S. GAAP net income.

Non-GAAP operating loss is an internal performance measure used by management as these measures focus on the underlying fundamentals of the
Company's operations by excluding, on a recurring basis: (1) net realized gains or losses on investment; (2) total other-than-temporary impairment losses; (3)
foreign exchange gains or losses; and (4) loss and related activity from our NGHC Quota Share run-off operations. It also excludes on a non-recurring basis:
(1) in 2017, accelerated amortization of senior note issuance cost; and (2) in 2018, loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax.

We exclude net realized gains or losses on investment, total other-than-temporary impairment losses and foreign exchange gains or losses as we believe
these are influenced by market opportunities and other factors. We do not believe loss and related activity from our NGHC Quota Share run-off operations,
accelerated amortization of senior note issuance cost and loss from discontinued operations are representative of our ongoing and future business. We believe
all of these amounts are largely independent of our business and future underwriting process and including them distorts the analysis of trends in our
operations.

Underwriting loss is a non-GAAP measure and is calculated as net premiums earned plus other insurance revenue less net loss and LAE, commission and
other acquisition expenses and general and administrative expenses directly related to underwriting
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activities. Management believes that this measure is important in evaluating the underwriting performance of the Company and its segments. This measure is
also a useful tool to measure the profitability of the Company separately from the investment results and is also a widely used performance indicator in the
insurance industry. A reconciliation of the Company's underwriting results can be found in the Company's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
Please refer to "Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited) Note 3. Segment Reporting" for further details.

Non-GAAP operating loss and non-GAAP diluted operating loss per common share can be reconciled to the nearest U.S. GAAP financial measure as
follows:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017
($ in thousands except per share data)
Net loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders $ (308,839) $ (63,596)
Add (subtract):
Net realized losses (gains) on investment 225 (5,859)
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses 479 —
Foreign exchange losses 552 3,550
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax 71,100 9,908
Loss from divested NGHC Quota Share run-off 1,369 1,838
Non-GAAP operating loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders $ (235,114) $ (54,159)
Diluted loss per share attributable to Maiden common shareholders $ 3.72) $ (0.74)
Add (subtract):
Net realized losses (gains) on investment — (0.07)
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses 0.01 —
Foreign exchange losses 0.01 0.04
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax 0.85 0.12
Loss from divested NGHC Quota Share run-off 0.02 0.02
Non-GAAP diluted operating loss per common share $ (2.83) $ (0.63)
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017
($ in thousands except per share data)
Net loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders $ (301,025) $ (65,465)
Add (subtract):
Net realized losses (gains) on investment 282 (8,316)
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses 479 —
Foreign exchange (gains) losses (1,862) 12,193
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax 44,336 17,060
Loss from divested NGHC Quota Share run-off 1,369 1,838
Accelerated amortization of senior note issuance cost — 2,809
Non-GAAP operating loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders $ (256,421) $ (39,881)
Diluted loss per share attributable to Maiden common shareholders $ 362 $ (0.76)
Add (subtract):
Net realized losses (gains) on investment — (0.10)
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses 0.01 —
Foreign exchange (gains) losses (0.03) 0.14
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax 0.53 0.20
Loss from divested NGHC Quota Share run-off 0.02 0.02
Accelerated amortization of senior note issuance cost — 0.04
Non-GAAP diluted operating loss per common share $ (3.09) $ (0.46)

Non-GAAP operating loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders increased by $181.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2018
compared to the same period in 2017. This was largely due to an increased underwriting loss of $189.8 million during the three months ended September 30,
2018 compared to the same period in 2017 particularly caused by both significantly
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higher adverse prior year loss development and reserve strengthening during the period in our AmTrust Reinsurance segment. As a result of these factors, the
total loss ratio increased by 34.4 points year-over-year. Please refer to "Results of Operations - Net Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses" on page 46 for the
reasons regarding the changes in the loss ratio.

Non-GAAP operating loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders increased by $216.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018
compared to the same period in 2017. This was largely due to an increased underwriting loss of $215.7 million during the nine months ended September 30,
2018 compared to the same period in 2017 particularly caused by both significantly higher adverse prior year loss development and reserve strengthening
during the period in our AmTrust Reinsurance segment. As a result of these factors, the total loss ratio increased by 13.8 points year-over-year. This was
partially offset by net investment income which increased $10.0 million compared to the same period in 2017.

Non-GAAP Operating Return on Average Common Equity ("Non-GAAP Operating ROACE"): Management uses non-GAAP operating return on average
common shareholders' equity as a measure of profitability that focuses on the return to common shareholders. It is calculated using non-GAAP operating loss
available to common shareholders (as defined above) divided by average common shareholders' equity. Management has set, as a target, a long-term average
of 15% non-GAAP Operating ROACE, which management believes provides an attractive return to shareholders for the risk assumed from our business.

Non-GAAP Operating ROACE for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 was computed as follows:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, For the Nine Months Ended September 30,
($ in thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Non-GAAP operating loss attributable to Maiden common

shareholders $ (235,114)  $ (54,159) $ (256,421) $ (39,881)

Opening Maiden common shareholders’ equity 640,742 1,035,399 767,174 1,045,797
Ending Maiden common shareholders’ equity 307,554 956,027 307,554 956,027
Average Maiden common shareholders’ equity 474,148 995,713 537,364 1,000,912
Non-GAAP Operating ROACE (196.7)% (21.6)% (63.8)% (5.3)%

Book Value per Common Share and Diluted Book Value per Common Share: Management uses growth in both of these metrics as a prime measure of the
value we are generating for our common shareholders, as management believes that growth in each metric ultimately results in growth in the Company’s
common share price. These metrics are impacted by the Company’s net income and external factors, such as interest rates, which can drive changes in
unrealized gains or losses on our investment portfolio. At September 30, 2018, book value per common share decreased by 59.9% and diluted book value per
common share decreased by 59.7%, compared to December 31, 2017, primarily due to the decrease in retained earnings for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018 caused by our net loss during both periods as well as the decline in AOCI during the period due to unrealized losses on our investment
portfolio. Please see "Liquidity and Capital Resources - Investments" on page 54 for further information on the change in fair value of our fixed maturity
investment portfolio.

Book value and diluted book value per common share at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 were computed as follows:

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017

($ in thousands except share and per share data)
Ending Maiden common shareholders’ equity $ 307,554 $ 767,174
Proceeds from assumed conversion of dilutive options 583 9,416
Numerator for diluted book value per common share calculation $ 308,137  $ 776,590
Common shares outstanding 82,942,737 82,974,895
Shares issued from assumed conversion of dilutive options and restricted share units 349,368 1,627,236
Denominator for diluted book value per common share calculation 83,292,105 84,602,131
Book value per common share $ 371  $ 9.25
Diluted book value per common share $ 370 $ 9.18
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Ratio of Debt to Total Capital Resources: Management uses this non-GAAP measure to monitor the financial leverage of the Company. This measure is
calculated using the total principal amount of debt divided by the sum of total capital resources. The ratio of Debt to Total Capital Resources at September 30,
2018 and December 31, 2017 was computed as follows:

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
($ in thousands)
Senior notes - principal amount $ 262,500 $ 262,500
Maiden shareholders’ equity 772,554 1,232,174
Total capital resources $ 1,035,054 $ 1,494,674
Ratio of debt to total capital resources 25.4% 17.6%

Certain Operating Measures and Relevant Factors

Refer to "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" section included under Item 7 of our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 for a general discussion on "Certain Operating Measures" utilized by the Company and the "Relevant
Factors" associated with these Certain Operating Measures.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Company's critical accounting policies and estimates are discussed in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations" section included under Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, filed with the SEC on March 1, 2018.
The critical accounting policies and estimates should be read in conjunction with "Part I, Item 1 - Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(unaudited) Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies" included in this Form 10Q and "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Note 2. Significant
Accounting Policies" included within the audited Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2017, filed with the SEC on March 1, 2018. There have been no material changes in the application of our critical accounting estimates subsequent to that
report.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our selected unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income data for each of the periods indicated:

($ in thousands)

Gross premiums written

Net premiums written

Net premiums earned

Other insurance revenue

Net loss and LAE

Commission and other acquisition expenses

General and administrative expenses®
Underwriting loss®

Other general and administrative expenses(!)

Net investment income

Net realized (losses) gains on investment

Total other-than-temporary impairment losses
Accelerated amortization of senior note issuance cost
Foreign exchange (losses) gains

Interest and amortization expenses

Income tax benefit (expense)

Net loss from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax
(Income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

Dividends on preference shares

Net loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders

Ratios

Net loss and LAE ratio®

Commission and other acquisition expense ratio®
General and administrative expense ratio®)
Expense ratio®

Combined ratio(”)

For the Three Months Ended September 30,

For the Nine Months Ended September 30,

2018 2017 2018 2017
484,494 443,001  $ 1,629,347 1,650,762
482,806 432,677 % 1,626,485 1,603,414
520,077 457,278  $ 1,541,278 1,512,437

1,870 2,488 7,629 7,816
(600,296) (370,847) (1,323,503) (1,090,608)
(167,618) (145,352) (497,026) (487,771)

(5,208) (4,929) (16,284) (14,071)
(251,175) (61,362) (287,906) (72,197)
(13,728) (10,510) (32,059) (24,090)
34,419 30,950 101,548 91,597
(225) 5,859 (282) 8,316
(479) — (479) —
— — — (2,809)
(552) (3,550) 1,862 (12,193)
4, 4, 4,487 A
829 829 14,48 18,430
7,437 (1,704) 930 1,978
(229,132) (45,146) (230,873) (27,828)
(71,100) (9,908) (44,336) (17,060)
(62) 3 (180) 34
(8,545) (8,545) (25,636) (20,611)
(308,839) (63,596) $ (301,025) (65,465)
115.0% 80.6% 85.5% 71.7%
32.1% 31.6% 32.1% 32.1%
3.6% 3.4% 3.1% 2.5%
35.7% 35.0% 35.2% 34.6%
150.7% 115.6% 120.7% 106.3%

(1)  Underwriting related general and administrative expenses is a non-GAAP measure. Please refer to "General and Administrative Expenses" below for additional information related to these

corporate expenses and the reconciliation to those presented in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income.

(2)  Underwriting loss is a non-GAAP measure and is calculated as net premiums earned plus other insurance revenue less net loss and LAE, commission and other acquisition expenses and

general and administrative expenses directly related to underwriting activities.
(3)  Calculated by dividing net loss and LAE by the sum of net premiums earned and other insurance revenue.

(4)  Calculated by dividing commission and other acquisition expenses by the sum of net premiums earned and other insurance revenue.
(5)  Calculated by dividing general and administrative expenses by the sum of net premiums earned and other insurance revenue.
(6)  Calculated by adding together commission and other acquisition expense ratio and general and administrative expense ratio.

(7)  Calculated by adding together net loss and LAE ratio and the expense ratio.
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Net Loss

Net loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders for the three months ended September 30, 2018 was $308.8 million compared to $63.6 million for
the same period in 2017. The net increase in net loss for the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017 was primarily the
result of the following:

+ increased underwriting loss of $251.2 million compared to an underwriting loss of $61.4 million in the same period in 2017. The higher underwriting
loss was principally due to:

o higher adverse prior year loss development for the AmTrust Reinsurance segment which was $210.4 million during the three months ended
September 30, 2018 compared to $61.1 million for the same period in 2017; and

o partially offset by the impact of higher premiums earned which increased in both our operating segments compared to the same period in 2017.

» realized losses on investment of $0.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to realized gains of $5.9 million for the same
period in 2017; and

* total general and administrative expenses increased by $3.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same period in
2017 due to increases in compensation benefits paid under certain executive separation agreements, greater corporate insurance costs incurred and
higher technology-related expenses.

The unfavorable movements above were offset by the following:

+ net investment income increased by $3.5 million or 11.2%, for the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017 due
to an increase in average yields to 3.3% during the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to 3.1% during the same period in 2017. Also,
average investable assets increased by 5.5% from the same period in 2017. Please refer to the Net Investment Income section below for further
discussion of the movement in average yields.

Net loss attributable to Maiden common shareholders for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 was $301.0 million compared to a net loss of $65.5
million for the same period in 2017. The net decrease in results for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017 was
primarily due to the following:

+ an underwriting loss of $287.9 million compared to an underwriting loss of $72.2 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2017. The
deterioration in the underwriting result was principally due to:

o higher adverse prior year loss development for the AmTrust Reinsurance segment which was $247.3 million during the nine months ended
September 30, 2018 compared to $100.9 million for the same period in 2017; and

o partially offset by the impact of higher premiums earned which increased in both our operating segments compared to the same period in 2017.

+ realized losses on investment of $0.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to realized gains of $8.3 million for the same
period in 2017;

« total general and administrative expenses increased by $10.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same period in
2017 due to increases in compensation benefits paid under certain executive separation agreements, higher audit, legal and other professional fees
incurred and higher technology-related expenses; and

* higher dividends paid to preference shareholders of $25.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to $20.6 million for the
same period in 2017 due to the issuance of Preference Shares - Series D on June 15, 2017.

The unfavorable movements above were offset by the following:

* net investment income increased by $10.0 million or 10.9%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017
largely due to higher average investable assets which grew by 7.9% from the same period in 2017. Please refer to the Net Investment Income section
below for further discussion of the movement in average yields which remained at 3.2% for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to
the same period in 2017;

« lower interest and amortization expenses which decreased by $3.9 million or 21.4% compared to the same period in 2017 due to the redemption of
the 2012 Senior Notes on June 27, 2017. The prior period also included a charge of $2.8 million resulting from the acceleration of the amortization
of the 2012 Senior Notes issuance cost; and

« foreign exchange gains of $1.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to foreign exchange losses of $12.2 million for the
same period in 2017 due to the recent weakening of the euro and British pound against the U.S. dollar.

Net Premiums Written

Net premiums written increased by $50.1 million or 11.6% and $23.1 million or 1.4% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared
to the same periods in 2017, respectively. The tables below compare net premiums written by our reportable segments, reconciled to the total consolidated net
premiums written for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017:
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For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change in

(8 in thousands) Total % of Total Total % of Total $ %
Diversified Reinsurance $ 31,291 6.5% $ 22,484 52% $ 8,807 39.2 %
AmTrust Reinsurance 451,515 93.5% 410,193 94.8% 41,322 10.1 %
Total $ 482,806 100.0% $ 432,677 100.0% $ 50,129 11.6 %
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change in

(8 in thousands) Total % of Total Total % of Total $ %
Diversified Reinsurance $ 109,279 6.7% $ 73,434 46% $ 35,845 48.8 %
AmTrust Reinsurance 1,517,206 93.3% 1,529,980 95.4% (12,774) 0.8)%
Total $ 1,626,485 100.0% $ 1,603,414 100.0% $ 23,071 1.4 %

Net premiums written for the three months ended September 30, 2018 increased by 11.6% compared to the same period in 2017 due to the following:

» AmTrust Reinsurance segment increased by $41.3 million or 10.1% generated by growth in specialty lines of business partially offset by reduced
premiums in workers compensation due to a combination of market conditions and underwriting measures applied by AmTrust during the period.
The increase in net premiums written was also due to the reduction in the utilization of retrocessional capacity in 2018 compared to the same period
in 2017; and

« Diversified Reinsurance segment increased by $8.8 million or 39.2% generated by new account growth and expansion of client relationships in our
European capital solutions business.

Net premiums written for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 increased by 1.4% compared to the same period in 2017 due to the following:

+ Diversified Reinsurance segment increased by $35.8 million or 48.8% due to new account growth and expansion of the Australia Warranty program,

German Auto program and other client relationships in our European capital solutions business during 2018 as well as new business development;

and

* AmTrust Reinsurance segment decreased by $12.8 million or 0.8% mainly due to a combination of market conditions and underwriting measures
applied by AmTrust during the period on Small Commercial Business, particularly workers compensation.

Please refer to the analysis below of our Diversified Reinsurance and AmTrust Reinsurance segments for further details.

Net Premiums Earned

Net premiums earned increased by $62.8 million or 13.7% and $28.8 million or 1.9% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared
to the same periods in 2017, respectively. The tables below compare net premiums earned by our reportable segments, reconciled to the total consolidated net
premiums earned, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change in

(% in thousands) Total % of Total Total % of Total $ %
Diversified Reinsurance $ 28,784 55% $ 20,925 4.6% $ 7,859 37.6%
AmTrust Quota Share Reinsurance 491,293 94.5% 436,353 95.4% 54,940 12.6%
Total $ 520,077 100.0% $ 457,278 100.0% $ 62,799 13.7%
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change in

($ in thousands) Total % of Total Total % of Total $ %
Diversified Reinsurance $ 82,838 54% $ 61,626 41% $ 21,212 34.4%
AmTrust Quota Share Reinsurance 1,458,440 94.6% 1,450,811 95.9% 7,629 0.5%
Total $ 1,541,278 100.0% $ 1,512,437 100.0% $ 28,841 1.9%

NM - not meaningful

Net premiums earned in the AmTrust Reinsurance segment for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 increased by $54.9 million or 12.6%
and $7.6 million or 0.5% compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively, mainly due to growth in net premiums written in the specialty lines of the
AmTrust quota share. Please refer to the analysis of our AmTrust Reinsurance segment on page 50 for further discussion.

Net premiums earned in our Diversified Reinsurance segment for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 increased by $7.9 million or
37.6% and $21.2 million or 34.4% compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively, driven by new client
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development and favorable growth in the German auto programs. Please refer to the analysis of our Diversified Reinsurance segment on page 48 for further
discussion.

Other Insurance Revenue
All of our Other Insurance Revenue is produced by our Diversified Reinsurance segment. Please refer to page 49 for further discussion.
Net Investment Income and Net Realized Gains (Losses) on Investment

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, net investment income increased by $3.5 million or 11.2% and $10.0 million or 10.9%
compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively, partly due to the growth in average investable assets of 5.5% and 7.9% respectively. This was also driven
by the increase in average book yield from 3.1% to 3.3% for the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017, with no
change in the average book yield of 3.2% for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the respective prior period. Also, the increase was
driven by higher interest income on the loan to related party as the terms of the agreement changed effective December 18, 2017.

Net realized losses on investment were $0.2 million and $0.3 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, compared to net realized
gains of $5.9 million and $8.3 million for the same periods in 2017, respectively.

The following table details the Company's average investable assets and average book yield for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018
compared to the same periods in 2017:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, For the Nine Months Ended September 30,
($ in thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Average investable assets®) $ 4,226,404  $ 4,004,898 $ 4,172,955 $ 3,868,964
Average book yield® 3.3% 3.1% 3.2% 3.2%

(1) The average of the Company's investments, cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents and loan to related party at each quarter-end during the period.
(2) Ratio of net investment income over average investable assets at fair value.

Net Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses

Net loss and LAE increased by $229.4 million and $232.9 million during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same
periods in 2017, respectively, due to significant adverse prior year loss development compared to the prior periods. This development, which is discussed in
greater detail in the individual segment discussion and analysis, was primarily in our AmTrust Reinsurance segment where significant reserve strengthening
occurred during the third quarter. The net loss and LAE ratios were 115.0% and 85.5% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to
80.6% and 71.7% for the same periods in 2017, respectively.

Excluding the impact of prior year loss development, our net loss and LAE ratio would have been 74.3% and 69.3% for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018 compared to 66.7% and 64.4% for the same periods in 2017, respectively. The increase in loss ratios reflects higher initial loss ratios on
current year premiums earned in both our Diversified Reinsurance and AmTrust Reinsurance segments factoring in both market conditions and recent loss
trends and experience.

As a result of these factors, as well as the adverse prior year loss development experienced in the AmTrust Reinsurance segment, the combined ratio
increased by 35.1 and 14.4 points for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively.

Commission and Other Acquisition Expenses

Commission and other acquisition expenses increased by $22.3 million or 15.3% and $9.3 million or 1.9% for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively. The commission and other acquisition expense ratios increased slightly to 32.1% for
the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to 31.6% for the prior period in 2017 and remained flat at 32.1% for the nine months ended
September 30, 2018 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2017. The commission and other acquisition expense ratio is largely dependent on the
mix of business within the AmTrust Reinsurance segment and the mix of pro-rata and excess of loss business within the Diversified Reinsurance segment.
Please refer to the reasons for the changes in the combined ratio discussed in the Net Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses section above.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses include expenses which are segregated for analytical purposes as a component of underwriting income. General and
administrative expenses consist of:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, For the Nine Months Ended September 30,
($ in thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
General and administrative expenses — segments $ 5208 $ 4929 $ 16,284 $ 14,071
General and administrative expenses — corporate 13,728 10,510 32,059 24,090
Total general and administrative expenses $ 18,936 $ 15439 $ 48,343 $ 38,161
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Total general and administrative expenses increased by $3.5 million, or 22.7% and increased by $10.2 million, or 26.7%, for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively. The increased expenses for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2018 compared to the respective prior periods was due to higher compensation benefits paid under certain executive separation agreements as well as higher
audit, legal, and other professional fees and technology-related expenses. The general and administrative expense ratio increased to 3.6% and 3.1% for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 from 3.4% and 2.5% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, respectively, as a result of
significantly higher compensation benefits despite higher earned premiums compared to the prior periods.

Interest and Amortization Expenses

The interest and amortization expenses related to Senior Notes were $4.8 million and $14.5 million for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2018 compared to $4.8 million and $18.4 million for the same periods in 2017, respectively. The decrease in interest expense for the nine months ended
September 30, 2018 compared to the prior period was due to the redemption of the 8.0% 2012 Senior Notes on June 27, 2017.

As a result of this redemption, the Company accelerated the amortization of the remaining 2012 Senior Note issuance cost of $2.8 million in the nine
months ended September 30, 2017. Please refer to "Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited) Note 7. Long Term Debt" for details
on the Company’s Senior Notes. The weighted average effective interest rate for the Company's debt was 7.64% for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018 compared to 7.64% and 7.77% for the same periods in 2017, respectively.

Foreign Exchange (Losses) Gains

Net foreign exchange losses amounted to $0.6 million and net foreign exchange gains were $1.9 million during the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018, respectively, compared to net foreign exchange losses of $3.6 million and $12.2 million for the same periods in 2017, respectively.

Income Tax Expense

The Company recorded income tax benefit of $7.4 million and $0.9 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to income
tax expense of $1.7 million and income tax benefit of $2.0 million for the same periods in 2017, respectively. These amounts relate to income tax on the
earnings of our international subsidiaries and state taxes incurred by our U.S. subsidiaries. The effective rate of income tax was 3.1% and 0.4% for the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to (3.9)% and 6.6% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, respectively.

Dividends on Preference Shares

For the three months ended September 30, 2018, dividends paid to preference shareholders remain flat at $8.5 million and increased by $5.0 million or
24.4% for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017. The increase for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 is
attributable to the dividends paid on the Preference Shares - Series D (the "Preference Shares - Series D") that were issued on June 15, 2017 since the same
period in 2017 incurred only $2.5 million of dividends paid on such preference shares. Please refer to "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Note 13.
Shareholders' Equity" included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 for details on the Company’s preference shares.
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Underwriting Results by Reportable Segment

Diversified Reinsurance Segment

The underwriting results and associated ratios for our Diversified Reinsurance segment for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017
were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, For the Nine Months Ended September 30,

($ in thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Gross premiums written $ 31,699 $ 22,982 $ 111,139 $ 75,085
Net premiums written 31,291 22,484 109,279 73,434
Net premiums earned 28,784 20,925 82,838 61,626
Other insurance revenue 1,870 2,488 7,629 7,816
Net loss and LAE (19,764) (13,979) (51,828) (41,548)
Commission and other acquisition expenses (8,961) (6,702) (28,261) (21,982)
General and administrative expenses (4,256) (4,158) (13,330) (11,831)

Underwriting loss $ 2,327) % (1,426) $ (2,952) $ (5,919)
Ratios
Net loss and LAE ratio 64.5% 59.7% 57.3% 59.8%
Commission and other acquisition expense ratio 29.2% 28.6% 31.3% 31.7%
General and administrative expense ratio 13.9% 17.8% 14.7% 17.0%
Expense ratio 43.1% 46.4% 46.0% 48.7%
Combined ratio 107.6% 106.1% 103.3% 108.5%

The combined ratio for the three months ended September 30, 2018 increased to 107.6% compared to 106.1% for the same period in 2017 primarily due to
the following:

» combined ratio increased by 1.5 points for the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017 which reflects higher
initial loss ratios on current year premiums earned during the period partially offset by lower adverse prior year loss development of $0.7 million
compared to $1.1 million during the third quarter of 2017; and

+ excluding prior year loss development, the combined ratio for the three months ended September 30, 2018 would have been 105.4% compared to
101.5% for the same period in 2017.

The combined ratio for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 decreased to 103.3% compared to 108.5% for the same period in 2017. The combined
ratio decreased by 5.2 points primarily due to the following:

+ lower net adverse prior year loss development which was $1.8 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2018, compared to $8.5 million
for the same period in 2017. The 2018 development was due to adverse facultative reinsurance run-off partially offset by favorable development in
International Auto. Prior year adverse loss development during 2017 was primarily from facultative reinsurance run-off lines as well as claims
activity in International auto programs; and

+ excluding prior year loss development, the combined ratio for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 would have been 101.3% compared to
96.3% for the same period in 2017, reflecting higher initial loss ratios on current year premiums earned during the period.

Premiums - Gross premiums written increased by $8.7 million or 37.9% and increased by $36.1 million or 48.0% for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively, primarily generated by new account growth and expansion of client relationships in
our European capital solutions business and growth in German auto programs during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018. Contributing to
the increase in gross premiums written during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 were new business development and account growth
within the Life and General international lines.

Net premiums written increased by $8.8 million or 39.2% during the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017. Net
premiums written for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 increased by $35.8 million or 48.8%. Both period increases are mainly due to new account
growth and expansion of client relationships in our European capital solutions business and higher net written premiums in our German auto programs, new
business development and lower utilization of retrocessional capacity.
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The tables below show net premiums written by line of business for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change in

Total % of Total Total % of Total $ %
Net Premiums Written ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands)
International 31,291 100.0% 22,503 100.1 % 8,788 39.1 %
Casualty — —% (19) (0.1)% 19 (100.0)%
Total Diversified Reinsurance $ 31,291 100.0% $ 22,484 100.0% $ 8,807 39.2 %
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change in

Total % of Total Total % of Total $ %
Net Premiums Written ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands)
International 109,238 100.0% 73,475 100.1 % 35,763 48.7 %
Casualty 41 —% (41) (0.1)% 82 (200.0)%
Total Diversified Reinsurance $ 109,279 100.0% $ 73,434 100.0% $ 35,845 48.8 %

Net premiums earned increased by $7.9 million or 37.6% and $21.2 million or 34.4% during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018
compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively. The tables below show net premiums earned by line of business for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018 and 2017:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change in

Total % of Total Total % of Total $ %
Net Premiums Earned ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands)
International 28,784 100.0% 20,943 100.1 % 7,841 37.4 %
Casualty — —% (18) (0.1)% 18 (100.0)%
Total Diversified Reinsurance $ 28,784 100.0% $ 20,925 100.0% $ 7,859 37.6 %
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change in

Total % of Total Total % of Total $ %
Net Premiums Earned ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands)
International 82,797 100.0% 61,667 100.1 % 21,130 34.3 %
Casualty 41 —% (41) (0.1)% 82 (200.0)%
Total Diversified Reinsurance $ 82,838 100.0% $ 61,626 100.0% $ 21,212 34.4 %

International experienced increased net premiums earned for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017
largely due to new account growth and expansion of client relationships in our European capital solutions business and overall growth in German Auto
programs and other underwriting actions taken in 2017 and during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 to generate new business
development within the Life and General international lines.

Other Insurance Revenue - Other insurance revenue, which represents fee income from our IIS business that is not directly associated with premium
revenue assumed by the Company decreased by $0.6 million and $0.2 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same
periods in 2017, respectively.

Net Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses - Net loss and LAE increased by $5.8 million or 41.4% and $10.3 million or 24.7% for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively. Net loss and LAE ratios increased to 64.5% and decreased to 57.3%
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared with 59.7% and 59.8% during the same periods in 2017, respectively.

During the three months ended September 30, 2018, the net loss and LAE ratio increased by 4.8 points compared to the same period in 2017 due to the
following factors:

+ higher initial loss ratios on current year premiums earned during the period partially offset by lower adverse prior year loss development which was
$0.7 million during the three months ended September 30, 2018, compared to $1.1 million for the same period in 2017; and

+ excluding prior year loss development, the net loss and LAE ratio for the three months ended September 30, 2018 would have been 62.3% compared
to 55.1% for the same period in 2017.
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During the nine months ended September 30, 2018, the net loss and LAE ratio decreased by 2.5 points compared to the same period in 2017 due to the
following factors:

* lower adverse prior year loss development which was $1.8 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2018, compared to $8.5 million for
the same period in 2017. The 2018 development was from facultative reinsurance run-off lines partially offset by favorable development in
International auto programs. The development in 2017 was primarily due to adverse development in facultative reinsurance run-off lines as well as
claims activity in International auto programs; and

* excluding prior year loss development, the net loss and LAE ratio for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 would have been 55.3% compared
to 47.6% for the same period in 2017 which reflects higher initial loss ratios on current year premiums earned during the period factoring in both
market conditions and recent loss trends and experience.

The impact on the net loss and LAE ratios should be considered in conjunction with the commission and other acquisition expense ratio as changes to
either ratio can be effected by the changes in the mix of business and the impact of the increase in the commission and other acquisition expense rates on pro-
rata contracts with loss sensitive features. As a result of these factors, as well as the impacts on the loss ratio described above, the combined ratio increased by
1.5 and decreased by 5.2 points for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively.

Commission and Other Acquisition Expenses - Commission and other acquisition expenses increased by $2.3 million or 33.7% and $6.3 million or
28.6% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively. The commission and other acquisition
expense ratio for the three months ended September 30, 2018 increased to 29.2% compared to 28.6% for the same period in 2017, reflecting the higher
proportion of pro-rata premium earned during the quarter compared to last year. The commission and other acquisition expense ratio for the nine months
ended September 30, 2018 decreased slightly to 31.3% compared to 31.7% for the same period in 2017.

The variation in ratios for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 were primarily due to the change in the mix of pro rata versus excess of
loss premiums written as well as loss sensitive features in our Diversified Reinsurance segment driven by adverse prior year loss development. Please refer to
the reasons for the changes in the combined ratio discussed in the preceding paragraphs.

General and Administrative Expenses - General and administrative expenses increased by $0.1 million or 2.4% and $1.5 million or 12.7% for the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively. The general and administrative expense ratio decreased to
13.9% and 14.7% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to 17.8% and 17.0% for the same periods in 2017, respectively, as a
result of higher earned premium compared to the prior periods. The overall expense ratio (including commission and other acquisition expenses) for the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2018 was 43.1% and 46.0% compared to 46.4% and 48.7% for the same periods in 2017, respectively.

AmTrust Reinsurance Segment

The AmTrust Reinsurance segment reported an underwriting loss of $247.5 million and $283.6 million during the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018 compared to $58.1 million and $64.4 million in the comparative periods in 2017, respectively. This was primarily due to higher adverse
prior year loss development compared to the same periods in 2017 and higher initial current year loss ratios for premiums earned during the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2018. The underwriting results and associated ratios for the AmTrust Reinsurance segment for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, For the Nine Months Ended September 30,

($ in thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Gross premiums written $ 452,795 $ 420,019 $ 1,518,208 $ 1,575,677
Net premiums written 451,515 410,193 1,517,206 1,529,980
Net premiums earned 491,293 436,353 1,458,440 1,450,811
Net loss and LAE (579,163) (355,030) (1,270,306) (1,047,222)
Commission and other acquisition expenses (158,657) (138,650) (468,765) (465,789)
General and administrative expenses (952) (771) (2,954) (2,240)

Underwriting loss $ (247,479) $ (58,098) $ (283,585) $ (64,440)
Ratios
Net loss and LAE ratio 117.9% 81.4% 87.1% 72.2%
Commission and other acquisition expense ratio 32.3% 31.7% 32.1% 32.1%
General and administrative expense ratio 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.1%
Expense ratio 32.5% 31.9% 32.3% 32.2%
Combined ratio 150.4% 113.3% 119.4% 104.4%
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The combined ratio increased to 150.4% for the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to 113.3% for the same period in 2017 due to the
following:

« higher adverse prior year loss development which was $210.4 million during the third quarter of 2018 compared to $61.1 million for the same period
in 2017. The adverse prior year loss development in 2018 was largely from Workers Compensation which represented nearly half of the adverse
development and was primarily driven by accident years 2014 to 2017, and to a lesser extent, development in European hospital liability,
Commercial Auto and General liability. Prior year adverse loss development in 2017 was primarily related to Worker's Compensation, General
liability as well as Commercial Auto liability lines for both Specialty Programs and Small Commercial Business where elevated loss activity had
been observed; and

+ excluding prior year loss development, the combined ratio for the current period would have been 107.6% compared to 99.3% for 2017, reflecting
higher initial loss ratios for current year premiums earned during the period factoring in both market conditions and recent loss trends and experience
as well as elevated actual current year activity in the Specialty Risk and Extended Warranty lines.

The combined ratio increased to 119.4% for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to 104.4% for the same period in 2017 due to the
following:

« higher adverse prior year loss development which was $247.3 million in 2018, compared to $100.9 million for the same period in 2017. Prior year
adverse loss development in 2018 was largely from Workers Compensation and European hospital liability, with a smaller contribution from General
and Commercial Auto Liability. Prior year adverse loss development in 2017 was from General liability as well as Auto liability and Workers
Compensation lines for both Specialty Programs and Small Commercial Business where elevated loss activity had been observed; and

+ excluding prior year loss development, the combined ratio for the current period would have been 102.4% compared to 97.4% for 2017 reflecting
higher initial loss ratios for current year premiums earned during the period factoring in both market conditions and recent loss trends and experience
as well as elevated actual current year activity in the Specialty Risk and Extended Warranty lines.

Premiums - Gross premiums written increased by $32.8 million or 7.8% and decreased by $57.5 million or 3.6% for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively. The change in gross premiums written for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017 reflects reductions in the Small Commercial Business lines combined with growth in Specialty
Program, Specialty Risk and Extended Warranty.

The tables below show net premiums written by category for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change in

Total % of Total Total % of Total $ %
Net Premiums Written ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands)
Small Commercial Business $ 232,163 51.4% $ 295,499 72.0% $ (63,336) (21.4)%
Specialty Program 94,077 20.8% 63,816 15.6% 30,261 47.4 %
Specialty Risk and Extended Warranty 125,275 27.8% 50,878 12.4% 74,397 146.2 %
Total AmTrust Reinsurance $ 451,515 100.0% $ 410,193 100.0% $ 41,322 10.1 %
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change in

Total % of Total Total % of Total $ %
Net Premiums Written ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands)
Small Commercial Business $ 879,403 57.9% $ 1,028,905 67.3% $ (149,502) (14.5)%
Specialty Program 286,404 18.9% 255,767 16.7% 30,637 12.0 %
Specialty Risk and Extended Warranty 351,399 23.2% 245,308 16.0% 106,091 43.2 %
Total AmTrust Reinsurance $ 1,517,206 100.0% $ 1,529,980 100.0% $ (12,774) (0.8)%

Net premiums written in our AmTrust Reinsurance segment for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 increased by $41.3 million or 10.1%
and decreased by $12.8 million or 0.8% compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively. The increase for the three months ended September 30, 2018
compared to the prior period was due to growth in the Specialty lines of business partially offset by reductions in Small Commercial Business. The decline in
the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the prior period was due to reductions in Small Commercial Business assumed from AmTrust
partially offset by growth in the Specialty lines of business and the lower utilization of retrocessional capacity compared to comparative period in 2017. The
decrease in Small Commercial Business was due to a combination of market conditions and underwriting measures applied by AmTrust during the period.
The ratio of net premiums written to gross premiums written increased to 99.7% and 99.9% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018
compared to 97.7% and 97.1% for the same periods in 2017, respectively.
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Net premiums earned increased by $54.9 million or 12.6% and $7.6 million or 0.5% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to
the same periods in 2017, respectively, mainly due to growth in net premiums written on the Specialty lines within the AmTrust quota share. The tables below
detail net premiums earned by category for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change in

Total % of Total Total % of Total $ %
Net Premiums Earned ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands)
Small Commercial Business $ 273,456 55.7% $ 314,773 721% $ (41,317) (13.1)%
Specialty Program 98,359 20.0% 59,143 13.6% 39,216 66.3 %
Specialty Risk and Extended Warranty 119,478 24.3% 62,437 14.3% 57,041 91.4 %
Total AmTrust Reinsurance $ 491,293 100.0% $ 436,353 100.0% $ 54,940 12.6 %
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Change in

Total % of Total Total % of Total $ %
Net Premiums Earned ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands)
Small Commercial Business $ 882,679 60.5% $ 946,782 65.3% $ (64,103) (6.8)%
Specialty Program 283,592 19.5% 251,153 17.3% 32,439 129 %
Specialty Risk and Extended Warranty 292,169 20.0% 252,876 17.4% 39,293 15.5 %
Total AmTrust Reinsurance $ 1,458,440 100.0% $ 1,450,811 100.0% $ 7,629 0.5 %

Net Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses - Net loss and LAE increased by $224.1 million or 63.1% and $223.1 million or 21.3% for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively. Net loss and LAE ratios increased to 117.9% and 87.1% for the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to 81.4% and 72.2% for the same periods in 2017, respectively.

During the three months ended September 30, 2018, the net loss and LAE ratio increased by 36.5 points compared to the same period in 2017 due to the
following factors:

+ higher adverse prior year loss development which was $210.4 million during the three months ended September 30, 2018, compared to $61.1 million
for the same period in 2017. The 2018 development was largely from Workers Compensation which represented nearly half of the adverse
development and was primarily driven by accident years 2014 to 2017, and to a lesser extent, development in European hospital liability and
Commercial Auto and General Liability lines of business. The development in 2017 was primarily due to Worker's Compensation, General liability
as well as Commercial Auto liability lines of business for both Specialty Programs and Small Commercial Business where elevated loss activity had
been observed; and

+ excluding prior year loss development, the net loss and LAE ratio for the three months ended September 30, 2018 would have been 75.1% compared
to 67.4% for the same period in 2017, reflecting higher initial loss ratios on current year premiums earned during the period factoring in both market
conditions and recent loss trends and experience as well as elevated actual current year activity in Specialty Risk and Extended Warranty lines.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2018, the net loss and LAE ratio increased by 14.9 points compared to the same period in 2017 due to the
following factors:

« higher adverse prior year loss development which was $247.3 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2018, compared to $100.9
million recorded in the same period in 2017. The adverse prior year loss development in 2018 was largely from Workers Compensation and
European hospital liability, with a smaller contribution from Commercial Auto and General liability. The 2017 adverse development was primarily
related to General liability line of business as well as Auto liability and Workers Compensation lines for both Specialty Programs and Small
Commercial Business where elevated loss activity had been observed; and

+ excluding prior year loss development, the net loss and LAE ratio for the current period in 2018 would have been 70.1% compared to 65.2% for
2017, reflecting higher initial loss ratios on current year premiums earned during the period factoring in both market conditions and recent loss
trends and experience as well as elevated actual current year activity in Specialty Risk and Extended Warranty lines.

Commission and Other Acquisition Expenses - Commission and other acquisition expenses increased by $20.0 million or 14.4% and $3.0 million or
0.6% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively. The commission and other acquisition
expense ratio increased to 32.3% and remained flat at 32.1% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to 31.7% and 32.1% for the
same periods in 2017, respectively. The fluctuations in the ratios during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the comparative
periods in 2017 reflect the
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change in the mix of business. The commission ratio is also affected by the commission associated with the retrocession premium ceded during the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017.

General and Administrative Expenses - General and administrative expenses slightly increased by $0.2 million or 23.5% and $0.7 million or 31.9% for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same periods in 2017, respectively. The general and administrative expense ratio
remained flat at 0.2% and increased slightly to 0.2% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to 0.2% and 0.1% for the same
periods in 2017, respectively. The overall expense ratio (including commission and other acquisition expenses) increased slightly to 32.5% and 32.3% for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to 31.9% and 32.2% for the same periods in 2017, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

Maiden Holdings is a holding company and transacts no business of its own. We therefore rely on cash flows in the form of dividends, advances, loans and
other permitted distributions from our subsidiary companies to make dividend payments on our common and preference shares. The jurisdictions in which our

operating subsidiaries are licensed to write business impose regulations requiring companies to maintain or meet statutory solvency and liquidity
requirements. Some jurisdictions also place restrictions on the declaration and payment of dividends and other distributions.

On November 9, 2018, the Company signed the Enstar Master Agreement with Enstar, pursuant to which, an Enstar subsidiary would enter into a
retrocession agreement to effect a loss portfolio transfer in which the Enstar subsidiary would assume all of the liabilities for loss reserves as of June 30, 2018
associated with quota share reinsurance agreements that Maiden Bermuda has with AmTrust or its subsidiaries. Enstar will assume $2.675 billion of net loss
and loss adjustment expense reserves upon closing, subject to adjustment for paid losses since June 30, 2018. The transaction is subject to regulatory
approvals and other closing conditions.

Both of the Company’s current quota share reinsurance contracts with AmTrust remain in-force. As previously disclosed, the Company and AmTrust have
mutually agreed to extend the notice period of non-renewal for the current Master Agreement until January 31, 2019.

The regulatory and liquidity requirements of the Company's operating segments are discussed in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" section included under Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2017, filed with
the SEC on March 1, 2018.

Pursuant to Bermuda law, Maiden must ensure that the value of the group's assets exceeds the amount of the group's liabilities by the aggregate minimum
margin of solvency of each qualifying member of the group ("Group MSM"). Since December 31, 2013, we have been required to maintain available group
capital and surplus at a level equal to or in excess of the Group Enhanced Capital Requirement ("Group ECR") which is established by reference to either the
Group BSCR model or an approved group internal capital model. As discussed in "Note 1. Basis of Presentation" and "Note 14. Subsequent Events", the
transactions contemplated by the Master Transaction Agreement and the Enstar Master Agreement are expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2018 subject
to regulatory approvals and customary closing conditions. At such time, the Group will exceed both the Group ECR and the Group MSM. However, pending
completion of these transactions, as of September 30, 2018, the Group does not meet the Group MSM and ECR standards established by the Bermuda
Monetary Authority (“BMA”). The Company has communicated such condition to the BMA and is following the guidelines of a reportable “event” as
stipulated by Bermuda insurance law. Finally, the amount of dividends that can be distributed from Maiden Bermuda is, under certain circumstances, limited
under Bermuda law and Bermuda regulatory requirements, which requires our Bermuda operating subsidiary to maintain certain measures of solvency and
liquidity in accordance with the BSCR and presently we are not paying any dividends out of Maiden Bermuda without express consent of the BMA.

Our sources of funds primarily consist of premium receipts net of commissions and brokerage, investment income, net proceeds from capital raising
activities, which may include the issuance of debt and common and preference shares, and proceeds from sales and redemption of investments. Cash is used
primarily to pay loss and LAE, ceded reinsurance premium, general and administrative expenses, interest expense and dividends, with the remainder in excess
of our operating requirements, made available to our investment managers for investment in accordance with our investment policy.

The table below summarizes our operating, investing and financing cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017:
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For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017

($ in thousands)

Operating activities $ 162,623 $ 374,814
Investing activities 27,151 (185,013)
Financing activities (63,893) (28,440)
Effect of exchange rate changes on foreign currency cash (1,131) 3,379
Total increase in cash and cash equivalents (including restricted) 124,750 164,740
Less: increase in cash and cash equivalents (including restricted) of discontinued operations 9,551 49,473
Total increase in cash and cash equivalents (including restricted) of continuing operations $ 115,199 $ 115,267

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 were $162.6 million compared to $374.8 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2017, a 56.6% decrease. Cash flows used in discontinued operations were $54.6 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2018 compared to cash flows provided by discontinued operations of $46.3 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2017. Cash flows
provided by continuing operating activities were $217.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to $328.5 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2017.The decrease in operating cash flows from continuing operations was primarily the result of higher payment of losses and
decreased gross premiums written during the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash flows from investing activities consist primarily of proceeds from the sales and maturities of investments and payments for investments acquired.
The Company continues to deploy available cash for longer-term investments as investment conditions permit and to maintain, where possible, cash and cash
equivalents balances at low levels. Net cash provided by investing activities was $27.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to
net cash used in investing activities of $185.0 million for the same period in 2017.

Cash flows provided by discontinued operations was $120.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to cash flows used in
discontinued operations of $16.7 million for the same period in 2017. Cash flows used in continuing operations was $92.8 million during the nine months
ended September 30, 2018 compared to $168.3 million for the same period in 2017 as the purchases of fixed maturity securities were lower and the proceeds
from the sales of fixed maturities were higher in 2018 compared to the same period in 2017. During the nine months ended September 30, 2018, purchases
exceeded the proceeds from the sales, maturities and calls of fixed maturities by $74.5 million compared to $176.4 million for the same period in 2017.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash flows used in financing activities were $63.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to $28.4 million for the same period
in 2017. The cash outflow during the current period primarily relates to higher dividends paid to holders of preference shares of $5.0 million, due to the
issuance of Preference Shares Series D on June 15, 2017. There were also slightly lower dividends paid to holders of common shares by $1.5 million,
reflecting a reduction in dividend per share during the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017 and a lower number of
common shares outstanding throughout the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017. The reduced number of outstanding
common shares was due to the repurchase of 3,667,134 common shares in the second half of 2017, which was made under the Company's authorized share
repurchase program.

The lower net cash outflow for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 compared to the current period was due to the issuance of new preference
shares with net proceeds of $144.9 million on June 15, 2017, which was partially used to redeem the 2012 senior note issuance of $100.0 million as well as
the repurchase of common shares, net of issuance of $13.8 million during the third quarter of 2017. The Company did not have any major capital transactions
during the nine months ended September 30, 2018.

Restrictions, Collateral and Specific Requirements

The Company's restrictions, collateral and specific requirements are discussed in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations" section included under Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, filed with the SEC on
March 1, 2018.

At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, restricted cash and cash equivalents and fixed maturity investments used as collateral remained flat at
$3.7 billion, respectively. This collateral represents 91.3% and 93.6% of the fair value of our total fixed maturity investments and cash and cash equivalents
(including restricted cash and cash equivalents) at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

Investments

The investment of our funds is designed to ensure safety of principal while generating current income. Accordingly, our funds are invested in liquid,
investment-grade fixed income securities which are designated as either available-for-sale ("AFS") or held-to-maturity ("HTM"). Please see "Notes to
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited) Note 4. Investments" included under Part I Item 1 "Financial Information" of this Form 10-Q.
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During the nine months ended September 30, 2018, the yield on the 10-year U.S. Treasury bond increased by 65 basis points to 3.05%. The 10-year U.S.
Treasury is the key risk-free determinant in the fair value of many of the securities in our AFS portfolio. The upward shift in the U.S. Treasury yield curve
during the nine months ended September 30, 2018 reflects a strengthening U.S. economy with an expansionary fiscal policy contributing to strong labor
markets. These factors have resulted in central banks to steadily move away from the monetary easing policy of the last number of years at a steady pace.

The movement in the market values of our AFS fixed maturity portfolio was a net reduction of $93.9 million, primarily due to rising interest rates and
widening credit spreads that have resulted in negative returns for U.S. corporate and agency bonds during the nine months ended September 30, 2018. Please
see "Liquidity and Capital Resources - Capital Resources" on page 59 for further information.

At September 30, 2018, we consider the levels of cash and cash equivalents we are holding to be within our targeted ranges. During periods when interest
rates experience greater volatility, we have periodically maintained more cash and cash equivalents in order to better assess current market conditions and
opportunities within our defined risk appetite, and may do so in future periods. In order to limit our exposure to unexpected interest rate increases which
would reduce the value of our fixed income securities and reduce our shareholders' equity, we attempt to maintain the duration of our fixed maturity
investment portfolio combined with our cash and cash equivalents, both restricted and unrestricted, within a reasonable range of the duration of our loss
reserves. At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, these respective durations in years were as follows:

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017

Fixed maturities and cash and cash equivalents 4.4 4.4
Reserve for loss and LAE 3.8 3.6

During the nine months ended September 30, 2018, the weighted average duration of our fixed maturity investment portfolio was unchanged at 4.4 years
and the duration for reserve for loss and LAE increased by 0.2 years to 3.8 years. The differential in duration between these assets and liabilities may fluctuate
over time and in the case of fixed maturities, is affected by factors such as market conditions, changes in asset mix and prepayment speeds in the case of both
our agency mortgage-backed securities ("Agency MBS") and commercial mortgage-backed securities ("CMBS"). The average yield and average duration of
our fixed maturities, by asset class, and our cash and cash equivalents (restricted and unrestricted) are as follows:

Original or Gross Ungr?l?;ed Average Average

September 30, 2018 Amortized Cost  Unrealized Gains Losses Fair Value yield® duration®
AFS fixed maturities ($ in thousands)
U.S. treasury bonds $ 125 $ — 3 @ $ 124 1.3% 0.6
U.S. agency bonds — mortgage-backed 1,484,434 830 (58,068) 1,427,196 3.0% 5.5
U.S. agency bonds — other 24,870 — (1,180) 23,690 3.3% 5.4
Non-U.S. government and supranational bonds 22,550 122 (1,827) 20,845 3.3% 4.5
Asset-backed securities 226,652 552 (2,000) 225,204 4.2% 2.4
Corporate bonds 1,108,620 8,834 (32,960) 1,084,494 2.9% 4.3

Total AFS fixed maturities 2,867,251 10,338 (96,036) 2,781,553 3.1% 4.8
HTM fixed maturities
Corporate bonds 974,947 6,103 (18,190) 962,860 3.7% 4.6
Municipal Bonds 57,938 — (1,057) 56,881 3.2% 4.2

Total HTM fixed maturities 1,032,885 6,103 (19,247) 1,019,741 3.6% 4.6
Cash and cash equivalents 264,574 — — 264,574 2.2% 0.0
Total $ 4,164,710 $ 16,441 $ (115,283) $ 4,065,868 3.1% 4.4
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Gross

Original or Gross Unrealized Average Average

December 31, 2017 Amortized Cost  Unrealized Gains Losses Fair Value yield® duration®
AFS fixed maturities ($ in thousands)
U.S. treasury bonds $ 35,093 $ 4 3 — 3 35,097 1.2% 0.1
U.S. agency bonds — mortgage-backed 1,475,682 6,181 (13,723) 1,468,140 2.9% 4.8
U.S. agency bonds — other 19,868 — (149) 19,719 3.1% 8.7
Non-U.S. government and supranational bonds 32,380 231 (1,713) 30,898 2.7% 3.3
Asset-backed securities 225,015 3,457 (79) 228,393 4.4% 2.4
Corporate bonds 911,259 28,423 (14,413) 925,269 2.7% 4.6

Total AFS fixed maturities 2,699,297 38,296 (30,077) 2,707,516 2.9% 4.5
HTM fixed maturities
Corporate bonds 1,037,464 28,694 (913) 1,065,245 3.6% 5.0
Municipal bonds 60,337 128 (84) 60,381 3.2% 4.8

Total HTM fixed maturities 1,097,801 28,822 (997) 1,125,626 3.6% 5.0
Cash and cash equivalents 149,375 — — 149,375 0.2% 0.0
Total $ 3,946,473 $ 67,118 $ (31,074) $ 3,982,517 2.9% 4.4

(1) Average yield is calculated by dividing annualized investment income for each sub-component of AFS and HTM securities and cash and cash equivalents (including amortization of premium
or discount) by amortized cost.
(2) Average duration in years.
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The following table summarizes the Company's fixed maturity investment portfolio holdings by contractual maturity at September 30, 2018 and December
31, 2017:

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
($ in thousands) AFS fixed maturities HTM fixed maturities AFS fixed maturities =~ HTM fixed maturities
Fair Value Amortized cost Fair Value Amortized Cost

Due in one year or less $ 3,522 $ 9,297 $ 64,996 $ 40,533
Due after one year through five years 583,069 371,750 440,560 333,003
Due after five years through ten years 542,562 651,838 487,592 724,265
Due after ten years — — 17,835 —

1,129,153 1,032,885 1,010,983 1,097,801
U.S. agency bonds — mortgage-backed 1,427,196 — 1,468,140 —
Asset-backed securities 225,204 — 228,393 —
Total fixed maturities $ 2,781,553 $ 1,032,885 $ 2,707,516 $ 1,097,801

At September 30, 2018, 98.4% of the Company’s U.S. agency bond holdings are mortgage-backed. Additional details on the Agency MBS at
September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 were as follows:

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
Fair Value % of Total Fair Value % of Total
U.S. agency bonds - mortgage-backed ($ in thousands) ($ in thousands)
Residential mortgage-backed ("RMBS")

GNMA - fixed rate $ 155,684 10.7% $ 191,118 12.8%
GNMA - variable rate 10,873 0.8% — —%
FNMA - fixed rate 720,157 49.6% 743,461 50.0%
FHLMC - fixed rate 540,482 37.3% 533,561 35.9%
Total U.S. agency bonds - mortgage-backed 1,427,196 98.4% 1,468,140 98.7%
U.S. agency bonds - fixed rate 23,690 1.6% 19,719 1.3%
Total U.S. agency bonds $ 1,450,886 100.0% $ 1,487,859 100.0%

Our Agency MBS portfolio is 37.4% of our fixed maturity investments at September 30, 2018. Given the relative size of this portfolio to our total
investments, if faster prepayment patterns were to occur over an extended period of time, this could potentially limit the growth in our investment income in
certain circumstances, or even potentially reduce the total amount of investment income we earn.

At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, 98.3% and 98.7%, respectively, of our fixed maturity investments consisted of investment grade
securities. We define a security as being below investment grade if it has an S&P credit rating of BB+ or equivalent, or less. Please see "Part I, Item 1 - Notes
to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited) Note 4. Investments" for additional information on the credit rating of our fixed income
portfolio. The security holdings by sector and financial strength rating of our corporate bond holdings at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 were as

follows:

Ratings®

BBB+, BBB, % of Corporate bonds
September 30, 2018 AAA AA+, AA, AA- A+, A, A- BBB- BB+ or lower Fair Value portfolio
Corporate bonds ($ in thousands)
Basic Materials —% 2.6% 0.8% —% 0.6% $ 83,048 4.0%
Communications —% 5.0% 2.5% 0.5% —% 162,599 8.0%
Consumer —% 15.2% 13.4% 0.5% 1.0% 616,520 30.1%
Energy —% 3.9% 4.7% 0.8% 0.8% 209,139 10.2%
Financial Institutions 1.6% 10.1% 23.7% 3.1% —% 786,440 38.5%
Industrials —% 2.7% 2.7% —% —% 112,210 5.4%
Technology —% 0.9% 1.6% 0.6% 0.7% 77,398 3.8%
Total 1.6% 40.4% 49.4% 5.5% 31% $ 2,047,354 100.0%
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Ratings®

BBB+, BBB, % of Corporate bonds
December 31, 2017 AAA AA+, AA, AA- A+, A, A- BBB- BB+ or lower Fair Value portfolio
Corporate bonds ($ in thousands)
Basic Materials —% —% 1.8% 4.0% 08% $ 131,339 6.6%
Communications —% 0.2% 1.3% 6.4% —% 155,574 7.9%
Consumer —% 0.7% 12.7% 13.2% —% 530,455 26.6%
Energy —% 0.5% 4.3% 2.2% 1.0% 160,216 8.0%
Financial Institutions 1.9% 2.9% 24.0% 10.9% —% 789,418 39.7%
Industrials —% —% 2.9% 4.0% 0.1% 138,260 7.0%
Technology —% 0.6% 2.1% 0.8% 0.7% 85,252 4.2%
Total 1.9% 4.9% 49.1% 41.5% 26% $ 1,990,514 100.0%

(1) Ratings as assigned by S&P, or equivalent

At September 30, 2018, the Company’s ten largest corporate holdings, 80.7% of which are U.S. dollar denominated and 69.5% of which are in the
Financial Institutions sector, as carried at fair value and as a percentage of all fixed income securities were as follows:

% of Holdings
Based on Fair

Value of All
Fixed Income
September 30, 2018 Fair Value Securities Rating®
($ in thousands)
BNP Paribas, 5.00% Due 1/15/2021 $ 19,760 0.5% A
Brookfield Asset Management Inc, 4.00%, Due 1/15/2025 19,660 0.5% A-
Gilead Sciences Inc, 3.65% Due 3/1/2026 19,640 0.5% A
AT&T Inc, 2.625%, Due 12/1/2022 19,285 0.5% BBB
Rabobank Nederland Utrec, 3.875% Due 2/8/2022 19,244 0.5% A+
Bank of Montreal, 2.35% Due 9/11/2022 19,182 0.5% A+
Electricite de France, 4.625%, Due 9/11/2024 18,223 0.5% A-
Wells Fargo & Co. 1.125%, Due 10/29/2021 17,856 0.5% A-
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group, 3.70%, Due 11/16/2025 17,812 0.5% AA-
UBS Group Funding (Jersey) Ltd, 2.65%, Due 2/1/2022 16,433 0.4% A-
Total $ 187,095 4.9%

(1) Ratings as assigned by S&P, or equivalent

At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, we hold the following non-U.S. dollar denominated securities:

September 30, 2018

December 31, 2017

($ in thousands) Fair Value % of Total Fair Value % of Total

Non-U.S. dollar denominated corporate bonds 420,397 95.3% $ 434,963 93.4%
Non-U.S. government and supranational bonds 20,846 4.7% 30,899 6.6%
Total non-U.S. dollar denominated AFS securities 441,243 100.0% $ 465,862 100.0%

At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, these non-U.S. securities are invested in the following currencies:

September 30, 2018

December 31, 2017

($ in thousands) Fair Value % of Total Fair Value % of Total

Euro 372,562 84.5% $ 398,680 85.6%
British Pound 41,867 9.5% 43,252 9.3%
Australian Dollar 19,524 4.4% 14,182 3.0%
Canadian Dollar 5,031 1.1% 5,254 1.1%
All other 2,259 0.5% 4,494 1.0%
Total non-U.S. dollar denominated AFS securities 441,243 100.0% $ 465,862 100.0%
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The net decrease in non-U.S. denominated fixed maturities is primarily due to sales of euro-denominated corporate bonds during the nine months ended
September 30, 2018. At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, all of the Company's non-U.S. government and supranational issuers have a rating of A
or higher by S&P. For our non-U.S. dollar denominated corporate bonds, the following table summarizes the composition of the fair value of our fixed
maturity investments at the dates indicated by ratings:

Ratings® September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017

($ in thousands) Fair Value % of Total Fair Value % of Total
AAA $ 31,843 76% $ 37,719 8.7%
AA+, AA, AA- 42,171 10.0% 35,686 8.2%
A+ A, A- 182,355 43.4% 176,657 40.6%
BBB+, BBB, BBB- 158,567 37.7% 184,901 42.5%
BB+ or lower 5,461 1.3% — —%
Total non-U.S. dollar denominated corporate bonds $ 420,397 100.0% $ 434,963 100.0%

(1) Ratings as assigned by S&P, or equivalent

The Company does not employ any credit default protection against any of the fixed maturities held in non-U.S. denominated currencies at September 30,
2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

Other Balance Sheet Changes
The following table summarizes the Company's other material balance sheet changes at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

($ in thousands) September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017 Change Change %

Reinsurance balances receivable, net $ 161,436 $ 72,494 $ 88,942 122.7%
Deferred commission and other acquisition expenses, net 419,265 380,204 39,061 10.3%
Reserve for loss and LAE 2,851,685 2,386,722 464,963 19.5%
Unearned premiums 1,298,933 1,230,882 68,051 5.5%

The higher amount of reinsurance balances receivable, net, deferred commission and other acquisition expenses, net and unearned premiums as at
September 30, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017 was due to the growth in business underwritten by the Company, primarily in the Diversified
Reinsurance segment, which generally incept at the beginning of the year. The reserve for loss and LAE increased due to higher loss ratio picks factoring in
both market conditions and recent loss trends and experience as well as significant adverse prior year loss development recognized in our AmTrust
Reinsurance segment for the nine months ended September 30, 2018.

Capital Resources

Capital resources consist of funds deployed in support of our operations. In the nine months ended September 30, 2018, our total capital resources
decreased by $459.6 million, or 30.8% compared to December 31, 2017 due to the unfavorable movement in unrealized losses on our AFS investment
portfolio and significant adverse loss development within our AmTrust Reinsurance segment. The Company’s management believes its current sources of
liquidity are adequate to meet its cash requirements for the next 12 months. The following table shows the movement in total capital resources at

September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

($ in thousands) September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017 Change Change %

Preference shares $ 465,000 $ 465,000 $ — —%
Common shareholders' equity 307,554 767,174 (459,620) (59.9)%
Total Maiden shareholders' equity 772,554 1,232,174 (459,620) (37.3)%
Senior Notes - principal amount 262,500 262,500 — —%
Total capital resources $ 1,035,054 $ 1,494,674 $ (459,620) (30.8)%

The major factors contributing to the net decrease in capital resources were as follows:
Maiden shareholders' equity
Shareholders' equity at September 30, 2018 decreased by $459.6 million, or 37.3%, compared to December 31, 2017 primarily due to:

+ anet decrease in AOCI of $129.7 million which arose due to: 1) an increase in net unrealized losses on investment of $141.9 million resulting from
the net decrease in our investment portfolio relating to market price movements due to rising interest rates and widening credit spreads during the
nine months ended September 30, 2018; and partially offset by 2) an increase in cumulative translation adjustments of $12.1 million due to the effect

of the recent depreciation of
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the euro and British pound relative to the original currencies on our non-U.S. dollar net liabilities (excluding non-U.S. dollar denominated AFS fixed
maturities);

* dividends declared of $54.7 million related to the Company’s common and preferred shares;

+ net loss attributable to Maiden of $275.4 million. Please see "Results of Operations" on page 43 for a discussion of the Company’s net loss for the
nine months ended September 30, 2018; partially offset by

 net increase in share based transactions of $0.2 million.

On February 21, 2017, the Company's Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up to $100.0 million of the Company's common shares from time to
time at market prices. During the nine months ended September 30, 2018, the Company repurchased a total of 205,000 common shares at an average price of
$3.31 per share under its share repurchase authorization. At September 30, 2018, the Company has a remaining authorization of $74.2 million for share
repurchases.

Please refer to "Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited) Note 13. Shareholders' Equity" included under Part I Item 1
"Financial Information" of this Form 10-Q for a discussion of the equity instruments issued by the Company at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

Senior Notes

There were no changes in the Company’s Senior Notes at September 30, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017 and the Company did not enter into any
short-term borrowing arrangements during the nine months ended September 30, 2018. Please refer to "Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements (unaudited) Note 7. Long Term Debt" included under Part I Item 1 "Financial Information" of this Form 10-Q for a discussion of the Company’s
Senior Notes.

As discussed in "Note 1. Basis of Presentation of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements", the transactions contemplated by the
Master Transaction Agreement are expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2018 subject to regulatory approvals and customary closing conditions. The
Company’s current analysis indicates that the conditions to redeem the 2013 Senior Notes as stipulated by the securities may exist. Should final analysis
support such a conclusion, the Company expects to redeem all of the $152.5 million 2013 Senior Notes at that time pursuant to the terms of the underlying
securities.

We have, and expect to continue, to fund a portion of our capital requirements through issuances of senior securities, including secured and unsecured debt
securities, or issuances of common or preference shares. For flexibility, we have a current universal shelf registration statement that allows for the public
offering and sale of our debt securities, common shares, preference shares and warrants to purchase such securities. The issuance of debt or equity securities
will depend on future market conditions, funding needs and other factors and there can be no assurance that any such issuance will occur or be successful.

Financial Strength Ratings

The Company's principal operating subsidiaries are rated A- (Excellent) with a negative outlook by A.M. Best Company ("A.M. Best"). The rating of A-
(Excellent) is the fourth highest of sixteen rating levels provided by A.M. Best. There are no other changes in the Company's ratings as previously disclosed
in the "Financial Strength Ratings" of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Aggregate Contractual Obligations

In the normal course of business, the Company is a party to a variety of contractual obligations as summarized in the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. These contractual obligations are considered by the Company when assessing its liquidity requirements and the
Company is confident in its ability to meet all of its obligations. As a result of the pending sale of Maiden US, the Company’s contractual obligations
particularly related to senior notes and reserve for loss and LAE could materially change from when they were disclosed in the Company’s table of
contractual obligations included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. As discussed previously, the
Company’s current analysis indicates that the conditions to redeem the 2013 Senior Notes as stipulated by the securities may exist. Should final analysis
support such a conclusion, the Company expects to redeem all of the $152.5 million 2013 Senior Notes at that time pursuant to the terms of the underlying
securities.

Currency and Foreign Exchange

We conduct business in a variety of foreign (non-U.S.) currencies, the principal exposures being the euro, the British pound, the Australian dollar, the
Canadian dollar and the Swedish krona. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are exposed to changes in currency exchange rates. Our
reporting currency is the U.S. dollar, and exchange rate fluctuations relative to the U.S. dollar may materially impact our results and financial position. Our
principal exposure to foreign currency risk is our obligation to settle claims in foreign currencies. In addition, in order to minimize this risk, we maintain and
expect to continue to maintain a portion of our investment portfolio in investments denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. We may employ
various strategies (including hedging) to manage our exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. To the extent that these exposures are not fully hedged or
the hedges are ineffective, our results of operations or equity may be adversely effected. At September 30, 2018, no such hedges or hedging strategies were in
force or had been entered into. We measure monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at period end exchange rates, with the resulting
foreign exchange gains and losses recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income. Revenues and expenses in foreign currencies are
converted at average exchange rates during the period. The effect of the translation adjustments for foreign operations is included in AOCI.

Net foreign exchange losses amounted to $0.6 million and net foreign exchange gains were $1.9 million during the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2018, respectively, compared to net foreign exchange losses of $3.6 million and $12.2 million for the same periods in 2017, respectively.

Effects of Inflation

The anticipated effects of inflation are considered explicitly in the pricing of the insured exposures, which are used as the initial estimates of reserves for
loss and LAE. In addition, inflation is also implicitly accounted for in subsequent estimates of loss and LAE reserves, as the expected rate of emergence is in
part predicated upon the historical levels of inflation that impact ultimate claim costs. To the extent inflation causes these costs, particularly medical
treatments and litigation costs, to vary from the assumptions made in the pricing or reserving estimates, the Company will be required to change the reserve
for loss and LAE with a corresponding change in its earnings in the period in which the variance is identified. The actual effects of inflation on the results of
operations of the Company cannot be accurately known until claims are ultimately settled.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
At September 30, 2018, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined by Item 303(a) (4) of Regulation S-K.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See "Part I, Item 1 - Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited) Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies" for a discussion on
recently issued accounting pronouncements not yet adopted.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that we will incur losses in our investments due to adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is directly influenced by
the volatility and liquidity in the market in which the related underlying assets are invested. We believe that we are principally exposed to three types of
market risk: changes in interest rates, changes in credit quality of issuers of investment securities and reinsurers and changes in foreign exchange rates.

Interest Rate Risk



Interest rate risk is the risk that we may incur economic losses due to adverse changes in interest rates. The primary market risk to the investment portfolio
is interest rate risk associated with investments in fixed maturity securities. Fluctuations in interest rates have a direct impact on the market valuation of these
securities. At September 30, 2018, we had AFS fixed maturity securities with a fair value of $2.8 billion that are subject to interest rate risk.

The table below summarizes the interest rate risk associated with our fixed maturity securities by illustrating the sensitivity of the fair value and carrying
value of our fixed maturity securities at September 30, 2018 to selected hypothetical changes in interest rates, and the associated impact on our shareholders’
equity. Temporary changes in the fair value of our fixed maturity securities that are held as AFS do impact the carrying value of these securities and are
reported in our shareholders’ equity as a component of AOCI. The selected scenarios in the table below are not predictions of future events, but rather are
intended to illustrate the effect such events may have on the fair value of our AFS fixed maturity securities and on our shareholders’ equity at September 30,
2018:

Hypothetical %

Estimated Change in (Decrease) Increase in

Hypothetical Change in Interest Rates Fair Value Fair Value Shareholders’ Equity
($ in thousands)

200 basis point increase $ 2,502,106 $ (279,447) (36.2)%
100 basis point increase 2,641,798 (139,755) (18.1)%
No change 2,781,553 — — %
100 basis point decrease 2,917,453 135,900 17.6 %
200 basis point decrease 3,043,134 261,581 33.9%

The interest rate sensitivity on the $168.0 million loan to related party means that a change in interest rates would impact our earnings and cash flows but
would not affect the carrying value of the loan, which is carried at cost. Effective December 18, 2017, the loan carries an interest rate equivalent to the
Federal Funds Effective Rate plus 200 basis points per annum. Therefore, an increase of 100 and 200 basis points in the Federal Funds Effective Rate would
increase our earnings and cash flows by $1.7 million and $3.4 million, respectively, on an annual basis.

Counterparty Credit Risk

The concentrations of the Company’s counterparty credit risk exposures have not changed materially compared to December 31, 2017. The Company has
exposure to credit risk primarily as a holder of fixed income securities. The Company controls this exposure by emphasizing investment grade credit quality
in the fixed income securities it purchases. The table below summarizes the credit ratings by major rating category of the Company's fixed maturity
investments at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:
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Ratings® September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017

AA+ or better 43.0% 43.4%
AA, AA-, A+ A A- 33.2% 33.2%
BBB+, BBB, BBB- 22.1% 22.1%
BB+ or lower 1.7% 1.3%

100.0% 100.0%

(1) Ratings as assigned by S&P, or equivalent

The Company believes this high quality concentration reduces its exposure to credit risk on fixed income investments to an acceptable level. At
September 30, 2018, the Company is not exposed to any significant credit concentration risk on its investments, excluding securities issued by the U.S.
government and agencies which are rated AA+ (please see "Liquidity and Capital Resources - Investments" on page 54), with the largest corporate issuer and
the top 10 corporate issuers accounting for only 0.5% and 4.9% of the Company’s total fixed income securities, respectively.

The Company is subject to the credit risk of its cedants in the event of their insolvency or their failure to honor the value of the funds held balances due to
the Company for any other reason. However, the Company’s credit risk in some jurisdictions is mitigated by a mandatory right of offset of amounts payable
by the Company to a cedant against amounts due to the Company. In certain other jurisdictions, the Company is able to mitigate this risk, depending on the
nature of the funds held arrangements, to the extent that the Company has the contractual ability to offset any shortfall in the payment of the funds held
balances with amounts owed by the Company to cedants for losses payable and other amounts contractually due. Funds held balances for which the Company
receives an investment return based upon either the results of a pool of assets held by the cedant or the investment return earned by the cedant on its
investment portfolio are exposed to an additional layer of credit risk.

The Company has exposure to credit risk as it relates to its reinsurance balances receivable. Reinsurance balances receivable from the Company’s clients
at September 30, 2018 were $161.4 million, including balances both currently due and accrued, 77.5% of which is from AmTrust. We are subject to the credit
risk that AIl and/or AmTrust will fail to perform their obligations to pay interest on and repay the principal pursuant to its loan agreement with Maiden
Bermuda, and to reimburse Maiden Bermuda for any assets or other collateral of Maiden that AmTrust’s U.S. insurance company subsidiaries apply or retain,
and income on those assets.

The Company believes that credit risk related to these balances is mitigated by several factors, including but not limited to, credit checks performed as
part of the underwriting process and monitoring of aged receivable balances. In addition, as the vast majority of its reinsurance agreements permit the
Company the right to offset reinsurance balances receivable from losses payable to them, the Company believes that the credit risk in this area is substantially
reduced. Provisions are made for amounts considered potentially uncollectible. There was no allowance for uncollectible reinsurance balances receivable at
September 30, 2018.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company is generally able to match foreign currency denominated assets against its net reinsurance liabilities both by currency and duration to protect
the Company against foreign exchange and interest rate risks. However, a natural offset does not exist for all currencies. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2018 and as at September 30, 2018, 9.3% of our net premiums written and 12.7% of our reserve for loss and LAE were transacted in euro,
respectively.

We may employ various strategies to manage our exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. To the extent that these exposures are not fully hedged or
the hedges are ineffective, our results of operations or equity may be reduced by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and could materially
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. At September 30, 2018, no hedging instruments have been entered into. Our principal
foreign currency exposure is to the euro and British pound, however, assuming all other variables remain constant and disregarding any tax effects, a
strengthening (weakening) of the U.S. dollar exchange rate of 10% or 20% relative to the non-U.S. currencies held by the Company would result in a decrease
(increase) in the Company's net assets of $3.8 million and $7.7 million, respectively.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation and under the supervision of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated the
Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”)). Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by SEC rules and forms and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow for timely decisions regarding
required disclosures. Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, such
disclosure controls and procedures were effective. Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that
our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how
well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the
inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide an absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any,
within our Company have been detected.

During the most recent fiscal quarter, there were no changes in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

See "Part I, Item 1 - Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited) Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies" for an update on legal
matters. Except as disclosed above, there are no material changes from the legal proceedings previously disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2017.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business is subject to a number of risks, including those identified in Item 1A. of Part I of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2017, that could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and/or liquidity and that could cause
our operating results to vary significantly from period to period. The risks described in our 2017 Form 10-K are not the only risks we face. Additional risks
and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, financial condition and/or liquidity.

There are no material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017
except for the following:

The occurrence of any event, change or other circumstances that could give rise to the termination of the Master Transaction Agreement with Enstar could
adversely affect our future business.

There are significant risks and uncertainties associated with the pending sale of substantially all of our U.S. treaty reinsurance operations to Enstar
pursuant to the Master Transaction Agreement. The occurrence of certain events, changes or any other circumstances could give rise to the termination of the
Master Transaction Agreement and cause the sale not to be completed. For instance, there is no assurance that the parties will receive the necessary state
insurance regulatory approvals required to close the transaction. If the parties fail to obtain such approvals or to meet other conditions necessary to complete



the sale as set forth in the Master Transaction Agreement, we will not be able to close the transaction and we will not realize the anticipated benefits to our
business.

Our proposed transaction with Enstar may present certain risks to our business and operations.

Our operations will be restricted by the terms of the Master Transaction Agreement and the Enstar Master Agreement, which may prevent or delay the
pursuit of other strategic corporate or business opportunities and result in our inability to respond effectively and/or timely to competitive pressures and
industry developments.

The proposed transaction may disrupt our current business plans and operations.

Our management’s attention may be directed towards the completion of the transaction and diverted away from our day-to-day business operations
and the execution of our current business plans.

Current and prospective employees may experience uncertainty about their future roles with us, which might adversely effect our ability to attract
and retain employees who generate and service our business.

Uncertainties regarding our business could cause brokers, customers and other counterparties to change existing business relationships which could
negatively affect our revenues, earnings and cash flows.

Third-party rating agencies may downgrade or revoke our financial strength or debt ratings in connection with the Master Transaction Agreement
and the Enstar Master Agreement.

We may incur significantly higher transaction costs than we currently anticipate, such as legal, financing and accounting fees, and other costs, fees,
expenses and charges related to the transaction, whether or not the Master Transaction Agreement and the Enstar Master Agreement are completed.

We could be subject to litigation related to the proposed transaction, which could result in significant costs and expenses.

The Master Transaction Agreement and the Enstar Master Agreement may not be completed, which may have an adverse effect on our stock price to
the extent that the current market price reflects assumption that the transaction will be completed, result in negative reactions from our shareholder
and other investors, rating agencies, employees, brokers or customers, and adversely affect our future business and financial results.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity and Use of Proceeds
Items 2. (a) and (b) are not applicable.
2. (c) Share Repurchases

On February 21, 2017, the Company's Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up to $100.0 million of the Company's common shares from time to
time at market prices. The table below details the repurchases that were made during the three months ended September 30, 2018, under the share repurchase
authorization:

Total number of
shares purchased as

part of publicly Dollar amount still

Total number of Average price paid announced plans or available under

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 shares repurchased per share programs (a) trading plan

(% in thousands)
July 1, 2018 - July 31, 2018 — == — % 74,924
August 1, 2018 - August 31, 2018 — — — 74,924
September 1, 2018 - September 30, 2018 205,000 $ 3.31 205,000 $ 74,245
Total 205,000 $ 3.31 205,000 $ 74,245

Subsequent to the three months ended September 30, 2018 and through the period ended November 9, 2018, the Company did not repurchase any
additional common shares.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
Item 5. Other Information

Executive Ownership and Sales

From time to time, some of the Company’s executives may determine that it is advisable to diversify their investments for personal financial planning
reasons, or may seek liquidity for other reasons, and may sell common shares of the Company in the open market, in private transactions or to the Company.
To effect such sales, some of the Company’s executives have entered into, and may in the future enter into, trading plans designed to comply with the
Company’s Insider Trading and Outside Investments Policy and the provisions of Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The trading plans
will not reduce any of the executives’ ownership of the Company’s shares below the applicable executive stock ownership guidelines. The Company does not
undertake any obligation to report Rule 10b5-1 plans that may be adopted by any employee or director of the Company in the future, or to report any
modifications or termination of any publicly announced plan.

Compensatory Arrangements of Certain Officers

The Company extended the term of the employment agreements for each of Lawrence F. Metz and Patrick J. Haveron, which now expire on November 1,
2021.
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Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibit
No. Description
10.1 Endorsement No. 5 to the Amended and Restated Quota Share Reinsurance Contract by and between Maiden Reinsurance Ltd. and
AmTrust International Insurance, Ltd. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
period ended December 31, 2008, filed with the SEC on March 31, 2009.
10.2 CEO Separation Agreement
10.3 CFO Separation Agreement
31.1 Section 302 Certification of CEO
31.2 Section 302 Certification of CFO
32.1 Section 906 Certification of CEO
32.2 Section 906 Certification of CFO
101.1 The following materials from Maiden Holdings, Ltd. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, formatted in XBRL (eXtensive Business Reporting

Language): (i) the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income,
(iii) the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements
of Changes in Shareholders' Equity, (v) the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (vi) Notes to unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.
By:
November 9, 2018 /s/ Lawrence F. Metz

Lawrence F. Metz
President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Patrick J. Haveron

Patrick J. Haveron
Chief Financial Officer

/s/ Michael J. Tait

Michael J. Tait
Chief Accounting Officer
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Exhibit 10.1

ENDORSEMENT NO. 5
to the

AMENDED AND RESTATED
QUOTA SHARE REINSURANCE AGREEMENT
(hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”)

between

AMTRUST INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE, LTD.
Hamilton, Bermuda
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company”)

and

MAIDEN REINSURANCE LTD.
Hamilton, Bermuda
(hereinafter referred to as the “Reinsurer”)

WHEREAS, AmTrust Europe Limited (formerly known as IGI Insurance Company Limited) (“AEL”) and the Company are
parties to a 70% Whole Account Quota Share Reinsurance Agreement dated May 13, 2014, as amended pursuant to the First Deed
of Amendment dated July 1, 2016 (collectively, the “AEL Quota Share”) which canceled and replaced from inception, the Whole
Account Quota Share between IGI Insurance Company Limited and the Company dated 31 July 2007;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the AEL Quota Share, effective July 1, 2018, AEL cedes to the Company twenty percent (20%) of
Affiliate Subject Premium, as defined in the Agreement;

WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend the Agreement pursuant to this Endorsement No. 5 to reflect the current terms of the
AEL Quota Share;

WHEREAS, effective October 1, 2017, the Company’s U.S. insurance company affiliates entered into a Reinsurance
Pooling Agreement by which Technology Insurance Company, Inc. (“Technology”) assumes, directly or indirectly, 100% of
premiums and losses from each U.S. AmTrust insurer (except AmTrust Title Insurance Company) (the “U.S. Pool”);

WHEREAS, in connection with the formation of the U.S. Pool, the Company commuted each U.S. Underlying Reinsurance
Agreement and the Company and Technology entered into the AmTrust Intercompany Reinsurance Agreement effective October 1,
2017 by which Technology re-ceded to AII 65% of the U.S. Pool’s loss reserves as of September 30, 2017 (corresponding to the
reserves that AIl had commuted and which were then pooled at Technology) and cedes 50% of premiums and losses from October
1, 2017 (the “U.S. Quota Share™);

WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend the Agreement pursuant to this Endorsement No. 5 to reflect the formation of the
U.S. Pool.



IT IS HEREBY AGREED, effective 12:01 a.m., Eastern Standard Time, July 1, 2018 that:

1.

Paragraph A of Article IV - DEFINITIONS is deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted therefor:

A. “Affiliate” means Technology and each other direct and indirect participant the U.S. Pool, AEL, AIU and each other
insurance company more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting securities of which are directly or indirectly
controlled by AmTrust Financial Services, Inc. (“AmTrust’) for so long as AmTrust continues to so directly or
indirectly control such entity.

Paragraph A of Article IV - DEFINITIONS is revised by replacing the term “IGI” with the term “AEL” each place it
appears.

Paragraph G of Article IV - DEFINITIONS is deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted therefor:

G. “Subject Premium” means: (i) for each Affiliate except AEL, the percentage of premium ceded to the Company
under the Underlying Reinsurance Agreement to which such Affiliate is a party equal to forty percent (40%) of
Affiliate Subject Premium, in respect of Covered Business in accordance with the terms of the Underlying
Reinsurance Agreements, to the extent the Affiliates shall have collected such premiums, to the Company, and (ii)
for AEL, the percentage of premium ceded to the Company under the AEL Quota Share, not to exceed forty percent
(40%) of AEL’s Affiliate Subject Premium.

Paragraph I of Article IV - DEFINITIONS is deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted therefor:

L “Underlying Reinsurance Agreement” means each of the following agreements:
i. The U.S. Quota Share;
ii. The AEL Quota Share; and
iii. The Quota Share Reinsurance Agreement, effective as of May 1, 2007, by and between AmTrust

International Underwriters DAC (formerly known as AmTrust International Underwriters, Ltd.)
(“AlU”) and the Company.

Paragraph A. 1 of Article V - LIABILITY OF THE REINSURER is deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted
therefor:

A. 1. Commencing as of the Effective Time, except as otherwise provided on Schedule A, as now stated and as amended
for time to time with respect to Additional Business and Excess Retention Business, the Company hereby agrees to cede
to the Reinsurer, and the Reinsurer agrees to accept and reinsure, the Ultimate Net Loss of the Company with respect to
Covered Business ceded to the Company equal to (i) forty percent (40%) of the Affiliate Ultimate Net Loss for each
Affiliate except AEL, and (ii) for AEL, the percentage of AEL’s Affiliate Ultimate Net Loss equal to the related
percentage of ceded Affiliate Subject Premium, in each case subject to all other terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, “Affiliate Ultimate Net Loss” means the sum actually paid or to be paid by
such Affiliate in settlement of losses for which it is liable in respect of the Covered Business, after making deductions
for all inuring reinsurance



(other than reinsurance with any direct or indirect subsidiary of AmTrust), whether collectible or not, and all
Recoveries.

6. The parties agree that the formation of the U.S. Pool effective October 1, 2017 is not intended to modify any of the
Reinsurer’s or Company’s rights or obligations with respect to business ceded to the Reinsurer on or before September 30,
2017.

7. All other provisions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by their respective duly authorized officers, have executed this ENDORSEMENT
NO. 5 to the Agreement as of the dates recorded below:

AMTRUST INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE, LTD.

By:

Chris Souter
Director, CFO and Assistant Secretary

Dated:

MAIDEN REINSURANCE LTD.

By:
Name:
Title

Dated:




Exhibit 10.2
SEPARATION AGREEMENT AND GENERAL RELEASE

This Separation Agreement and General Release (the “Agreement”) is entered into this 30" day of September, 2018 by and
between Maiden Holdings, Ltd. (the “Company”), and Arturo M. Raschbaum (“Executive”). WHEREAS, Executive is party to an
Employment Agreement entered into between the Company and Executive dated as of November 1, 2011, as automatically
extended on November 1, 2014 and November 1, 2017 (the “Prior Agreement”); WHEREAS, during the
course of his employment with the Company, Executive has received grants of equity and equity-based awards pursuant to the
Company’s 2007 Share Incentive Plan, as amended and restated from time to time (such awards, the “Awards”, and such plan, the
“Incentive Plan”); WHEREAS, Executive has communicated his desire to retire; and WHEREAS, the Company
and Executive desire to set forth herein their mutual agreement with respect to all matters relating to Executive’s retirement and
separation from service with the Company. NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements
contained herein, the adequacy and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and Executive agree as
follows: 1. Separation. Effective September 1, 2018 (the “Retirement Date”), Executive shall retire and separate from his

position as President and Chief Executive Officer, as well as any and all other officer, director and committee positions with the
Company and its subsidiaries, at which time his employment with the Company and its subsidiaries shall terminate. Such
termination shall be treated as a termination without Cause for purposes of any of the Company’s employment and benefit
plans. 2. Accrued Obligations. As soon as administratively practicable after the Retirement Date or at such later time as

shall be required under the terms of an applicable compensation or benefit plan or agreement, Executive shall receive any portion
of Executive’s base salary that is accrued but unpaid as of the Retirement Date, any accrued but unpaid vacation pay, any
unreimbursed expenses for which proper documentation is provided, and, except with respect to any Awards and any separation
benefits payable pursuant to the Prior Agreement, any other vested amounts and benefits that are to be paid or provided to
Executive by the Company under the Company’s benefit plans, but which have not yet been paid or provided (as applicable) (the
“Accrued Benefits”). 3. Separation Benefits. In consideration for Executive’s General Release of

claims in accordance with Section 7 below, Executive’s agreement to comply with the Restrictive Covenants (as defined below)
and other promises and agreements herein, upon the Release Effective Date (or such later date, if required pursuant to Section 409A
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Section 409A”), the Executive will be entitled to receive an lump-sum cash
payment in an amount equal to $2,200,000. 4. Other Entitlements. Executive and the Company agree that the amounts paid

or payable pursuant to this Agreement are in full satisfaction of any and all of the Company’s obligations with respect to payments
and benefits to Executive, including without limitation any payments, benefits or entitlements under the Prior Agreement or related
to any Awards, whether or not granted under the Incentive Plan. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Executive
acknowledges and agrees that all Awards (whether or not then vested and exercisable) will be canceled and forfeited as of the
Retirement Date. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Executive remains bound by the covenants and the
provisions related thereto contained in Sections 5, 6, 7, 8 (the “Restrictive Covenants”) and 9 of the Prior Agreement. Upon a
Change of Control (as defined in the Incentive Plan), Executive is released from all Restrictive Covenants.



5. Tax Withholding. The Company may deduct from the amounts payable to Executive pursuant to this Agreement the
amount of all required federal, state and local taxes required to be withheld pursuant to applicable law.

6. Section 409A. This Agreement is intended to comply with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and shall be

interpreted and construed consistently with such intent. The payments to Executive pursuant to this Agreement are also intended to
be exempt from Section 409A of the Code to the maximum extent possible, under either the separation pay exemption pursuant to
Treasury regulation § 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii) or as short-term deferrals pursuant to Treasury regulation § 1.409A-1(b)(4), and for this
purpose each payment shall constitute a “separately identified” amount within the meaning of Treasury Regulation § 1.409A-2(b)
(2). In the event the terms of this Agreement would subject Executive to taxes or penalties under Section 409A of the Code (“409A
Penalties”), the Company and Executive shall cooperate diligently to amend the terms of this Agreement to avoid such 409A
Penalties, to the extent possible; provided that in no event shall the Company be responsible for any 409A Penalties that arise in
connection with any amounts payable under this Agreement. To the extent any amounts under this Agreement are payable by
reference to Executive’s “retirement” or “termination of employment,” such term shall be deemed to refer to Executive’s
“separation from service,” within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code. Any reimbursement or advancement payable to
Executive pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise shall be conditioned on the submission by Executive of all expense reports
reasonably required by the Company under any applicable expense reimbursement policy, and shall be paid to the Executive within
30 days following receipt of such expense reports, but in no event later than the last day of the calendar year following the calendar
year in which Executive incurred the reimbursable expense. Any amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefit
provided, during a calendar year shall not affect the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefit to be
provided, during any other calendar year. The right to any reimbursement or in-kind benefit pursuant to this Agreement or
otherwise shall not be subject to liquidation or exchange for any other benefit. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, if (i) Executive is to receive payments or benefits by reason of his separation from service (as such term is defined in
Section 409A of the Code) other than as a result of his death, (ii) Executive is a “specified employee” within the meaning of
Section 409A of the Code (as determined in accordance with the methodology established by the Company as in effect on the date
of the Executive’s separation from service) for the period in which the payment or benefit would otherwise commence, and (iii)
such payment or benefit would otherwise subject Executive to any tax, interest or penalty imposed under Section 409A of the Code
(or any regulation promulgated thereunder) if the payment or benefit would commence within six months of a termination of
Executive’s employment, then such payments or benefits that would have otherwise been required to be made during such six-
month period will be paid to Executive (or his estate, as the case may be) in one lump sum payment or otherwise provided to
Executive (or his estate, as the case may be) on the earlier of (A) the first business day that is six months and one day after
Executive’s separation from service or (B) the fifth business day following Executive’s death.

7. General Release. As a condition to Executive’s receipt and retention of the consideration described in Section 3 above,

he shall execute the General Release and Waiver attached hereto as Exhibit B hereto (the “General Release”) within 21 days after
the Retirement Date, and not revoke the General Release within the revocation period set forth in the General Release (the date the
General Release becomes irrevocable pursuant to its terms, the “Release Effective Date”). Nothing contained herein or in the
Restrictive Covenants shall prohibit or restrict Executive (or his attorney) from responding to any inquiry by any regulatory
organization or governmental entity, or shall be interpreted so as to impede Executive (or any other individual)



from reporting possible violations of federal law or regulation to any governmental agency or entity, including but not limited to the
Department of Justice, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Congress, or any agency Inspector General, or from making
other disclosures under the whistleblower provisions of federal law or regulation. Executive does not need the prior authorization of
the Company to make any such reports or disclosures and shall not be not required to notify the Company that such reports or
disclosures have been made.

8. Company Property. As of the Retirement Date, Executive shall, to the extent not previously returned or delivered:

(a) return all equipment, records, files, documents, data, programs or other materials and property in Executive’s possession,
custody or control which relates or belongs to the Company or any one or more of its affiliates, including, without limitation, all,
confidential information (within the meaning of the Restrictive Covenants), computer equipment, access codes, messaging devices,
credit cards, cell phones, keys and access cards; and (b) deliver all original and copies of confidential information, electronic data,
notes, materials, records, plans, data or other documents, files or programs (whether stored in paper form, computer form, digital
form, electronically or otherwise, on Company equipment or Executive’s personal equipment) that relate or refer in any to (1) the
Company or any one or more of its affiliates, its business or its employees, or (2) the Company’s confidential information (within
the meaning of the Restrictive Covenants) or similar information. By signing this Agreement, Executive represents and warrants
that Executive has not retained and has or shall timely return and deliver all the items described or referenced in subsections (a) or
(b) above; and, that should Executive later discover additional items described or referenced in subsections (a) or (b) above,
Executive shall promptly notify the Company and return/deliver such items to the Company.

9. Cooperation.

(a) After the Retirement Date, Executive agrees to be reasonably available to the Company or its representatives to briefly
discuss matters relating to the responsibilities he held during his employment.

(b) At all times prior to, on or after the Retirement Date, Executive shall reasonably cooperate with any and all

investigations or other legal, equitable or business matters or proceedings which involve any matters for which Executive worked
on or had responsibility during his employment with the Company. This includes but is not limited to testifying (and preparing to
testify) as a witness in any proceeding or otherwise providing information or reasonable assistance to the Company in connection
with any investigation, claim or suit, and cooperating with the Company regarding any investigation, litigation, claims or other
disputed items involving the Company that relate to matters within the knowledge or responsibility of Executive. Specifically,
Executive agrees (i) to meet with the Company’s representatives, its counsel or other designees at reasonable times and places with
respect to any items within the scope of this provision; (ii) to provide truthful testimony regarding same to any court, agency or
other adjudicatory body; (iii) to provide the Company with immediate notice of contact or subpoena by any non-governmental
adverse party, and (iv) to not voluntarily assist any such non-governmental adverse party or such non-governmental adverse party’s
representatives. Executive acknowledges and understands that his obligations of cooperation under this Section 9(b) are not limited
in time and may include, but shall not be limited to, the need for or availability for testimony, and that Executive’s activity pursuant
to this Section 9(b) will be scheduled so that it does not unreasonably interfere with the then-current professional obligations of
Executive, if any. Executive shall be compensated at the rate of $250 per hour for any such time spent assisting the Company
pursuant to this Section 9, and shall be reimbursed for reasonable travel and other business expenses incurred by Executive at the
request of the Company.

(c) The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless Executive from and against any losses, claims, demands, costs,
damages, liabilities, joint and several, expenses of any nature (including attorney’s
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fees and disbursements), judgments, fines, settlements, penalties and other expenses actually and reasonably incurred by Executive
in connection with any and all claims, demands, actions, suits, or proceedings, civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, in
which Executive may be involved, or threatened to be involved, as a party or otherwise, by reason of the fact that Executive was
employed by the Company or arising out of or incidental to the business of the Company, to the maximum extent provided under
the terms of the Company’s charter and by-laws or any other applicable documentation, in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth therein.

10. Consequences of Breach. Executive agrees that the benefits provided pursuant to Section 3 of this Agreement are
conditioned on his compliance with all of his commitments set forth in this Agreement, the Restrictive Covenants and the General
Release. In the event of any breach of this Agreement, the Restrictive Covenants or the General Release by Executive, the
Company shall provide notice of such breach to Executive to allow him an opportunity to cure such breach. In the event Executive
fails to cure such breach within five days after notice of such breach, the Company shall be entitled to discontinue and recover all
benefits paid or otherwise payable to Executive pursuant to Section 3 of this Agreement. In addition, Executive acknowledges that
the provisions in the Restrictive Covenants are necessary to enable the Company to maintain its competitive position and any actual
or threatened breach thereof will result in irreparable and continuing damage to the Company for which there will be no adequate
remedy at law. In the event of any actual or threatened breach of the Restrictive Covenants, the Company shall be entitled to
injunctive relief, including the right to a temporary restraining order, and other relief, including damages, as may be proper along
with the Company’s attorney’s fees and court costs. The foregoing stipulated damages and remedies of the Company are in addition
to, and not to the exclusion of, any other damages the Company may be able to prove.

11. Enforceability. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or
unenforceable, then the invalidity or unenforceability of that provision shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other
provision of this Agreement, and all other provisions shall remain in full force and effect and such invalid or unenforceable
provision shall be reformulated by such court to preserve the intent of the parties hereto.

12. Successors. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by Executive and by Executive’s personal
or legal representatives, executors and administrators and by the Company and its successors and assigns. In the event of the death
of Executive while any amounts are payable to Executive hereunder, all such amounts, unless otherwise provided herein, shall be
paid in accordance with the terms of this Agreement to Executive’s estate.

13. Notices. All notices and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be deemed to have been duly given by a party hereto when delivered personally or by overnight courier that guarantees next
day delivery or five days after deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid to the following address of the other party hereto
(or to such other address of such other party as shall be furnished in accordance herewith) if to the Company, to the President and
Chief Executive Officer, Maiden Holdings, Ltd., Ideation House, 2" Floor, 94 Pitts Bay Road, Pembroke HM 08 Bermuda; and if
to Executive, to the last known address of Executive in the records of the Company, which Executive may update from time to time
by way of the notice procedure set forth in this Section 13.

14. Entire Agreement. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement
and understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and with respect to Executive’s employment with the
Company, contains all the covenants, promises, representations, warranties, and agreements between the parties with respect to
Executive’s separation from the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates and all positions therewith, and supersedes all prior



employment or severance or other agreements between Executive and the Company and its subsidiaries, whether written or oral, or
any of its predecessors or affiliates; provided, however, that Executive shall continue to be bound by the terms of the Prior
Agreement to the extent expressly set forth in this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided herein, Executive acknowledges that
no representation, inducement, promise, or agreement, oral or written, has been made by either party, or by anyone acting on behalf
of either party, which is not embodied herein, and that no agreement, statement, or promise relating to Executive’s separation from
the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates that is not contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding. Executive
represents and acknowledges that in executing this Agreement, she does not rely, and has not relied, upon any representation(s) by
the Company or its agents except as expressly contained in this Agreement. Any modification of this Agreement will be effective
only if it is in writing and signed by both parties.

15. Waivers. No failure by either party hereto at any time to give notice of any breach by the other party of, or to require
compliance with, any condition or provision of this Agreement shall (i) be deemed a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or
conditions at the same or at any prior or subsequent time or (ii) preclude insistence upon strict compliance in the future.

16. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of New Jersey,
without giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws thereof. The Company and Executive hereby each consents to the
exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting in New Jersey, with respect to any dispute arising under the terms of this
Agreement and further consents that any process or notice of motion therewith may be served by certified or registered mail or
personal service, within or without New Jersey, provided a reasonable time for appearance is allowed. Each party acknowledges
and agrees that any controversy which may arise under this Agreement is likely to involve complicated and difficult issues, and
therefore each party hereby irrevocably and unconditionally waives any right such party may have to a trial by jury with respect to
any litigation directly or indirectly arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach, termination or validity of this
Agreement, or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The parties further agree that any judgment, order or injunction
granted by any court within New Jersey shall be enforceable in any jurisdiction in which the Company or its affiliates do business.

17. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original.

[Signature Page to Follow]



WHEREFORE, the Company and Executive, by their signatures below, evidence their agreement to the provisions stated above.

MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD.

Lawrence F. Metz
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date:

EXECUTIVE

Arturo M. Raschbaum

Date:



EXHIBIT A
GENERAL RELEASE AND WAIVER

1.1, Arturo M. Raschbaum, in consideration of and subject to the performance by Maiden Holdings, Ltd. of its obligations

under the Separation Agreement, dated September [], 2018 (the “Separation Agreement”), do hereby release and forever discharge
as of the date hereof the Company and its affiliates, subsidiaries and direct or indirect parent entities and all present, former and
future shareholders, directors, officers, agents, representatives, employees, successors and assigns of the Company and/or its
respective affiliates, subsidiaries and direct or indirect parent entities (collectively, the “Released Parties™) to the extent provided
below (this “General Release”). The Released Parties are intended to be third-party beneficiaries of this General Release, and this
General Release may be enforced by each of them in accordance with the terms hereof in respect of the rights granted to such
Released Parties hereunder. Terms used herein but not otherwise defined shall have the meanings given to them in the Separation
Agreement.

2.1 understand that any payments or benefits paid or granted to me under Section 3 of the Separation Agreement represent,

in part, consideration for signing this General Release and are not salary, wages or benefits to which I was already entitled. I
understand and agree that I will not receive certain of the payments and benefits specified in the Separation Agreement unless I
execute this General Release and do not revoke this General Release within the time periods permitted hereafter. Such payments
and benefits will not be considered compensation for purposes of any employee benefit plan, program, policy or arrangement
maintained or hereafter established by the Company or its affiliates.

3. Except as provided in Sections 5, 6, and 12 below and except for the provisions of the Separation Agreement which

expressly survive the termination of my employment with the Company, I knowingly and voluntarily (for myself, my heirs,
executors, administrators and assigns) release and forever discharge the Company and the other Released Parties from any and all
claims, suits, controversies, actions, causes of action, cross-claims, counter-claims, demands, debts, compensatory damages,
liquidated damages, punitive or exemplary damages, other damages, claims for costs and attorneys’ fees, or liabilities of any nature
whatsoever in law and in equity, both past and present (through the date that this General Release becomes effective and
enforceable) and whether known or unknown, suspected, or claimed against the Company or any of the Released Parties which I,
my spouse, or any of my heirs, executors, administrators or assigns, may have, and which arise out of or are connected with my
employment with, or my separation or termination from, the Company, including, but not limited to, any allegation, claim or
violation, arising under: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; the Civil Rights Act of 1991; the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended (including the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act); the Equal Pay Act
of 1963, as amended; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993; the Worker
Adjustment Retraining and Notification Act; the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974; the Fair Labor Standards Act;
or their state or local counterparts; or under any other federal, state or local civil or human rights law, or under any other local,
state, or federal law, regulation or ordinance; or under any public policy, contract or tort, or under common law; or arising under
any policies, practices or procedures of the Company; or any claim for wrongful discharge, breach of contract, infliction of
emotional distress, defamation; or any claim for costs, fees, or other expenses, including attorneys’ fees incurred in these matters
(all of the foregoing collectively referred to herein as the “Claims™).

4.1 represent that I have made no assignment or transfer of any right, claim, demand, cause of action, or other matter
covered by Section 3 above.

5.1 agree that this General Release does not waive or release any rights or claims that I may have which arise after the date I
execute this General Release, including Claims under the Age Discrimination



in Employment Act of 1967. I acknowledge and agree that my separation from employment with the Company shall not serve as
the basis for any claim or action (including, without limitation, any claim under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of
1967).

6.1 agree that I hereby waive all rights to sue or obtain equitable, remedial or punitive relief from any or all Released Parties

of any kind whatsoever in respect of any Claims, including, without limitation, reinstatement, back pay, front pay, and any form of
injunctive relief. Notwithstanding the above, I further acknowledge that I am not waiving and am not being required to waive any
right that cannot be waived under law, including the right to file an administrative charge or participate in an administrative
investigation or proceeding; provided, however, that I disclaim and waive any right to share or participate in any monetary award
resulting from the prosecution of such charge or investigation or proceeding. Additionally, I am not waiving (i) any right to the
Accrued Obligations, any severance benefits or other consideration to which I am entitled under the Separation Agreement, (ii) any
claim relating to directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage or any right of indemnification under the Company’s
organizational documents or otherwise, (iii) my rights as an equity or security holder in the Company or its affiliates, (iv) my rights
under any equity awards that survive termination of employment in accordance with the terms of the Separation Agreement; or
(v) my rights under any retirement plan that is “qualified” under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

7.1 hereby agree not to bring or participate in any class or collective action against the Company and/or the other Released

Parties that asserts, in whole or in part, any claims that arose before I signed this General Release, whether or not such claims (if
brought by me individually) are released by this General Release.

8.In signing this General Release, I acknowledge and intend that it shall be effective as a bar to each and every one of the

Claims hereinabove mentioned or implied. I expressly consent that this General Release shall be given full force and effect
according to each and all of its express terms and provisions, including those relating to unknown and unsuspected Claims
(notwithstanding any state or local statute that expressly limits the effectiveness of a general release of unknown, unsuspected and
unanticipated Claims), if any, as well as those relating to any other Claims hereinabove mentioned or implied. I acknowledge and
agree that this waiver is an essential and material term of this General Release and that without such waiver I would not have
become entitled to the benefits provided under the Separation Agreement. I further agree that in the event I should bring a Claim
seeking damages against the Company, or in the event I should seek to recover against the Company in any Claim brought by a
governmental agency on my behalf, this General Release shall serve as a complete defense to such Claims to the maximum extent
permitted by law. I further agree that I am not aware of any pending claim of the type described in Section 3 above as of the
execution of this General Release.

9.1 agree that neither this General Release, nor the furnishing of the consideration for this General Release, shall be deemed
or construed at any time to be an admission by the Company, any Released Party or myself of any improper or unlawful conduct.

10. Any non-disclosure provision in this General Release does not prohibit or restrict me (or my attorney) from responding
to any inquiry about this General Release or its underlying facts and circumstances by the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC), the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), any other regulatory organization or any governmental entity.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, no provision of this General Release shall be interpreted so as to
impede me (or any other individual) from reporting possible violations of federal law or regulation to any governmental agency or



entity, including but not limited to the Department of Justice, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Congress, and any
agency Inspector General, or making other disclosures under the whistleblower provisions

of federal law or regulation. I do not need the prior authorization of the Company to make any such reports or disclosures and I
shall not be not required to notify the Company that such reports or disclosures have been made.

11. 1 represent that I am not aware of any claim by me other than the claims that are released by this General Release. I
acknowledge that I may hereafter discover claims or facts in addition to or different than those which I now know or believe to
exist with respect to the subject matter of the release set forth in Section 3 above and which, if known or suspected at the time of
entering into this General Release, may have materially affected this General Release and my decision to enter into it.

12. Notwithstanding anything in this General Release to the contrary, this General Release shall not relinquish, diminish,
or in any way affect any rights or claims arising out of any breach by the Company or by any Released Party of the terms of the
Separation Agreement after the date hereof.

13.  Whenever possible, each provision of this General Release shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and
valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this General Release is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect
under any applicable law or rule in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other
provision or any other jurisdiction, but this General Release shall be reformed, construed and enforced in such jurisdiction as if
such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

14. BY SIGNING THIS GENERAL RELEASE, I REPRESENT AND AGREE THAT:

(a)I HAVE READ IT CAREFULLY; AND I UNDERSTAND ALL OF ITS TERMS AND KNOW THAT I AM

GIVING UP IMPORTANT RIGHTS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, RIGHTS UNDER THE AGE
DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT ACT OF 1967, AS AMENDED, TITLE VII OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF
1964, AS AMENDED; THE EQUAL PAY ACT OF 1963; THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990;
AND THE EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT OF 1974, AS AMENDED;

(b)I VOLUNTARILY CONSENT TO EVERYTHING IN IT;

(c)I HAVE BEEN ADVISED TO CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNEY BEFORE EXECUTING IT AND I HAVE

DONE SO OR, AFTER CAREFUL READING AND CONSIDERATION, I HAVE CHOSEN NOT TO DO SO OF MY
OWN VOLITION;

(d) I HAVE HAD AT LEAST 21 DAYS FROM THE DATE OF MY RECEIPT OF THIS RELEASE TO

CONSIDER IT, AND THE CHANGES MADE SINCE MY RECEIPT OF THIS RELEASE ARE NOT MATERIAL OR
WERE MADE AT MY REQUEST AND WILL NOT RESTART THE REQUIRED 21-DAY PERIOD;

(e) I UNDERSTAND THAT I HAVE SEVEN (7) DAYS AFTER THE EXECUTION OF THIS RELEASE TO

REVOKE IT AND THAT THIS RELEASE SHALL NOT BECOME EFFECTIVE OR ENFORCEABLE UNTIL THE
REVOCATION PERIOD HAS EXPIRED;
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(f) I HAVE SIGNED THIS GENERAL RELEASE KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY AND WITH THE
ADVICE OF ANY COUNSEL RETAINED TO ADVISE ME WITH RESPECT TO IT; AND

(g)I AGREE THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THIS GENERAL RELEASE MAY NOT BE AMENDED, WAIVED,

CHANGED OR MODIFIED EXCEPT BY AN INSTRUMENT IN WRITING SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE COMPANY AND BY ME.

SIGNED:

Arturo M. Raschbaum DATED:
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Exhibit 10.3

SEPARATION AGREEMENT AND FIRST GENERAL RELEASE

This Separation Agreement and First General Release (“Agreement”) is entered into between Karen Schmitt (“Employee™)

and Maiden Holdings, Ltd. (the “Company”), and dated August 14, 2018.

1. Termination of Employment Relationship. Employee and the Company will end their employment relationship
on March 1, 2019 or such earlier date as the Company shall elect with prior written notice (the “Termination Date”). Prior to
that date, Employee will continue to be employed by the Company, in the following capacity:

. Executive Vice President of the Company based in Bermuda. Reporting to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer
(CEO), Employee will provide service and assistance to the Company to assist in the transition of her role to the new
Chief Financial Officer of the Company as well as to provide advice and counsel to the new CEO.

. Employee shall endeavor to adhere in all material respects to the Company’s material standards of conduct, policies,
rules and regulations.

. The Company will provide the Employee her current level of base compensation, health, car, housing and welfare and
pension benefits in accordance with specific Maiden benefit and pension plan requirements during such time; provided,
however, that the Company retains its right to amend, modify, or discontinue any of its health, welfare and pension plans
in its sole discretion, in which event Employee will receive such benefits at the same level and under the same terms as
other executives at her level.

2. Relief of Duties. The Employee shall be relieved of all duties on the Termination Date. Employee no longer will
be authorized to transact business or incur any expenses, obligations and liabilities on behalf of the Company on or after the
Termination Date.

3. Consideration. In consideration of Employee’s promises in this Agreement, Company will provide Employee
the following:

a. a lump sum payment for the amount of $3,325,000 (“Lump Sum”), which amount includes payment in
satisfaction of Employee’s three current Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) grants, which Employee hereby
waives. Such sum shall be paid to Employee as follows: $2,000,000 on or about August 31, 2018, (or, if the
Agreement has not become effective by that date, as soon as practicable following the effective date of this

Agreement), and the remainder of $1,325,000 (the “Second Payment”) within one week following the
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effective date of the Second Release in the form attached hereto as Appendix A. The Company shall on or about
the Termination Date sign and deliver to the Employee the Second Release.

b. Employee shall have the option to convert all of her remaining Company share options into a cash payment as
calculated pursuant to a Black-Scholes computation based upon the closing share price on December 3, 2018,
which shall be furnished by the Company to Employee by December 10, 2018. In the event Employee thereafter
elects such cash payment option, the Company shall promptly remit such payment to Employee. If Employee
elects to retain all of her share options, then vested share options held by Employee at the time of the
Termination Date shall retain their full expiration date of 10 years from the original grant date.

c.  Company shall promptly provide for tax gross up and tax return prep fees for the 2018 and 2019 fiscal years.

d. By the Termination Date, the Company will provide Employee a repatriation lump sum allowance, for moving of
household goods from Bermuda, up to $15,000 upon receipt of the bill(s) for such services.

e. If the Termination Date is prior to March 1, 2019, the Company shall pay the remaining base salary and
equivalent cost of the benefits which would have otherwise been payable hereunder, and shall continue to pay
Employee’s car and housing allowances, through March 1, 2019.

f.  Effective as of the Termination Date, the Employee hereby irrevocably resigns from (1) all Board of Directors
positions (including Board committee positions) she has with Maiden Holdings, Ltd., and any other member of
the Group (defined below in Paragraph 5(a) with respect to which she has not already resigned, and (2) all
fiduciary positions (including as trustee) she holds with respect to any pension plans or trusts established by any
member of the Group. The Employee agrees that this Agreement will serve as her written notice of resignation

and that she will execute any documents necessary to formalize or carry out such resignations.

Employee agrees that the consideration the Company will provide includes amounts in addition to anything of value to which
Employee already is entitled. The Company also will pay Employee accrued but unused PTO in the amount of $166,000, and
unpaid expenses, regardless of whether Employee signs this Agreement.

4. Tax Treatment. The Company has agreed to the Employee’s request that the payments set forth above in Section
3(a) shall be paid in Bermuda, and at her request therefore, the Company will not withhold standard tax and other applicable

withholdings from such sums. The Employee



acknowledges and agrees that the Company has made no representations or warranties regarding the tax consequences of
any amounts paid by the Company to the Employee pursuant to this Agreement, if any. The Employee agrees to pay all
federal, state or local taxes owed by the Employee, if any, which are required by law to be paid with respect to any
payments made by the Company to her herein, except that Company will indemnify Employee for any additional tax and/or
penalties or interest, if any, on a grossed-up basis, for taxes, interest and or penalties imposed by Section 409A (as such
term is defined below).

5. Full and Final Releases.

a. For good and valuable consideration, including but not limited to the promise of severance pay and benefits
set forth in Section 3 of this Agreement, except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 5(c) below, the Employee knowingly,
voluntarily and unconditionally waives, releases and forever discharges the Company, and its parent, subsidiary, affiliated,
predecessor and related companies (the “Group”) and each of their current and former directors, officers, employees,
shareholders, attorneys, and employee benefit or pension plans or funds (and the trustees, administrators, fiduciaries and
insurers of such plans or programs) (collectively, the “Released Parties”), from any and all claims, demands, liabilities,
obligations, actions, and causes of action that may lawfully be released by private agreement (collectively, “Claims™) that
the Employee (or her heirs, executors, administrators, successors, assigns and legal representatives) has, had or may have,
of any nature and arising out of or relating to any matter or thing whatsoever, whether known or unknown, from the
beginning of the world through the date she signs this Agreement. Claims released and discharged under this Section 3
include, but are not limited to:

(i) Any and all Claims regarding the terms, conditions, and privileges of Employee’s employment and the
termination thereof, except for Employee’s right to indemnification and as otherwise provided in this
Agreement;

(ii) Any and all Claims for unpaid compensation, bonuses, deferred, retention or incentive compensation, or
health, welfare or other benefits under any agreement, policy, practice or plan maintained by any of the
Released Parties, except as stated in Sections 1 and 3 of this Agreement;

(iii) Any and all Claims under any of the following laws: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil
Rights Act of 1991, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act as amended by the Older Workers Benefit
Protection Act (“ADEA”), the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Executive Retirement Income Security
Act (“ERISA”), the Worker Adjustment Retraining and Notification Act (“WARN”), the Family and Medical
Leave Act, the Rehabilitation Act, Executive Order 11246, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the New York
Labor Law, the New York State Human Rights Law, the New York State WARN Act, the New York City
Human Rights Law, the New York City Administrative Code, the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination,
the New Jersey Conscientious Employee Protection Act, all as amended, and any other federal, state, and
local employment statutes, laws, rules, regulations and orders, and those of any other country, to the extent
they may be waived by private agreement;

(iv) Any and all Claims under any other federal, state or local law, rule, regulation, or order or the national or
local law of any other country (statutory or decisional) for breach of contract, tort, wrongful or unfair
discharge or dismissal, impairment of



economic opportunity or defamation, breach of fiduciary duty, intentional or negligent infliction of emotional
distress, or unlawful discrimination or harassment, or retaliation or whistleblowing of any kind;

(v) Any and all claims for back pay, front pay, attorneys’ fees, compensatory, punitive or exemplary damages;
and

(vi) Any and all rights under the laws of any jurisdiction in the United States, Bermuda or any other country, that
limit a general release to those Claims that are known or suspected to exist in the Employee’s favor as of the
date of this Agreement.

b.  Without limiting the generality of the provisions above, the Employee expressly agrees that the scope of the
Claims released under Section 5 of this Agreement prohibits the Employee from acting as a class representative or
otherwise participating in any class regarding any action under ERISA or otherwise bringing an action under ERISA on
behalf of a plan or trust or otherwise. Except as provided in Section 5(c) below,the Employee agrees that she is waiving any
right she may have to obtain or receive any monetary damages or other relief of any kind (including but not limited to
settlement proceeds) as a result of any action or proceeding brought by her or by any other person or entity on her behalf
regarding any Claims or of any other nature whatsoever, and, to the extent permitted by law, the Employee agrees that she
will not seek or accept any monetary damages or other relief of any kind in any such action or proceeding.

c. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, this Agreement, and the release and waiver
by Employee contained in this Section 5 or otherwise, shall not in any way limit, release, waive or discharge (i) the
Employee’s right to bring an action to enforce any rights to the payments and benefits set forth in this Agreement; (ii) the
Employee’s rights under this Agreement or her rights, if any, to vested benefits under any Company retirement or pension
plan as of the date she signs this Agreement or thereafter; (iii) the Employee’s right to pursue any claim that, by law, cannot
be released or waived by private agreement, such as a claim for unemployment benefits (which shall not be contested by the
Company) or workers’ compensation benefits; (iv) her right to challenge the knowing and voluntary nature of her release of
claims under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act; or (v) any or all of the Employee’s rights to indemnification,
whether pursuant to Section 10 of the Employee’s Employment Agreement with the Company, dated as of November 1,
2011 (which provision shall remain in effect in accordance with its terms and shall survive the termination of Employee’s
employment), this Agreement, the charter, certificate of incorporation, by-laws, certificate of formation, operating
agreement or other governing documents of the Company or any other Released Party, insurance policies of or pertaining to
the Company or any other Released Party, applicable law or otherwise. The Employee is also not waiving any Claims that
arise after the date she signs this Agreement (but any Claims for acts or omissions that occurred before the date she signs
this Agreement are released, subject to the exceptions set forth in this subparagraph).

d. The Employee represents and warrants that as of the date she signs this Agreement she has not filed any civil
action, suit, arbitration, charge or legal proceeding against any of the Released Parties, that she has not assigned or pledged
any Claim to any person, and that no other person has an interest in the Claims that she is releasing in this Agreement. The
Employee agrees that, except as stated below in the final subparagraph of Paragraph 5 if any person or entity files or causes
to be filed any civil action, suit, arbitration or other legal proceeding seeking equitable or monetary relief concerning any
Claims, she will not seek or accept any personal relief from or as a result of the action, suit, arbitration or other legal
proceeding.

e. In order to further induce the Employee to enter into this Agreement and provide the release set forth above in
favor of the Company and the other Released Parties, the Company, for
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and on behalf of itself and the other Released Parties, hereby releases, waives, and forever discharges the Employee, and the
Employee’s heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns, from, and promises never to
assert, any and all claims, demands, liabilities, obligations, actions and causes of action, expenses and attorneys’ fees, of
whatever kind or nature, known or unknown, that the Company or any of the other Released Parties, or any of its or their
respective successors and assigns, has, had or may have, of any nature and arising out of or relating to any matter or thing
whatsoever, whether known or unknown, from the beginning of the world through the date the Company signs this
Agreement. However, this release of claims by the Company shall not be a waiver on behalf of itself or any other party, of
(i) any claim related to the enforcement of this Agreement or breach by Employee of this Agreement; (ii) any claims that
arise after the date on which the Company signs this Agreement (but any claims that occurred before the date the Company
signs this Agreement are released) (iii) any claims that cannot be waived by law; (iv) any claim arising out of or relating to
any alleged financial misfeasance or malfeasance, or criminal conduct of Employee;

f. The Employee understands that nothing in this Agreement, including but not limited to the Releases of Claims in
Section 5 of this Agreement, prevents her from filing a charge or complaint with, or from voluntarily participating in an
investigation or proceeding conducted by, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC), the National Labor
Relations Board (NLRB), the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the
Occupational Health and Safety Administration (OSHA), and/or any other federal, state or local government or regulatory
agency charged with the enforcement of any laws, or prevents any Released Party from fully defending against any such
charge or participating in any such investigation. Further, the Company and Employee agree that nothing in this Agreement
shall be construed to interfere with (i) the ability of any federal, state or local government or other regulatory agency to
investigate any such charge or complaint, (ii) Employee’s ability, or that of any Released Party, to communicate voluntarily
with, including providing documents or other information to, any such agency, and/or (iii) Employee’s ability, or that of any
Released Party, to provide truthful testimony in any court, administrative agency and/or arbitration proceeding. However, by
signing this Agreement, Employee understands that, except as provided in Section 5(c) above, she is waiving her right to
receive individual relief (including without limitation back pay, front pay, reinstatement or other legal or equitable relief)
based on claims asserted in any such charge or complaint, whether filed by her or any other person, except where such a
waiver is prohibited and except for any right she may have to receive a payment from a government agency (and not the
Company) for information provided to the government agency; and the Employee acknowledges that promises and benefits
she will receive under this Agreement fully and completely satisfy any and all such claims.

6. Proprietary Information.

a. Employee acknowledges access to and receipt of confidential business and proprietary information
regarding the Company and its affiliates while working. Except as permitted by the final subparagraph of Paragraph 5,
Employee agrees not to make any such information known to any member of the public. Employee further agrees to return
to the Company on or prior to the Termination Date all confidential and proprietary information and all other Company
property, as well as all copies or excerpts of any property, files or documents obtained as a result of employment with the
Company, except those items that the Company specifically agrees in writing to permit Employee to retain, or as permitted
by the final subparagraph of paragraph 5.

a. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the terms “proprietary information,” “confidential information,” or
“confidential business and proprietary information,” “trade secrets” (or the like or other variants or combinations thereof) as
used in this Section 6, in Section 15, or otherwise in this Agreement, shall not be deemed to include any or all: (i) publicly-
available information, (ii)
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information the Employee possessed or knew prior to the commencement of her employment with the Company; (iii)
information that was provided to the Employee by, or which the Employee learned of from, a third party who or which was
not then a party to a written obligation of confidentiality to the Company with respect thereto; (iv) information that was
developed by the Employee independent of her employment with the Company; or (v) information that is required to be
disclosed by any court, arbitrator, governmental agency or instrumentality, regulatory authority or applicable law. Subject to
the foregoing exceptions, the terms “proprietary information,” “confidential information,” or “confidential business and
proprietary information,” “trade secrets” (or the like or other variants or combinations thereof) as used in this Section 6, in
Section 15, or otherwise in this Agreement shall include information revealed to the Company or its affiliates by third
parties, including customers, clients, suppliers or vendors of the Company with the expectation that it would be maintained
in confidence by the Company.

7. Intellectual Property. Employee understands and acknowledges that during her term of employment the
Company provided and will be providing access to proprietary and valuable information that Employee might otherwise not
receive. In addition, it is understood that, with respect to any inventions or participation in invention modifications or
improvements to Company to which Employee has contributed or may contributed while in the employ of the Company and
paid by the Company, the Company reasonably seeks to secure such improvements for its own use and practice. These
obligations include a duty on the part of Employee to disclose and assign to Company any inventions or other proprietary
rights arising during the course of employment, and Employee hereby relinquishes any and all rights to such inventions or
proprietary rights or moral rights whatsoever, anywhere in the world.

8. 409-A. It is the understanding and intention of the parties that all payments and benefits payable to Employee
under this Agreement and the Second Release are compliant with and/ or exempt from the requirements of Section 409A of
the Internal Revenue Code (“Section 409A”) so as not to trigger the additional tax and/or penalties or interest imposed by
Section 409A. Each payment provided for under this Agreement and the Second Release shall be treated as a separate
payment for purposes of the application of Section 409A. If at the time of the Employee’s termination of employment with
the Company she is a “specified Employee” as defined in Section 409A and the deferral of the commencement of any
payments or benefits otherwise payable hereunder as a result of such termination of employment is necessary in order to
prevent any accelerated or additional tax under Section 409A, then the Company will defer the commencement of the
payment of any such payments or benefits hereunder (without any reduction in such payments or benefits ultimately paid or
provided) until the date that is six months following the Employee’s termination of employment with the Company (or the
earliest date as is permitted under Section 409A). To the extent any reimbursements or in-kind benefits due to Employee
under this Separation Agreement or the Second Release constitute “deferred compensation” under Section 409A, any such

reimbursements or in-kind benefits shall be



paid to Employee in a manner consistent with Treas. Reg. Section 1.409A-3(i)(1)(iv). If and to the extent that the Employee
or the Company reasonably determine that any amount payable or benefit provided under this Separation Agreement or the
Second Release would fail to satisfy any applicable requirement of Section 409A and trigger the additional tax and/or
penalties or interest imposed by Section 409A, the parties agree to take reasonable measures to bring it into compliance
with Section 409A to avoid such additional tax, penalties or interest (to the extent permitted under Section 409A). Any
payments that result from any plan or arrangement that is separately subject to the terms of Section 409A will be made in
accordance with the applicable terms of such plan or arrangement. Nothing in this Paragraph 8 is intended as a guarantee to
the Employee that additional tax and/or penalties or interest will not arise in respect of payments and benefits payable to
Employee under this Agreement and the Second Release. Company will indemnify Employee for any additional tax and/or
penalties or interest on a grossed-up basis for tax, penalties and/or interest imposed by Section 409A.

9. Cooperation. During her employment and for a period of 6 months from and after the date Employee signs the
Second Release, Employee agrees to reasonably cooperate with the Released Parties regarding any pending or subsequently
filed litigation, claims or other disputes involving the Released Parties that relate to matters within the knowledge or
responsibility of Employee. Without limiting the foregoing, during the foregoing cooperation period, Employee agrees (i) to
meet with a Released Party’s representatives, its counsel or other designees at mutually convenient times and places with
respect to any items within the scope of this provision; (ii) to provide truthful testimony regarding same to any court,
agency, or other adjudicatory body; and (iii) to provide the Company with notice of contact by any adverse party or such
adverse party’s representative, except as may be required by law. Following her Termination Date, the Company will use
best efforts to accommodate conflicts with Employee’s business or personal schedule. The Company will reimburse
Employee for reasonable expenses and any forfeited compensation in connection with the cooperation described in this
paragraph. This Section shall not require Employee to cooperate with the Company with respect to any charge or litigation
in which Executive is a charging or complaining party as provided in Paragraph 5(c) or the final subparagraph of Paragraph
5, or any confidential investigation by a government agency in which Executive is a witness for or providing support to a
charging or complaining party or requested by such government agency to maintain information in confidence.

10. Non-Admission. This Agreement shall not be construed as an admission by any Released Party or by
Employee of any liability or acts of wrongdoing or unlawful discrimination, nor shall it be considered to be evidence of
such liability, wrongdoing, or unlawful discrimination.

11. Non-Disparagement. Except as permitted by Paragraph 5(c), the exceptions in
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Paragraph 5(e), and the final subparagraph of Paragraph 5, Employee and the Company agree not to make statements
(including instigating or participating in the making of any statements) to clients, customers and suppliers of the Released
Parties or to other members of the public that are in any way disparaging or negative towards Employee or the Released
Parties or their products and services. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, nothing contained in this
Agreement shall operate to restrict the Employee or the Company or any Released Party from testifying truthfully under
oath in any legal or administrative proceeding.

12.  Advice of Counsel, Consideration and Revocation Periods, Other Information. Employee acknowledges that

the Company advised Employee to consult with an attorney prior to signing this Agreement, that Employee had twenty-one
(21) days to consider whether to sign this Agreement from the date Employee first received this (Consideration Period).
Employee must return this signed Agreement to the Company’s representative set forth below within the Consideration
Period. If Employee signs and returns this Agreement before the end of the Consideration Period, it is because Employee
freely chose to do so after carefully considering its terms. Employee acknowledges that the Company has not made any
promises or threats to induce Employee to sign this Agreement before the full Consideration Period has expired. Employee
has agreed with the Company that changes to this Agreement, whether material or immaterial, do not and did not restart the
running of the Consideration Period. Additionally, Employee shall have seven (7) days from the date of the Employee signs
this Agreement to revoke this Agreement by delivering a written notice of revocation within the seven-day revocation
period to the same person as Employee returned this Agreement. If the revocation period expires on a weekend or holiday,
Employee will have until the end of the next business day to revoke. This Agreement will become effective on the eighth
day after Employee signs this Agreement provided Employee shall not have revoked this Agreement prior to such eighth
day (the “Effective Date”).

13. Applicable Law and General Provisions.

a. This Agreement shall be interpreted under the law of the State of New Jersey without reference to its
conflicts of laws provisions. Any action to enforce this Agreement shall be brought in the federal or state courts in the State
of New Jersey, and both parties hereby consent to the jurisdiction of such courts. This Agreement sets forth the entire
agreement between the parties. Neither party is relying on any other agreements or oral representations not appearing in this
document and any attachments to this document, or in documents specifically referenced by this document. Any prior
agreements between or directly involving Employee and the Company are superseded by this Agreement, except that any
prior obligations of Employee related to inventions or business ideas, and/or of the Company or any other Released Party to
provide indemnification in favor of Employee, contained in any prior agreements between Employee and the Company or
any Released Party remain intact. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any other document between the Employee
and the Company or any other Released Party (including, without limitation, any provisions which might otherwise survive
any termination of the Employee’s employment), from and after the Termination
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Date, the Employee shall no longer be bound by, subject to, or have or be deemed to have, any restrictive covenants or
obligations to, in respect of or in favor of the Company or any Released Party, any and all of which are hereby superseded,
waived, cancelled and terminated, except as may be expressly otherwise set forth in this Agreement and those, if any,
relating to the assignment of intellectual property.

a. In the event of the death of the Employee prior to the Company’s having made or paid to the Employee any
or all of the payments and benefits referenced in this Agreement, notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the
contrary, the Second Release will not be required to be signed and the Company shall instead make or pay to the
Employee’s estate, if, as and when otherwise due hereunder, all such then remaining payments and benefits

14. Non-Solicitation. During Employee’s employment and for a period of one (1) year thereafter, Employee shall
not, without the prior written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly, on Employee’s own behalf or on behalf of any
other person, firm, corporation or business entity: (a) solicit or attempt to solicit, service or attempt to service, in either case
for the purpose of obtaining the business of any customer of the Company (or any affiliate) to the extent the business
solicited is competitive with the business of the Company (or any affiliate); (b) solicit or attempt to solicit, hire or attempt to
hire, any person who is an employee of the Company (or any affiliate) with the purpose or intent of attracting such person
from the employ of the Company (or any affiliate); or (c) induce or attempt to induce any person who is an employee of the
Company (or any affiliate) to terminate or limit his or her service or other relationship with the Company (or any affiliate).
Employee acknowledges that any breach of this Section 14 could lead to irreparable harm to the Company.

15. Confidentiality.

a. Without prejudice to the common-law duties which the Employee owes to the Group, the Employee shall not,
except in the proper performance of her duties or as provided in the final subparagraph of Paragraph 5 or as compelled by
law, copy, use or disclose to any person any of the Group’s trade secrets or confidential and proprietary information. This
restriction will continue to apply after the Termination Date, but will not apply to trade secrets or confidential and
proprietary information which become public other than through unauthorized disclosure by the Employee. The Employee
shall not engage in the unauthorized copying, use or disclosure of such information. For the purposes of this Agreement,
trade secrets and confidential information include but will not be limited to any such confidential and proprietary technical
data, information technology and know-how relating to the Group, customer lists, pricing information, information relating
to the Group’s marketing and financial strategies, marketing materials, financial information and any other information
concerning the affairs of the Group or the personnel of the Group which is for the time being confidential, which the
Employee is told is confidential or which by its nature is obviously confidential and whether such information is in written,
oral, visual, electronic or any other form.

b.  The Employee further acknowledges that, as Executive Vice President, and a senior leader of the Group’s
leadership, she has learned and is aware of the most highly confidential asserted and unasserted claims and threats of a legal
nature, as well as the most highly confidential legal information pertaining to the Group. As a result, she hereby
acknowledges and affirms her continuing professional and legal obligations to the Group, pursuant to common law,
statutory law, and all other applicable privileges and doctrines, to hold in the strictest confidence, and not to disclose, all
such information, in any context, except as may be compelled by law or as permitted in the final subparagraph of Paragraph
5 or in Section 15(d). In addition, she agrees to maintain the confidentiality of all Group-privileged or confidential and
proprietary information including, without limitation, attorney-client privileged communications with in-house and outside
counsel and attorney work product, unless disclosure is expressly authorized by the Group’s legal or compliance
department, or



otherwise compelled by law.

a. The Employee further agrees and understands that the obligations described in this Section 15 shall apply to and be
binding upon her in all circumstances except as may be compelled by law or as provided in Paragraph 15(d) or the final
subparagraph of Paragraph 5, including but not limited to any employment she may accept.

b. The Employee acknowledges that she has received the following notice that under the 2016 Defend Trade Secrets
Act (DTSA): (1) no individual will be held criminally or civilly liable under Federal or State trade secret law for the disclosure of a
trade secret (as defined in the Economic Espionage Act) that: (A) is made in confidence to a Federal, State, or local government
official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney; and made solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected
violation of law; or, (B) is made in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made
under seal so that it is not made public; and, (2) an individual who pursues a lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for reporting a
suspected violation of the law may disclose the trade secret to the attorney of the individual and use the trade secret information in
the court proceeding, if the individual files any document identifying the trade secret under seal, and does not disclose the trade
secret, except as permitted by court order.

16. Jury trial Waiver. The Parties agree to waive any right to a trial by jury regarding any dispute, claim or cause
of action arising out of, concerning, or related to, the Employee’s employment, her separation from employment, or this

Agreement.

17.  Legal Counsel. The Employee is hereby advised of her right to consult with an attorney before signing this
Agreement, which includes a jury trial waiver and a waiver of age discrimination claims. The Employee further
acknowledges that she has had the opportunity to seek legal counsel prior to signing this Agreement.

18.  Severability. The various covenants and provisions of this Agreement are severable and shall constitute
independent and distinct binding obligations. If any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be
finally determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under any
applicable law, such provisions shall be deemed automatically amended so as to be enforceable to the fullest extent (if any)
permitted by applicable law, and the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions contained herein shall
not in any way be affected or impaired.

19. Representations and Warranties. THE EMPLOYEE REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS THAT (i) SHE HAS READ
AND FULLY UNDERSTANDS THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT AND THAT THE PAYMENTS AND BENEFITS SET
FORTH IN SECTION 3 OF THIS AGREEMENT CONSTITUTE ADEQUATE CONSIDERATION FOR THIS AGREEMENT,
AND ARE IN ADDITION TO ANYTHING WHICH THE EMPLOYEE IS ALREADY ENTITLED, (ii) IF SHE DOES NOT
SIGN THIS AGREEMENT OR SHE SIGNS AND TIMELY UNDER SECTION 12 ABOVE REVOKES THIS AGREEMENT,
SHE IS NOT ENTITLED TO THE PAYMENTS AND BENEFITS SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, AND (iii) THE
EMPLOYEE’S SIGNATURE ON THIS AGREEMENT IS BINDING UPON HER AND UPON HIS SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS,
AND ANY OTHER PERSON CLAIMING RIGHTS ON HER BEHALF. THE EMPLOYEE’S SIGNATURE BELOW AFFIRMS
THAT SHE IS ENTERING INTO THIS AGREEMENT FREELY, KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY AND HAS NOT
RELIED UPON ANY REPRESENTATIONS, PROMISES OR STATEMENTS BY THE COMPANY OR BY ANY OF THE
OTHER RELEASED PARTIES NOT SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT OR IN ANY DOCUMENT SPECIFICALLY
REFERRED TO IN THIS AGREEMENT.



Allow for signatures in counterparts and electronically via pdf.

Lawrence F. Metz
Date: EVP, General Counsel & Secretary Signature

Employee has read and understood this Agreement, signs this Agreement waiving valuable rights, and acknowledges that

this Agreement is final and binding, subject to her right of revocation contained in Section 12 above.

Karen Schmitt

Date: NAME Signature

APPENDIX A

THIS IS AN IMPORTANT LEGAL DOCUMENT CONTAINING A RELEASE OF CLAIMS

AGAINST MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD. PLEASE REVIEW CAREFULLY WITH YOUR ATTORNEY BEFORE SIGNING.

This

Second General Release and Waiver of Rights and Claims

SECOND GENERAL RELEASE AND WAIVER OF RIGHTS AND CLAIMS (“Second Release”) is entered into

between Karen Schmitt (the “Employee”), and MAIDEN HOLDINGS, LTD. (the “Company”) (Collectively the “Parties” and
individually, a “Party”).

1.

This document refers to the Separation Agreement and First General Release (“Agreement”) between Karen Schmitt
(“Employee”) and Maiden Holdings, Ltd. (the “Company”), dated August 14, 2018. (the “Agreement.”)

By signing this document, and in consideration of the Second Payment to be made to her under the Agreement (as such
term is defined therein), Employee acknowledges and reaffirms all of the terms of the Agreement as of the date she signs
this Second General Release and Waiver of Rights and Claims (“Second Release”), including but not limited to her waiver
and release of claims in Section 5 of the Agreement, subject to the exceptions set forth therein, and her post-termination
obligations specified under the Agreement. Employee understands and agrees that for purposes of this reaffirmation, the
“date she signs this Agreement” (or equivalent phrases) referred to in Section 5 of the Agreement, shall be the date she
signs this Second Release. Therefore, she is releasing all claims, as set forth in that Agreement, subject to the exceptions set
forth therein, up to and including the date she signs this Second Release.

By signing this document, and in consideration of Employee’s promises and release of claims under this Second Release,
the Company acknowledges and reaffirms all of the terms of the Agreement as of the date this Second Release is signed on
its behalf, including but not limited to its waiver and release of claims in Section 5 of the Agreement, subject to the
exceptions set forth therein, and its post-termination obligations under the Agreement. The Company understands and
agrees that for




purposes of this reaffirmation, the “date the Company signs this Agreement” (or equivalent phrases) referred to in Section 5
of the Agreement, shall be the date this Second Release is signed on behalf of the Company. Therefore, the Company is
releasing all claims, as set forth in that Agreement, subject to the exceptions set forth therein, up to and including the date
this Second Release is signed on its behalf.

4. Employee acknowledges that she was given at least 21 days to consider this Second Release following her last day of

employment, that she was advised to and did consult with an attorney before signing this Second Release, and that she has 7
days after signing it to revoke it if she changes her mind. This Second Release agreement shall become effective on the
eighth day after Employee signs this Second Release, provided that she has not timely revoked it prior to such time pursuant
to Section 4 above (this Second Release’s “Effective Date”).
THE EMPLOYEE REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS THAT (i) SHE HAS READ AND FULLY UNDERSTANDS THE
TERMS OF THIS SECOND RELEASE AND THAT THE SECOND PAYMENT AS DEFINED AND SET FORTH IN
THE SEPARATION AGREEMENT CONSTITUTES ADEQUATE CONSIDERATION FOR THIS SECOND RELEASE,
AND IS IN ADDITION TO ANYTHING WHICH THE EMPLOYEE IS ALREADY ENTITLED, (ii) IF SHE DOES NOT
SIGN OR SIGNS AND TIMELY UNDER SECTION 4 ABOVE REVOKES THIS SECOND RELEASE, SHE IS NOT
ENTITLED TO THE SECOND PAYMENT SET FORTH IN THE SEPARATION AGREEMENT, AND (iii) THE
EMPLOYEE’S SIGNATURE ON THIS SECOND RELEASE IS BINDING UPON HER AND UPON HER
SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, AND ANY OTHER PERSON CLAIMING RIGHTS ON HER BEHALF. THE EMPLOYEE’S
SIGNATURE BELOW AFFIRMS THAT SHE ENTERED INTO THIS SECOND RELEASE FREELY, KNOWINGLY
AND VOLUNTARILY AND HAS NOT RELIED UPON ANY REPRESENTATIONS, PROMISES OR STATEMENTS
BY THE COMPANY OR BY ANY OF THE OTHER RELEASED PARTIES NOT SET FORTH IN THE SEPARATION
AGREEMENT, THIS SECOND RELEASE, OR ANY DOCUMENTS SPECIFICALLY REFERRED TO IN SUCH
AGREEMENTS.

Allow for signature in counterparts and electronically via pdf.

Lawrence F. Metz
Date: EVP, General Counsel & Secretary Signature

Employee has read and understood this Agreement, signs this Agreement waiving valuable rights, and acknowledges that
this Agreement is final and binding, subject to her rights of revocation contained in Section 4 above.

Karen Schmitt

Date: NAME Signature

[Note: Do not sign before Termination Date]
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Lawrence F. Metz certify that:

1. T have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Maiden Holdings, Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)
for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including any consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

November 9, 2018 /s/ LAWRENCE F. METZ

Lawrence F. Metz

President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Patrick J. Haveron, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Maiden Holdings, Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including any consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

November 9, 2018 /s/ PATRICK J. HAVERON

Patrick J. Haveron
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, chapter 63 of title 18, United States Code), the
undersigned officer of Maiden Holdings, Ltd. (the “Company”), hereby certifies, to such officer's knowledge, that:

The Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2018 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section

13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

November 9, 2018 By: /s LAWRENCE F. METZ

Lawrence F. Metz

President and Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350,
chapter 63 of title 18, United States Code) and is not being filed as part of the Report.



Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, chapter 63 of title 18, United States Code), the
undersigned officer of Maiden Holdings, Ltd. (the “Company”), hereby certifies, to such officer's knowledge, that:

The Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2018 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

November 9, 2018 By: /s/ PATRICK J. HAVERON

Patrick J. Haveron
Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350,
chapter 63 of title 18, United States Code) and is not being filed as part of the Report.



